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e@tréasury.govt.nz>

one with the MoF, he indicated that he intends to take a noting paper to Cabinet
.He does not need us to write the paper, but is keen for our view on whether he
should mention house prices or asset prices in it. Caralee and | both think that house prices is
probably more sensible, and | understand that Caralee has discussed it with you, too.

Let me know if you don’t agree — otherwise can you please email Natalie L in the office saying
that our view is house prices.

MoF is keen for our view on that by tomorrow am at the latest — so sending something this
evening if possible would be great.

Cheers
Bryan
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Bryan Chapple (he/him)|Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury
Deputy Secretary Macroeconomics and Growth

Tel: s9(2)(k) Mob: s9(2)(g)(ii) | bryan.chapple@treasury.govt.nz
Executive Assistant: Jozef Citari Tel: s8(2)(g)ii) | jozef.citari@treasury.govt.nz


mailto:bryan.chapple@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:jozef.citari@treasury.govt.nz
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From: Renee Philip [TSY]

Sent: Monday, 23 November 2020 7:06 pm

To: AParliament: Natalie Labuschagne

Cc: Bryan Chapple [TSY]; James Beard [TSY]; Robbie Taylor [TSY]

Subject: Monetary policy remit i%
(/ ~

(T
NN,
N

Hi Natalie

N
| understand that the Minister is interested in our view on the 'ss@réﬁyhether th uld mention the term
‘house prices’ or ‘asset prices’. /;
|

. D
We think the term used should reflect the policy intent.” —~ \\ /

If the main concern is around house price stabilityand* se p increases on particular groups (eg

So in the central bank context, tﬁeﬁ—i Y
these financial stability conce []S\,\ngcy | underst
Given this, we think it m sense t/o use th
policy intent so the MP bout intend

~__

~

Cheers

Renee % ~
N Yo
LT
%\%’/
9@ TE TA %GA

THE TREASURY
)
Renee Philip | Mr, Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury
Tel: s92)(k) | Mobile: sa@)(g)(ii) | Email/IM: renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz
Visit us online at https://treasury.govt.nz/ and follow us on Twitter, Linkedln and Instagram
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From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Hi

price increases and any thinking they had done about the ro Mo etary pO|IW AS\
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Renee Philip [TSY]

Tuesday, 24 November 2020 9:09 am

Bryan Chapple [TSY]; James Beard [TSY]; Caralee McLiesh [TSY]
Neil Kidd [TSY]

Discussion with Aus Tsy about house prices/manetary policy
Yo i>

"ary of key points is below

for your information. The main takeaway is that they are no ing r ag\sor concerns as in NZ at present

—and to the extent they have had house price concer
concerns, rather than distributional ones.

- Like NZ, most people in Australia had be%’
initially some concern there could be e

ric
- Instead, the outlook has improved / sta sed House p
- General sense is they are pleased %
- Inthinking about house pric
investor activity, the other
Most recent activity refle/(;g -occupie
- Rental markets hav
- There was strong hou
activity has bee

investment
- Two fundan

t@hmk the

- The Treasurer rec
but these will requi

- Australia has
reflecting
LVRs) —

- The Stat mg

or‘ne/ brunt of t

ed/to be financial stability

alls

h year-on-year is still low

|scal and m %ta 1y policies have stabilised the economy

e a couple of triggerpoints that could be a concern, one is a lot of

the pace }5 price growth. They are not seeing either of these.
o\cflpg fiscal support and first home buyer subsidies

D shock with vacancy rates up, new rents are declining

2013-2018 which contributed to supply, and although

lfiv stment from.
\gsmce therﬁx@e to be supply come onstream from this period of strong

ers - po$lation growth and interest rates — are going in opposite directions at the

nterest rates) whereas in previous periods they had both been
; \/
nission mechanisms are too different from conventional monetary policy,

Y seélng a blt/rﬁore ismission through fixed rather than variable mortgage rates

tl \anﬁounced changes to responsible lending requirements (reduction in requirements)
istative change

y changes to LVR policies. However, percentage of high LVR lending has drifted up
the composition from investors towards owner occupiers (who tend to have higher

the Conduct of Monetary Policy (equivalent to our Remit) for the current Governor’s term

|ncIudea\mor/e on financial stability than previously to allow the RBA to put more weight on this. So even
when not concerned about robustness of the financial system as a whole, they could take into account the
risk to financial stability that could arise through the impact of a disruptive correction in asset prices on

household balance sheets

9’* 4 TE TAI OHANGA
Y THE TREASURY

Renee Philip | Manager, Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury
Tel: s92)(k) | Mobile: s9(2)()(ii) | Email/IM: renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz
Visit us online at https://treasury.govt.nz/ and follow us on Twitter, LinkedIn and Instagram
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Subject: RE: foreign central bank remits
Thanks — another Q: what is the status of the fed’s statement on longe ,,
From: Nathan Spence [TSY] <Nathan.Spence@treasury.govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2020 3:55 PM
To: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: foreign central bank remits %

I3

etiomof the Bank f@rﬁ nd Act: https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/11/part/Il -
ére was a ence to financial stability in the monetary policy remit. i.e. | was

o

From: Neil Kidd [TSY]
Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2020 4:06 pm Q
To: Nathan Spence [TSY] @

%Act i.e. are they required to have one?

@
7y
[
>
m

=1

Yeah | did mean that. | looked at the Monetary Polic
there was nothing on financial stability in this section/ B

distinguishing between the Act and the Remit.
Does that make sense? @
From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@tredsury.govthz>

Sent: Tuesday, 24 November zo%&ﬁy V

To: Nathan Spence [TSY] <Nathah.Spe treasury.gowt.

Subject: RE: foreign central b %W %

did you e@y financial stability (first highlighted bit below) given the bit you quite says financial stability?

Thanks — just one minor question
Neil

From: Nathan Spence [TSY] <Nathan.5@n treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2020 lﬁgo

To: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Nei|.Kidd@tne<a@v\ t.nz>; Korban Gell [TSY] <Korban.Gell@treasury.govt.nz>; Anna Hamer-Adams [TSY] <Anna.Hamer-
Adams@treasury.govt.nz> D)

Subject: RE: foreign central bank remits
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USA

Financial stability is not referenced in the
Monetary policy objectives section of the
Federal Reserve Act:
https://www.federalreserve.gov/aboutthefed/
section2a.htm

The Federal Reserve Act states that the Board
of Governors and the FOMC should conduct
monetary policy “so as to promote effectively

the goals of maximum employment, stable |

prices, and moderate long-term interest rate<

monetary policy’ strategy writes ”the“///\}—
Committee’s policy decisions refle jc\if&l nger-
run goals, its medium-term outlok%ﬁdpﬁs/
assessments of the balance of risks,\including
risks to the financial system th
the attainment of the Committee
https://www.federalre$erve.gev/monetarypoli

cy/files/FOMC Longérlfdn%o}ié.pdf
N

Y /%\5
‘ N\

Financial stability d
appear to be explici

“the Fed as one-
embers on @
o}

) '
statutor esare to:

ks to the

o i
<gQ:%'Ht of the U.S.

%} cial system that could
arise from the distress or
failure, or ongoing
activities, of large,
interconnected bank
holding companies or
nonbank financial
companies or that could
arise outside the financial
service marketplace;

e promote market discipline
by eliminating expectations
on the part of the

shareholders, creditors,

Page 8 of 169
Doc 4



20210066 TOIA Binder

and counterpar 'es\qf such
companies th

governme
them fro the
event of C any’s
fail :
e respond to,emerging
U.S. financia \%
ability
MS //www. go(mf\ou;g ont
| ent/pke/US
\/lelz/html/tﬁ%\o\E/zom-

title12- c/h/gpss\sdbthapl partA-
sec53&<2\h\{r{{

UK

Nothing in the monetary poli ionin‘the
Bank of England Act on fina

objective in all regio \ﬁ,l
economy.” — Monetary Policy %
https://assets.publishing.service:gov.uk/gover
nment/upIoads/svstem/ué]b\ads%attachment d

ata/file/871684/MPC_RemitFINAY. pdf

S

}%o} England Act 1998
%: objective of the
Bankshall be to protect and
ance the stability of the
%ncial system of the United
Kingdom”
https://www.legislation.gov.uk
/ukpga/1998/11/contents

Nothing on housing in the
financial policy remit — issued
March 2020:
https://www.bankofengland.co

-uk/-

/media/boe/files/letter/2020/c

%
&V

/

Page 9 of 169
Doc 4
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hancellor-letter-11032020-
fpc.pdf?la=en&hasﬁ=%ﬁ¢977F
925DDF52FFIFADB627E94B475

CO1FOC1 —

Euro
Area

Nothing in the monetary policy section of the
on Treaty of the Functioning of the European
Union on financial stability (article 127).
https://eur-
lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=C

ELEX:12012E/TXT:en:PDF |

| competent tho\‘ »
“Regarding the ECB’s monetary policy, th 0 the prudz‘:@ks 0

contribution to financial stability is [~/
subordinated to the objective of p 'cg\st?iﬂ)iy.
This assignment reflects the view hit?fhe*
maintenance of price stabilit ’ timately the
best contribution monetary palicy can’'make in
support of financial stability.” Pg..83 -
Overview of ECB’s m DO
https://www.ecb.europda.€u/p
onetarypolicv201/(2’&1})\0‘&?40?)4e7099Is{?lic}}\beA
8d0874f6eab650e. < /-

)

Financial stabili %tan
objectiy\ under-article 127.

SCB) shall contribut
to the smooth co e§
policies pursued by the
it
]

ie rglating
rvision of
ions and the

“ that, the ECB'’s

financial stability role is
i@bedded within the ECB’s
asic monetary policy task and
the ECB’s microprudential
supervisory tasks” — from a
speech by a member of the
ECB Board:
https://www.ecb.europa.eu/pr
ess/key/date/2018/html/ecb.s
p180906.en.html

%
A

Page 10 of 169
Doc 4
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From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2020 11:37 AM

To: Nathan Spence [TSY] <Nathan.Spence@treasury.govt.nz>; Korb
<Anna.Hamer-Adams@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: foreign central bank remits )

<Korbanf$sury.govt.nz>; Anna Hamer-Adams [TSY]

~

Importance: High - _/
D)
N\
N { \\ \
Hello, /" R \ ’)
. \\\//) ) B
Could I divert you on to an urgent request ple se\% ﬂéed tofi @%«& foreign banks have in their monetary policy frameworks with respect to
both financial stability generally and speci ouse prices (i ing)! If possible this could also cover anything in their financial policy

frameworks too.

We just want to know the exact wo e requirem%‘ud | ask you to have a look at the following please:

e Nathan— USA, UK, Euro Area >
e Anna— Aussie, Cana ,@ha\
e Korban —Norway, Sweden— Yo
\\J)
For the first 6 of these (for Nathan and % re/should be links to the relevant bits of the leg in the attached thing that Jenna did for us (looking
bution

at something slightly different) - CB Distfi mpacts - JB (Treasury:4377329v2) |Add to worklist|
Korban — she didn’t cover Norway a (that’s why you’ve only got 2).

) /\\
Just ASAP please, and an email wthltk\e r
can cut and paste into something\gj\icyy
Give me a shout if you have questions,

ults would be fine — maybe put it in a table with two columns: country and what’s in their framework, so |
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Thanks —and please treat sensitively
Neil

Neil Kidd | Principal Advisor, Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | The Treasu
Tel:s9(2)(k) | Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz
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From: Korban Gell [TSY] <Korban.Gell@treasury.govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2020 4:00 PM

To: Nathan Spence [TSY] <Nathan.Spence@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil Kidd [TSY]
Adams@treasury.govt.nz>

Page 13 of 169
Doc 5

) -0
% _
i %@treasurv@m.

nna Hamer-Adams [TSY] <Anna.Hamer-

Subject: RE: foreign central bank remits %\

Norway

Apologies for starting to work on this later, please let me know if yot E%i\a\f}y further g

Country
https://www.norges-bank.no/en/topics/about/Mission-core

Monetary Policy Framework

responsibilities/Legislation/Central-Bank-Act/ -
The Norges Bank Act states a clear mandate fi
stability.

The Central Bank Act states that (1) ”The\pgcpEe of the cen b
activities is to maintain monetary stabiti ;ka@gf/t{) promotg' i
the financial system and an efficj cure payme sVsii m
and (2) “The central bank shal jbute to high and o\fbut and
employment”

ies.of Wﬁnancial Stability
Committee states that e Committee is e for Norges Bank’s
responsible for t

Sory mone eﬁ uthority and is
> of policy instr/ame ts to attain the monetary policy
objectives. (2) The C ittee shall contrikuteto the promotion of financial

stability by providing advice and Qhe/p licy instruments at its disposal.

S|

C

No specific reference to ho prices nor assets in the Act.

=D

estion requests.

\%

77777 Financial policy framework
At www,norges—bank.no/en/topics/financial—stabiIity/financial—stabilitv—

i %ﬁ'mary—ob'ective{
inancial stability is one of Norges Bank’s primary objectives. It shares its work

and responsibilities on financial stability with two other government authorities:
Ministry of Finance, and Finanstilsynet (Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway)
The financial responsibilities of the Norges Bank (outlined in the Norges Bank Act)
are as follows:

e To promote a robust and efficient financial system.

e Monitor financial institutions, securities markets and payment systems to
identify trends that may weaken the stability of the financial system.

e Oversee the payment system and other financial infrastructure and
contribute to contingency arrangements.

e [f asituation should arise that poses a threat to financial stability, Norges
Bank and other authorities will, if necessary, take action to strengthen
the financial system — Norges bank will be able to provide extraordinary
liquidity to individual banks or to the wider banking system.

Sweden

https://www.riksbank.sekn-gﬁ/a k}éut-the-riksbank/policv-documents/the-

https://www.riksbank.se/globalassets/media/rapporter/riksbanken-och-finansiell-

sveriges—riksbank—ac‘
The Sveriges Riksban@ta es a clear mandate for maintaining financial
stability. —

stabilitet/engelska/2013/rap riksbanken och finstab 130204 eng.pdf
The Riksbank Act states that “promoting a safe and efficient payments system” is

one of the Riksbank’s primary objectives — A Riksbank publication about Financial
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The Central Bank Act states that (1) “The objective of the Riksbank’s
activities shall be

to maintain Price stability” (2) “The Riksbank shall also promote a safe-an
efficient N

payments system”

The Act states “The Riksbank may issue regulations within
responsibility for

Monetary policy. The Riksbank may also issue regulaticgvh\ma\ concern
activities connected -

with the Riksbank’s payment system or cash-pr

andate”
)

No specific reference to house prices nor

\@motlng flnaﬁua

Page 14 of 169

i 'ty consists of several different tasks” and are as follows:
Gat rlth}ompnlng and distributing information on the financial system,
R a alysing and supervising developments in the financial system
and the-€conomy as a whole

/o\Ai ecting the financial regulatory framework so that it contributes to

U stak ility and efficiency
reventing threats to financial stability by informing and warning of risks,

AN and where necessary providing recommendations of measures to deal

| with these risks

e Managing a financial crisis if one should arise
e Ensuring that there is a central payments system which banks and other
agents can use to make payments

Doc 5
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From: Nathan Spence [TSY] <Nathan.Spence@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2020 1:34 pm

Page 15 of 169

To: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Korban Gell [TSY]

<Korban.Gell@treasury.govt.nz>; Anna Hamer-Adams [TSY] <Anna. er-

Adams@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: foreign central bank remits

Hopefully this covers what you are after — let me know if you ‘'wan
else/have any questions.
R
/o

Country ‘ Monetary policy framework

USA Financial stability is not referenced i V
Monetary policy objectives secti n<®t e
Federal Reserve Act:

https://www.federaIreseﬂé\.g&fa outthefed
section2a.htm ‘

) N

the goals,of ma
prices, ar\tjfﬁgae

(ol

Woals, its mm outlook, and its
essment o%»e\ ance of risks, including
ﬁsks to the financial’system that could impede
the at;af;% the Committee’s goals”:
https://www\federalreserve.gov/monetarypoli

cy/ffiles/FOMC LongerRunGoals.pdf

gg\éé\e ve Act, but looks to be
covered off in the Dodd-Frank
[ act which also establishes the
Financial Stability Oversight
Council (FOSC).

The FOSC advises the Federal
Reserve and has the Chair of
the Fed as one of 10 voting
members on the FOSC. Its
statutory purposes are to:

identify risks to the
stability of the U.S.
financial system that could
arise from the distress or
failure, or ongoing
activities, of large,
interconnected bank
holding companies or
nonbank financial
companies or that could
arise outside the financial
service marketplace;
promote market discipline
by eliminating expectations
on the part of the
shareholders, creditors,
and counterparties of such
companies that the U.S.
government will shield
them from losses in the

Doc 5
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event of the company’s
failure; and

e respond to emerging
threats to U.S. financial

govmfoé()\{/mnt

%t/WUSCODE 2016- -/
“title12/html/USCODE-2036-
\t@bﬂ chap5&sub\qa§l partA-

UK

%\
Nothing in the monetary

icy. sechon in the
Bank of England Act on.finan tability.

“The government no

is to achieve st ainable and’bala
growth. Price’a ial stability :
essential};w%- es to achjev
objectlvé\f/l gions and S

econ -(M)@netary P

https://assets. publlshlrése ice,gov.uk/gover

n/rrz/eﬁt/\l,tpioads/svst%\fu\pt\ads/attachment d

ata/filé/871684/MPC RemitFINAL pdf

| The Bank of England Act 1998
ites “an objective of the
ank shall be to protect and
enhance the stability of the
financial system of the United
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
fpc.pdf?la=en&hash=29B4977F
925DDF52FF9F4ADB627F94B475
CO1F0C1

N%\g in the monetary policy section of the
aty of the Functioning of the European

ion on financial stability (article 127).
Ihttps://eur-

lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=C
ELEX:12012E/TXT:en:PDF

“Regarding the ECB’s monetary policy, the
contribution to financial stability is
subordinated to the objective of price stability.
This assignment reflects the view that the
maintenance of price stability is ultimately the
best contribution monetary policy can make in

Financial stability is not an
objective under article 127. But
article 127 does write: “The
European System of Central
Banks (ESCB) shall contribute
to the smooth conduct of
policies pursued by the
competent authorities relating
to the prudential supervision of
credit institutions and the
stability of the financial
system”
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support of financial stability.” Pg. 83 - “Beyond that, the ECB’s
Overview of ECB’s monetary policy: financial stability role is
https://www.ecb.europa.eu/pub/pdf/other/m | embedded within the ECB’s
onetarypolicy2011en.pdf?4004e7099b3dcdbf5 | basic monetary policy task and
8d0874f6eab650e

2htt www.ecb ﬁrgbarﬁu/pr
Ness/key/date/2018)httnl/ech.s
™ p180906.emht®>

\

D
SIS
From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <NeiI.Kidd@tre,a& go%n h

N D
Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2020
To: Nathan Spence [TSY] <Nathan.S @treasury > Korban Gell [TSY]
<Korban.GeII@treasury.govt.m’;ﬂmna Hamer-A m\[\'@g\zAnna Hamer-
Adams@treasury.govt.nz> -
Subject: foreign central bank
Importance: High -
/07 \
C’/
NP

w ontoan %uest please? We need to find out what foreign banks
i netarv policy-f works with respect to both financial stability generally and

(i an ing). If possible this could also cover anything in their financial

)
/

.
For tkﬂ?st 6 of these (for Nathan and Anna) — there should be links to the relevant bits of the
leg in the attached thing that Jenna did for us (looking at something slightly different) - CB
Distributional Impacts - JB (Treasury:4377329v2) |Add to worklist
Korban —she didn’t cover Norway and Sweden (that’s why you’ve only got 2).

Just ASAP please, and an email with the results would be fine — maybe put it in a table with
two columns: country and what’s in their framework, so | can cut and paste into something
quickly.

Give me a shout if you have questions,

Thanks — and please treat sensitively
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Neil

Neil Kidd | Principal Advisor, Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | The Treasury
Tel:'s92)(k) | Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz
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From: Neil Kidd [TSY]

Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2020 8:41 pm

To: Caralee McLiesh [TSY]

Cc: Renee Philip [TSY]; James Beard [TSY]; Bryan Chapple [TSY]; Matthew Galt [TSY]

Subject: financial stability in central bank remits - international compariso&
7
( \\\j \:1

Hi Caralee, %\7

You asked Renee how other central banks are required to takedinto éecsunt financial sta|I| in their monetary

olicy considerations. -

o ‘1/‘/\‘:\,‘\1‘
In summary, of the central banks we’ve looked at, Nor stralia prgztﬁe furthest in acknowledging
that there should be some flexibility to the inflation ial stability considerations. In other
central banks, some of the remits (e.g. UK) make refer the need for financial stability and others (e.g. US)
have published papers discussing how financial %tsa consid aﬁo\?vi  the committee’s policy decisions - these
tend to be subordinate to the price stability % /e\(as the ECB. e i

greater focus on financial stability tends to sit in he financial pdlicy.t
of a trade-off with other objectives in usi \\a\croprudenti

\ “to have regard to the efficiency and soundness
of the financial system” are in Iip(egitit érnation Safé)zbrs — albeit perhaps not going as far as Australia or
Norway. What would be differ\ghtra/l@ut the curr osal for the RBNZ to consider house prices (specifically in
the context of the governméjt’\;s;braaé(er obje i% espect to inequality, productive capacity etc) is that house
prices are not being considered from solely afinancial-stability perspective, wherein consideration of financial

My reading of all this is that the cu

As such, there,g 3
perspective a@d the Bank’s obje
needs to “have regard to” hofmfs‘,e'}b[\ ability significantly lessens the trade-off in that it is a subordinate
consideration (but also ris& it{*o;%éving the desired effect on house prices). | think it would be useful for the Bank
(O
ab

to think quite broadly a thet there are other changes to their frameworks that would allow them to maintain
a focus on delivering p y and maximum sustainable employment whilst also taking pressure off the
housing market (to deli
parts of the fra
setting of prude\rgi‘akjbo
—/

e.g. giving a direction under section 68B (to have regard to a government objective in the
y) could be considered as well as changes to the monetary policy framework.

¢ Norway: The Norges Bank’s objectives are set out by law and by regulation. The regulation states that
Inflation targeting shall be forward-looking and flexible so that it can contribute to high and stable output
and employment, and to counteracting financial imbalances. Norges Bank notes that to some extent,
monetary policy can contribute to counteracting the build-up of financial imbalances and thereby reduce
the risk of sharp economic downturns further ahead. If there are signs that financial imbalances are building
up, the consideration of high and stable output and employment may in some situations suggest keeping
the policy rate somewhat higher than would otherwise be the case. The regulation and supervision of
financial institutions are the primary means of addressing shocks to the financial system

e Australia: Their statement on the conduct of monetary policy says “they (the RBA and the Government)
agree that an appropriate goal is to keep consumer price inflation between 2 and 3 per cent, on average,
over time. This formulation allows for the natural short-run variation in inflation over the economic cycle

1
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and the medium-term focus provides the flexibility for the Reserve Bank to set its policy so as best to
achieve its broad objectives, including financial stability.”

e UK: The Act sets out the monetary policy objectives as price stability and “subject to that, to support the
economic policy of Her Majesty’s Government, including its objectives for growth and employment.” The
monetary policy remit states that “The government’s economic policy objective is to achieve strong,
sustainable and balanced growth. Price and financial stability are essential pre-requisites to achieve this
objective in all regions and sectors of the UK economy.”

e US: The Fed’s monetary policy objectives do not make reference to any financial stability cor

They publish a ‘statement on longer-run goals and monetary policy’ s y which state Vioreover,
sustainably achieving maximum employment and price stability deg stable flnﬁnﬂla| tem. The
Committee’s policy decisions reflect its longer-run goals, its medi wﬁessments of

the balance of risks, including risks to the financial system th uld impede the t ‘nment/of the

Committee’s goals”.
Euro area: There is nothing in the monetary policy secti

| Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz- |

% \‘
The information in this email is confidential to the sury,.intehded only fo, e a@\
addressee: \

a. please immediately delete this email and n/t@ the Tregsury by retur \\Mel/phone 644472 2733);
b any use, dissemination or copying of this e\ma//s\\mc y prohibited@nd Y bewlawful

Tel: s9(2)(K)
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From: Renee Phili SY.
To: Natalie Labuschagne
Cc: Bryan Chapple [TSY]; Caralee McLiesh [TSY]; Andrew Rutledge [TSY]; James Beard [TSY.
Subject: RE: Letter
Date: Tuesday, 24 November 2020 10:15:00 am
Attachments: 24th November RBNZ letter.docx
im 1.

A couple of comments tracked into the attached.

| also wanted to flag that if we had more time, it is possi e@a re are othe c%to the remit

that could be considered in response to AMP, in additi ousing ch(anfe. xample, some of
the factors that are currently included in the indemni i @t take into account

bond market functioning), or some of the factors’i %Oﬂr work programme
on AMP is considering some of these issues, b ‘ view’on them. Given that the

there are any further
more generally?

remit will change anyway, you could consider
changes the Bank would propose reflecti oductlon

Act theremit c e done under. The Act allows the
chedule 2, Q
|ssuedf

ay, by nC|I made on the recommendation of

You have also asked which part of
remit to be changed under section

Remit may be re

(a) replace &' remit’iss ed undx 0 (or Schedule 1 or this clause) before the term
e

emit as referred to'in section 14(2)(b).
klng a recommendation,—

(b)IS e.a new
er must, .be

@ the Ba e/proposed remit; and

mments (if any) on the proposal.

sider th
(3) he MP%}the Minister to make a recommendation.
ma

nay be replaced before the expiry of its term only in accordance with this

(7) Subclause (6) does not prevent the operational objectives in a remit from being
amended or replaced as referred to in section 19(4)(b).

The other option is section 12. However, that section applies when the changes are being made to 1 or
both of the economic objectives in section 8 (price stability and maximum sustainable employment). If
the economic objectives are not changing, this section wouldn’t apply.

Cheers
Renee


mailto:renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Natalie.Labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz
mailto:Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Caralee.McLiesh@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Andrew.Rutledge@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1989/0157/latest/whole.html#DLM199894
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1989/0157/latest/whole.html#DLM202454
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1989/0157/latest/whole.html#DLM199898
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1989/0157/latest/whole.html#DLM199897
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1989/0157/latest/whole.html#DLM199894
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1989/0157/latest/link.aspx?id=DLM31483#DLM31483
http://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1989/0157/latest/whole.html#DLM200006

Dear Adrian,

 

I am writing to you to seek the Reserve Bank’s view on a potential change to the Remit of the Monetary Policy Committee. I am concerned that the recent rapid escalation in housing prices is not consistent with the Government’s economic objective set out in the MPC Remit which states:	Comment by Renee Philip [TSY]: Some risk this sounds as though the MPC isn’t meeting the remit. An alternative framing might be to tie this to the challenges the MPC is facing following the large and unusual shock that is COVID – where we are seeing house prices rise while unemployment is increasing and general price inflation is low. Given these circumstances, it might be useful to clarify the remit to help the MPC’s decisions to be consistent with the Government’s economic objective

“The Government’s economic objective is to improve the wellbeing and living standards of New Zealanders through a sustainable, productive and inclusive economy. Our priority is to move towards a low carbon economy, with a strong diversified export base, that delivers decent jobs with higher wages and reduces inequality and poverty”. 

Housing price instability is harmful to our aims of reduced inequality and poverty, and is also likely to negatively impact the Government’s aim of creating a more productive and inclusive economy. This is particularly the case where investments in the economy are increasingly being made in the existing housing stock, rather than in other more productive assets. 

House prices are influenced by more than monetary policy. In addition to the changes suggested here, the Government has a wide ranging work programme aiming to improve housing affordability.

I am also aware that the MPC is also making increasing use of alternative monetary policy by making interventions into financial markets to support the economy as a consequence of the current COVID-19 related global slowdown. The new alternative monetary policy tools that are now being used by the Monetary Policy Committee are being used to an extent not expected at the publication of the February 2019 Remit. I believe it is right that we consider how these tools might be impacting on the housing market - with particular regard to housing price inflation.  

I want to make clear that I am not proposing any change to the overall objectives of the MPC Remit, nor the operational objectives themselves. I remain committed to upholding the operational independence of the MPC for setting formulatingof monetary policy by the MPCto help achieve the Government’s objectives. My proposed changes are to Section 2b. In particular, I am seeking your views on the following proposed change: 	Comment by Renee Philip [TSY]: The word formulating comes from description of the MPC’s role in the Act

b) In pursuing the operational objectives, the MPC shall:

i. Have regard to the efficiency and soundness of the financial system;

ii. Seek to avoid unnecessary instability in output, interest rates, the exchange rate, and house prices; and

iii. Discount events that have only transitory effects on inflation, setting policy with a medium-term orientation

I would welcome your views on the value of this change, including any alternative proposal that meets our concerns. I would also welcome your views on any other changes that the Bank could make in achieving the sustained moderation in house prices that we have both sought. I look forward to your response to the above proposal. The Government is planning to make this change (if agreed) soon, and so I would request that you gave it your earliest possible consideration. 

I want to finish by thanking you and the MPC for your role in providing stability and support through the difficult period of COVID-19. I have appreciated the collaborative way that you have approached your task, and I look forward to continuing to work that way. 





Yours Sincerely. 





Hon. Grant Robertson

Minister of Finance 
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From: Natalie Labuschagne <Natalie.Labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 24 November 2020 9:13 am

To: Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>

Cc: Bryan Chapple [TSY] <Bryan.Chapple @treasury.govt.nz>; Caralee McLiesh [TSY]
<Caralee.Mcliesh@treasury.govt.nz>; Andrew Rutledge [TSY] <Andrew.Rutledge @treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: Letter

Hi Renee, @ /;7
L

As just discussed, the draft letter is attached and the Office is req comment fro Tiy\\zl‘rﬁy( the
&
next 60 minutes if possible. > W

—_ .

()
%\\/
QD

The office has also requested to please not share more wi @y}hgn is necessarz%is tage.
Apologies for the tight turnaround,

Natalie

Office of Hon Grant Robertso
Minister of Finance

B Wellington 6160, New Zealand

T:s9(2)(k

E: natalie.labuscha .ovt.mz/ \
(
>
The information contained i s privileged and ﬂgg\%ial and intended for the addressee only. If you are not
the intended recipient, you are asked)to respect t dentiality and not disclose, copy or make use of its contents.
If received in error you are ed to destroy this
. A
appreciated. w > i}

Page 22 of 169

Doc 7
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From: Neil Kidd [TSY]

To: Clara Rowe [TSY]; Renee Philip [TSY]; Leona Feng [TSY]; Dasha Leonova [TSY.
Subject: RE: Advice on RBNZ options to address housing

Date: Friday, 27 November 2020 3:12:00 pm

Attachments: image001.png

MoFs lever wrt RBNZ.nrl
4382464 _A3- housing macro-pru measures.DOCX

Hi Clara,
Attached for Caralee are a list of powers/levers that MoF has W|®respect tg

appointment and dismissal. The most pertinent of these o

X

house prices are probably the monetary policy and'thefir o finaneia

attached A3 from Leona in the FM team elabor d the relevanﬁi a@l olicy levers and we

already have a separate process in place for nonetary poli work changes, given
the MoF’s letter to the Bank. f %
Hope that is helpful? @

Thanks
Neil E%
From: Clara Rowe [TSV%?. owe@trea

Sent: Thursday,

To: Renee Philip enee.philip Z r.govt.nz>; Neil Kidd [TSY]
<Neil Kidd@tre govt.nz>; Leona SY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha
Leonova [ a.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>

Subjec : on RBN %@ address housing
T hink this;hé% rovided separately to the cross-TSY housing advice.

Clara Rowe (she/ Analyst, Office of the Executive | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury
Tel:s9(2)(k) 0b:s9(2)(g)(ii) | Clara.Rowe@treasury.govt.nz

FromP ilip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 26 November 2020 4:41 PM

To: Clara Rowe [TSY] <Clara.Rowe@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil Kidd [TSY]
<Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha
Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: Re: Advice on RBNZ options to address housing

Hi Clara
Neil is leading our team input to housing advice at the moment. But macro pru is being led by
Leona, in Financial Markets. Leona, is this in scope of what you’re already planning?

Get Outlook for i0OS



mailto:Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Clara.Rowe@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz
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
https://aka.ms/o0ukef
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	IN-CONFIDENCE

		Measure

		Description

		Housing market impacts

		Fiscal and distributional effects

		Administration   

		Wider efficiency and equity impacts

		Treasury recommendation 



		Macro-prudential tools (indirect measures that may moderate house price growth and reduce investor demand) 



		Provide input through the RBNZ’s consultation process on its LVR decision

		RBNZ is proposing to re-introduce the LVR restrictions (no more than 5% of banks’ new lending to investors can be to those with less than 30% deposit; and no more than 20% of lending to owner occupiers can be to those with less than 20% deposit). MoF could write to (or engage informally with) the RBNZ seeking additional restrictions on investors if he is still concerned about the calibration of LVRs (e.g. the RBNZ could require investors to have a 40% deposit).



		Primary purpose of LVRs is to mitigate rising systemic risks associated with housing market. Investor lending is riskier as investors have higher default rates and incentives to exit the market quicker than owner occupiers. 



Reintroducing LVR restrictions could dampen house price inflation but effects may be marginal (approx. 1-2% impact on prices). Banks are already reapplying LVR restrictions on investors ahead of the RBNZ decision, so any additional impact would be minimal. 

		Reinstating LVRs may limit the ability of first home buyers to enter the market if they have fewer savings and do not meet the 20% deposit requirements. However, higher LVR restrictions on investors would benefit first home buyers by reducing investor demand for housing.



This may have unintended impacts on rental prices, but the effect is expected to be small. Over time there may be some reduction in the supply of rental property, in line with a relative shift from investor to owner occupier purchases. However, it may also reduce demand for rental properties as some renters become property owners. 

		Low administrative costs. 

Under the MOU which governs the use of macro-prudential tools, the RBNZ Governor alone makes the decision, but is required to consult MoF and the Treasury beforehand. 

RBNZ has signalled that LVR restrictions will be re-introduced by 1 March 2021.  



		LVRs can affect the wider economy via their impact on house prices and housing wealth, which in turn influences both consumption and residential investment. 



The overall economic impact of reinstating LVRs is uncertain, but may reduce consumption and residential investment. Any impact is likely to be minor given the expected small impact on house prices.



LVRs can also support financial system efficiency through dampening the pace of future housing credit and house price growth. However effects are likely to be marginal. 



Reinstating LVRs could incentivise higher LVR lending to shift to non-bank sector, but overall the size of the sector is too small to significantly impact the stability of the financial system.

		We support the RBNZ reintroducing LVRs, and it could be worth the Minister suggesting additional restrictions on investors if desirable.

(Note we haven’t done the work to know if it is, we are providing feedback to the RBNZ on its draft consultation document, and can confirm this recommendation next week)



		Invite the RBNZ to consider introducing other macro-prudential tools such as debt-to-income (DTI) ratios

		DTIs limit the total amount of debt of the borrower as a ratio to gross income, commonly set at 4-5x of borrowers’ income. DTI restrictions could complement the LVR policy by further mitigating housing credit risk. 

		The primary purpose of a DTI limit is to mitigate the effects of a future housing crisis. A DTI limit reduces credit growth during a housing boom and also reduces the severity of the decline in house prices and economic growth in a downturn, as fewer households would be forced to sharply constrain their consumption or sell their house.



It could also reduce the level of house prices and consumption slightly. 

DTIs have a more durable impact than LVRs as the degree of constraint wouldn’t change after a sharp increase in house prices (whereas LVRs have less impact on existing homeowners who have more equity).



However, banks already have debt-to-income serviceability requirements in their internal credit assessments so any effect would likely be small. 

		DTI restrictions will constrain credit availability for some borrowers, which could also impact on credit demand and house price inflation. The size of the impact would depend on the design of any limit. 



While it constrains some households from being homeowners, it is also expected to raise the homeownership rate by disproportionately affecting investors. 

		Relatively low administrative costs. 

The RBNZ is required to develop any new macroprudential tools in consultation with the Treasury and MoF. The RBNZ has previously considered introducing this additional tool. 

The RBNZ estimates administrative costs should not be large as the RBNZ already collects DTI data for risk monitoring purposes and banks already maintain home loan origination policies. 

		As above, DTIs can influence consumption and residential investment in the broader economy. There may be a small negative impact on consumption in the short term, but could be outweighed by an increase in the resilience of households to worsening economic conditions, and reduce the likelihood they need to sell property during a downturn.

		Could consider progressing in the medium-term, but any additional benefit is likely limited by the banks’ existing practices which already take DTI’s into account in their individual loan origination policies.



		Exercise section 68B power to direct the RBNZ to give regard to a Government Policy

		The Minister has the power to direct the RBNZ to have regard to a Government policy that relates to its (prudential) functions. 



However the RBNZ only needs to ‘have regard’ to a direction, it is not required to follow it. 

		May have limited impact as a standalone measure, but it could be useful in influencing the RBNZ’s direction of travel on specific macro-prudential tools (e.g. LVR and DTI restrictions) and encouraging the RBNZ to align the calibration and objectives of their tools more closely with government policy on housing. 

		No direct fiscal or distributional impacts. However it could contribute to the RBNZ’s calibration of macro-prudential policy in a way that favours first home buyers more strongly. 

		Relatively low administrative costs. This power has never been used to date. The Minister must consult with the RBNZ before giving a direction, and set this out in a written statement signed by the Minister. 



It needs to be presented to the House of Representatives and gazetted as soon as practicable after it is given.

		No direct impacts on efficiency and equity. May contribute to aligning RBNZ macro-prudential tools more closely with broader government objectives. 

		This is likely to be less effective given that MoF has already sent a letter setting out his expectations, so his policy direction on housing is already clear to the RBNZ overall.










Overview of common macro-prudential tools used by central banks

(Note: this is a quick overview based on initial research from OECD and IMF information, we have not undertaken a proper assessment of the viability of each tool and their impacts)

		Type of tool

		Description

		Impacts and risks

		Which countries use these tools?



		Core funding ratio 

(Lender side Liquidity tool)

		Banks are required to maintain a core funding ratio of 75% where core funding is retail deposits and wholesale deposits with maturities over 1 year. The  aim of this policy to reduce liquidity mismatch between bank assets (including housing loans) and financing. 

		A higher ratio drives higher funding costs for banks, which affects overall lending costs. 

		NZ: RBNZ temporarily lowered ratio to 50% from 75% to support liquidity in the system. 



		Minimum capital ratio (Lender side capital tool)

		Set floors for the ratios of different measures of capital (core equity, equity, core Tier 1, Tier 1, total capital) over risk-weighted assets. A central part of the prudential policy framework. Broad tool aimed at ensuring resilience of banks. 

		Unlikely to have significant impacts on housing market but impacts on overall lending costs.

		Most. NZ banks are well-capitalised relative to overseas banks.



		Mortgage risk weights (Lender side capital tool)

		[bookmark: _GoBack]Increase in risk weights for lending for mortgages which would require banks to hold more capital for mortgage lending, making it a slightly less attractive form of lending than it currently is. Main purpose is to protect the resilience of banks and financial system, but won’t have much impact on individual borrowers. 

		Similar limiting effects on credit and house prices as tightening LVR caps, but residential construction declines more strongly – so tighter risk weights appear to slow down both GDP and consumption. 

		There is a considerable international variability in residential mortgage risk weights. They range from 5.25 through to 80% with a median risk weight of 17%. NZ banks are around the median. 



		Loan to value ratio

(Borrower side asset based tool)

		LVRs limit the mortgage amount relative to the value of the property. Limit borrowers’ exposure to housing indebtedness. 

		Effective in containing the build up of credit risk, and tighter LVRs are associated with lower risk of severe downturns. However the denominator (house valuations) gets inflated during a housing bubble which lessens the effectiveness of the LVR tool during a prolonged housing boom. 

		NZ: refer to previous slide

Sweden: LVR 85% 

Canada: LVR 90% for homes above CAD$0.5m

Norway: 85% (60% for loans secured on secondary homes in Oslo)



		Debt to income ratio (DTI)

(Borrower side tool)

		DTIs limit the total amount of debt of the borrower as a ratio to gross income, commonly set at 4-5x. DTIs can work as a speed limit, so that banks are able to deal with borrowers in special cases.

		Helps to constrain credit-asset price cycle. Appropriate if house prices rise sharply further. Reduce likelihood of loan defaults in event of a sharp increase in interest rates or negative shock to borrower income. 

		Ireland: no more than 20% lending above 3.5x gross income,

UK: no more than 15% of lending above 4.5,

Norway: no more than 10% lending above 5



		Debt servicing to income ratio (DSR)

(Borrower based tool)

		DSRs limit housing debt servicing costs as a ratio to disposable income. In some countries, DSRs are based on total rather than only housing debt servicing costs. 

		More complicated than DTIs and may require additional supporting rules and data collection. Necessary to specify how interest rates should be assumed to evolve. 

		France: 30%, Canada: 40%, Hong Kong: 50% for owner occupiers; 40% for investors 

Singapore: 60% 
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From: Clara Rowe [TSY] <Clara.Rowe@treasury.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, November 26, 2020 4:34 PM

To: Renee Philip [TSY]; Angus Hawkins [TSY]

Subject: Advice on RBNZ options to address housing

Kia ora Renee, Angus, @ /K&

N

N . ~ )
A request has come for your team from Caralee. This is reI ice you've %ﬁ\yggﬁto,
pulled together by housing team on options to address housing affordability-on the fiscal side. In
addition, Caralee is keen to understand the broad sui @f\m\acro—pruden '%s the bank has
(beyond LVR etc). Would the team be able to provj informati f%o this? If
possible by 3pm tomorrow, that would be fabul e is meeti ng}h CE’s to discuss the

housing advice on Monday and | think she is@ e this as material if possible.

Happy to discuss/clarify anything if need@ §§\J
Thanks, @J
_/

e

(X
/

[0
A

( -
NI
- -
Clara Rowe (she/her)} Analyst, Office of
Tel:s9(2)(k) 0b’s9(2)(g)(ii)

0D /“@y

Q


mailto:Clara.Rowe@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Clara.Rowe@treasury.govt.nz
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Caralee McLiesh [TSY]

Monday, 18 January 2021 9:50 AM

Bryan Chapple [TSY]

FW: Near term actions for agreement/information

RBNZ-Treasury individual and joint work

Monetary Policy
- Advice to the MoF on how best to include:
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a) Regard to house price inflation (or asset price volatility more generally) in the RBNZ’s
Current legislation s68b
Future legislation in the Financial Stability Remit
And, as a least preferred option (the least-worse) into the current MPC Remit amongst the issues we already
have regard to.
[For agreement and work plan]

Nga mihi

Adrian
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notify the sender immediately and delete this message from your system.

This message does not necessarily reflect the views of the \\
Reserve Bank of New Zealand. If the recipient has any concerns about w

"This message (and any files transmitted with it) are confidential and
may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient please @

the content of this message they should seek alternative confirmation
from the Reserve Bank of New Zealand."
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From: Caralee McLiesh [TSY]

Sent: Monday, 18 January 2021 4:24 PM
To: Andrew Rutledge [TSY]

Subject: email

On the points:

RBNZ-Treasury individual and joint work
- Monetary Policy
0 |agree we need a work prog g MOFs view as to whether he wishes to
pursue the FP option (S68b or o ise), MP optien (and if so, how), or both. Once clear | will ask
as we develp@d ice.>Regardless | think we should ask our teams to

prices is more likely to be effective through

Tt: alignment between stable house prices and financial

i een moderating house prices and achieving
e proposed changes to the MP remit would have only a
er outcomes), although it does send a signal that

ess/visibility of secondary consequences of monetary policy.
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From: Caralee McLiesh [TSY]
Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2021 8:51 AM
To: Neil Kidd [TSY]; Ben Gaukrodger [TSY]; Dasha Leonova [TSY]; Bryan Chapple [TSY];
Renee Philip [TSY]; James Beard [TSY]; Sam Thornton [TSY]; Leona Feng [TSY];
Matthew Galt [TSY]; ~AParliament: Natalie Labuschagne
Subject: RE: Readout from MoF - Treasury Report: requirifig the Reserve ave regard
to house prices 7

Thanks Neil, very helpful.

SR

t could be ressed, in the monetary policy
nsideration for monetary

It strikes me there are two main policy concerns about house
remit: financial stability and distributional impacts. Clearly r
policy, the question is whether and if so how to indicate th

ri
ration s o iven to the tradeoffs for
stability/distribution in formulating monetary policy. @/ )
u rices th

| think there is a strong case to be made to referenc y financial policy links, as you suggest. |

just read an IMF paper you may have seen al%i&\z or Long" and\Risk-Taking (imf.org), which makes the
ar

argument “a ‘low for long’ monetary policy f: déoff bet tsterm output growth and medium-term
financial stability risks...(and)... This paper argue it is time i the endogenous buildup of macro-

financial vulnerabilities at the heart of %@v policvmak@ poses a parsimonious model to that effect.”
u .

e/options t h the RBNZ that speak to the link between
financial and monetary policy (and vatter, an qp also references coordination with fiscal).

The other question is referencing-distributional co , which has been the emphasis of government to date. Per
ii ost straightforward way to address this at a high level —
given the feedback from yesterday’s meeting. | am keen to

1al consequences of monetary policy or practices in other central
banks that we coulddraw on f iscuss this with Adrian. | think the question is more one of awareness and

i Is to manage it. As discussed, the PIIE panel had a few statements
on the importance

Policy and Ipe/mhj

discuss with us.

OVID-19 énd Beyand | Event | PIIE. I'm planning to contact PIIE to check if they are willing to

approach by 24 Feb?)

Natalie grateful for any ﬁ?%\c'pth and also indication of timing (Andrew mentioned MOF would like an agreed

Kind regards

Caralee

)
S

From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 19 January 2021 10:42 pm
To: Ben Gaukrodger [TSY] <Ben.Gaukrodger@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY]
<Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Caralee McLiesh [TSY] <Caralee.McLiesh@treasury.govt.nz>; Bryan Chapple
[TSY] <Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; James Beard [TSY]
<James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornton [TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>; Leona Feng [TSY]
<Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Matthew Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>; *Parliament: Natalie
Labuschagne <Natalie.Labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz>
Subject: Readout from MoF - Treasury Report: requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices

1
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Just resending as | had Natalie’s Tsy email and not her Parly one...

Natalie — see below

From: Neil Kidd [TSY]

Sent: Tuesday, 19 January 2021 10:41 PM

To: Ben Gaukrodger [TSY] <Ben.Gaukrodger@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova{TSY]
<Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Caralee McLiesh [TSY] <Cara|ee.McLiesh@az/e}wrv.govt.nD, Chapple

[TSY] <Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.phi|ip@he¥sﬁ/y./govt.nz>' a rd [TSY]
<James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornton [TSY] <Sam.Thornton@tr s,uﬁ;qovt.nb; Leona-Feng [TSY]

<Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Matthew Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt trfea\su}%govt.np;
<Natalie.Labuschagne@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: Readout from MoF - Treasury Report: requiring the Rese

abuschagne [TSY]

e Bank to have re o house prices

Natalie called me with MoF’s feedback on our report s t %l: s following his meeting with the
that'conversation. Natalie — you said
is email with-a ng I've missed or not quite

Governor earlier today. Given I’'m not in tomorrow | thoug
you would email round tomorrow, feel free to ju d 3
interpreted correctly if that suits better. § 3\/

ogres

Section 6

policy creates so gative consequences and it is appropriate that monetary and financial policy be coordinated
to tackle those consequences. Setting out an explicit expectation for coordination somewhere strikes me as useful —
it might be that this should be broader than just wrt house price considerations and is mirrored in the forthcoming
financial policy remit.

On the final su bove...| take this to mean: could we acknowledge somewhere in the remit that monetary
r(n: ne

| will pick up on Thursday
Neil

From: Neil Kidd [TSY]

Sent: Friday, 15 January 2021 1:53 PM

To: MParliament: Natalie Labuschagne <Natalie.Labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz>

Cc: Ben Gaukrodger [TSY] <Ben.Gaukrodger@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY]
<Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Caralee McLiesh [TSY] <Caralee.McLiesh@treasury.govt.nz>; Bryan Chapple
[TSY] <Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; James Beard [TSY]

2
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<James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: Draft Treasury Report: requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices

Hi Natalie,

Please find attached the draft TR on requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices. We are still awaiting
some further views from the Governor so we might have some things to add inal version. Either 'way, we will
provide a finalised version through the proper channels on Monday. @

Thanks

Neil

The information in this email is confidential to the Treasury, intended only for
addressee:

Q ba.egally privileged. If you are not an intended

\
Neil Kidd | Principal Advisor, Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | The Treasury
s9(2)(k) Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz i % @
%dr ee(s), and

%

a. please immediately delete this email and notify the Treasury by retu ikortelephone (64 4472 2
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From: Caralee McLiesh [TSY]

Sent: Thursday, 28 January 2021 12:29 PM
To: adrian.orr@rbnz.govt.nz

Subject: quick update on joint work

Kia ora Adrian é 5

A few points following from our conversation last Friday and my subsequent check-in
right direction at this point.
- The Minister confirmed he is comfortable with a forward-loo
will be doing” rather than “what we have done” beforee
- | believe we are all on the same page on requi

on financial policy remit, work to agree langua
stability links, and also options to referenc

Mi! All moving in the

rﬁg‘g sfor' remit y
op i ces with a focus on financial

policy tools as part of t
We should have (or
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From: Chris Bloor

To: Michael Thornley; Neil Kidd [TSY]; Renee Philip [TSY
Subject: MPC remit

Date: Thursday, 28 January 2021 4:44:57 pm
Attachments: Revised Remit for the Monetary Policy Committee.docx

Hi Neil and Renee,

We’ve had quite a bit and back and forth internally about directic
discussion with Adrian and Christian, we’ve come up with the &
we would like to go.

tOgo hthe re Afte
ed s the general direction

We're still doing a bit of work with legal, and likely to but would
appreciate your feedback about whether you and vith this general
approach.

We’'re meeting up with Adrian again tomo hts you could provide

Cheers,
Chris

pient please
e from your system.



mailto:Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz
mailto:Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz
mailto:Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz

The remit for the Monetary Policy Committee

Reserve Bank of New Zealand



The Government’s Economic Objective 	Comment by Christian Hawkesby: Update to 2021 Government Economic Objective



The Government’s economic objective is to improve the wellbeing and living standards of New Zealanders through a sustainable, productive and inclusive economy.  Our priority is to move towards a low carbon economy, with a strong diversified export base, that delivers decent jobs with higher wages and reduces inequality and poverty.



Context



Monetary policy plays an important role in supporting the Government’s economic objective. The Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 (the Act) requires that monetary policy promote the prosperity and wellbeing of New Zealanders, and contribute to a sustainable and productive economy. Monetary policy contributes to public welfare by reducing cyclical variations in employment and economic activity whilst maintaining price stability over the medium term.



This remit is issued by the Minister of Finance to the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) under Clause 3, Schedule 1 of the Act.

1)	Monetary Policy Objectives

a) Under Section 8 of the Act the Reserve Bank, acting through the MPC, is required to formulate monetary policy with the goals of maintaining a stable general level of prices over the medium term and supporting maximum sustainable employment.

2) 	Operational Objectives

a) For the purpose of this remit the MPC’s operational objectives shall be to: 

i. keep future annual inflation between 1 and 3 percent over the medium term, with a focus on keeping future inflation near the 2 percent mid-point. This target will be defined in terms of the All Groups Consumers Price Index, as published by Statistics New Zealand; and 

ii. support maximum sustainable employment. The MPC should consider a broad range of labour market indicators to form a view of where employment is relative to its maximum sustainable level, taking into account that the level of maximum sustainable employment is largely determined by non-monetary factors that affect the structure and dynamics of the labour market and is not directly measurable.

b) In pursuing the operational objectives, the MPC shall:

i. have regard to the efficiency and soundness of the financial system over the medium-term;

ii. seek to avoid unnecessary instability in output, interest rates, and the exchange rate; and

iii. discount events that have only transitory effects on inflation, setting policy with a medium-term orientation; and .

iv. outline how they have given effect to i-iii above, including any potential material impact the Government’s Economic Objectives or the Bank’s financial stability objectives. 

v. 

vi. 

vii. 

viii. 

ix. 



Agreed by











Hon Grant Robertson		Adrian Orr

Minister of Finance		Governor of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand 
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From: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 29 January 2021 1:34 pm

To: Neil Kidd [TSY]; Michael Thornley; Renee Philip [TSY]; Mario DiMaio [TSY]
Subject: RE: MPC remit

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hi Neil,

what lead to the direct reference to 68b.

Agree that this could look dated in the future. But there
stability remit later anyway, so can probably be addr.

We did think about the possibility of other s68b —we th gt‘th v
potential material impacts” wording. That is i ction is ir@o onetary policy, it can be disregarded as

not being material.

All sound reasonable? E %@

Cheers,
Chris

To: Chris Bloor <C hael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY]
<renee.philip@treas govt. [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: i

Hi Chris,

2 thoughts:

Section 68B is going
MPC should endur:

dated at that point?
Do you want thQ: app
policy, if used at a

The way around both these issues is just to use the exact wording of the section 68B and replicate it in the remit but
not to actually refer to section 68B.

er the power under section 68B disappears? Which might make the remit look a bit

y to any future section 68B direction too — which might have less relevance to monetary

Thoughts?

From: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 29 January 2021 12:39 PM

To: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Renee Philip
[TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: MPC remit
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Hi all,

After a lot of back and forth, we’ve got Adrian’s preferred option on the MPC remit. This option does tie closely back
to the s68b direction, so it may be hard to separate timing of advice on these.

One question: what do you want to do with the Government economic objective section? We're essentially leaving
that in your hands, but feel that the objective should marry up with the s68b direction.

ooking for Treas agreement
blée house pri@ sure how

Just a heads up: Adrian seems pretty keen to get the s68b sorted quickly, and,i
by end of Monday. He has a particular preference around something like s
this will fly with MoF.

Cheers,

Chris >
Q
From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 29 January 2021 12:22 PM

To: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Michael T o% ichael.Thopn rbnz.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY]
<renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TS rio iMaio@t(eas\unon{/t.np

Subject: RE: MPC remit

We are keen to put the proposed wording to lee to check he forttoday. Are you likely to have updated

wording today or should | just consult her-en wh u have alre
Thanks Q

From: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz:govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, 29 January 2021 1@

To: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@tre u%.govt.np'
[TSY] <renee.phi|ip@treaw\kqh/t}z>; Mar

el Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Renee Philip
TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: MPC remi

quicklw

We're also having a 2b or.f
act, so we are consideri
operational objectiv n.

Thanks for getting

We can regroup ing back from Adrian.

From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 29 January 2021 10:04 AM

To: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY]
<renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: MPC remit

Hi Chris, Mike,

Comments from us. At a high-level, we have no problem with what you have suggested but have a few questions.
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On this: “outline how they have given effect to i-iii above, including any potential material impact the Government’s
Economic Objectives or the Bank’s financial stability objectives”

¢ Do you need the words “or the Bank'’s financial stability objective”? Is that covered by 2bi?

e OQutlining how the MPC has had regard to i-iii and outlining the impact of the MPC’s decisions on the
government’s economic objective are quite different things. Should you separate those out? Or at least
should the word “including” be “and” instead. The Government’s economic objective isn’t included in the

things referred to? 3

On this: “have regard to the efficiency and soundness of the financial syste € mediu tﬂj%
— -/ )

~ N/
ergic reaction but we will need to

e What’s the thinking behind adding “medium term”? No im

explain.
e More broadly — do you want to update this sentence t a&gﬁy\vith the fina ility objective in the new
Bill? Might avoid any further remit changes after the i d?

We will need to update the Government economic obj
what the wording of the section 68B is going to be to eqf@/e\can

Finally, we will still want the report to present t twina ive option of hi
I think at a high level the choice for MoF is whether he-wants the
them. And the report should give advice on that. ')

%@(}nor goes aL
(N
\\\;i‘/‘

Let me know how the discussion with
Neil

(X
N )
From: Chris Bloor <Chris.Blo r?{rb&j{cwt.np RN
Sent: Thursday, 28 Jan%m:ﬁ PM
To: Michael Thornley <Mi Jhornley@rbnz.g
[TSY] <renee.phiIip@trea%nv/g/ovt.np
Subject: MPC re

Hi Neil and e'@ne\e;,\ %
. 7 /
ck

T
We've had quite-d bit and t;ag g@@orth internally about direction to go with the remit. After discussion with Adrian

and Christian, we’ve co th/(?me attached as the general direction we would like to go.

We’'re still doing a bi with legal, and likely to do a bit of wordsmithing, but would appreciate your feedback
about whether you a he Minister would be happy with this general approach.

D
We're meeting hg y?i‘ Adrian again tomorrow at 10.15 — any early thoughts you could provide by then would be

helpful, but not essential.

Cheers,
Chris

"This message (and any files transmitted with it) are confidential and
may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient please
notify the sender immediately and delete this message from your system.

This message does not necessarily reflect the views of the
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Reserve Bank of New Zealand. If the recipient has any concerns about
the content of this message they should seek alternative confirmation
from the Reserve Bank of New Zealand."

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE &
-

LC )
\ ) L.
Qx\l\e\ge(y privileged. If you

T~
(64 4 472 273 Yo

are not an intended addressee:
a. please immediately delete this email and notify the Treasury by return email @
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From: Neil Kidd [TSY]

Sent: Monday, 30 November 2020 8:32 pm

To: Leona Feng [TSY]; Renee Philip [TSY]

Cc: Dasha Leonova [TSY]; Siobhan Duncan [TSY]

Subject: RE: Summary of catch-up on RBNZ and housi

Follow Up Flag: Follow up % 7&
Flag Status: Flagged @

Thanks Leona — | found this really useful. | jotted down a few of y\thoug below in{case useful, in red. Not sure
we landed a view on whether we were sending this to anyone £€.g.) s? | can trim back a‘touch if we do decide to
do that.

Neil

From: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govts @/ @

Sent: Monday, 30 November 2020 6:04 PM

To: Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt: ,\ eil Kidd [TS
Cc: Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@tr ry.govt.nz>; Siobhan

[TSY]
<Siobhan.Duncan@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: Summary of catch-up on RBN@sing O b
Hi Renee, Neil \\/CJ/
Below is our summary nat today an — I think the last two points were actions for Macro to test
with Housing.

I'll also get in toy bie to se : OE is okay with us sharing our A3 (without the last column on
i NZ;

Treasury recommendations) with the RB

Cheers
Leona
e The Minister ting the RBNZ to respond to his letter before Christmas. It is not yet known how the
RBNZ will r: he Minister’s letter, but MoF’s office has indicated that Treasury may be asked for

Z's upcoming response. We may need to prepare advice and provide options to the

advice
Minist r@bﬁ hort notice.
e  Whilst w d to do some further work, our tentative view is that requiring the MPC to have regard to

instability in house prices when formulating monetary policy is unlikely to have a significant impact on house
price growth. The MPC will still be required to formulate monetary policy to achieve their objectives of price
stability and maximum sustainable employment and the requirement “to have regard to house prices”
would be unlikely to significantly alter their approach, especially as the Act stipulates that any “having
regard to” requirements must not be inconsistent with the MPC’s economic objectives. Further, if they did
significantly alter their approach to setting monetary policy, this could come at significant costs in terms of
their price and employment objectives. Although we have not done a full cost-benefit analysis of this trade-
off, our view is informed by the leaning against the wind literature which finds significant costs when
deviating from monetary policy targeted at price and employment objectives. The possible caveat to this is
the extent to which AMP tools could be designed so as to provide more targeted economic stimulus. Much
of the impact of AMP tools to date has worked through the standard, broad interest rate channels (e.g.
LSAPs) but we still need to explore whether some tools could feasibly be designed so as to avoid pressure on
the housing market, without losing effectiveness.

1
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e It's possible the RBNZ's response may point to alternative measures in the financial stability space, such as
debt-to-income tools, or even the section 68B power which could change their mandate to consider broader
matters beyond financial stability. Presently, the RBNZ states it does not have a mandate to target house
price growth.

e Either way ,we want to be ready to identify alternative options that could be explored. Requiring the Bank
to consider government objectives on housing when conducting macroprudential policy may create less of a
trade-off with other objectives e.g. requiring them to have regard to broader government objectives on
housing would be an additional consideration —and would not necessarily conflict with theipfi

Treasury needs to consider what options it could put forward to the'|
on RBNZ tools that could address the issue of rising house price

f furtheradvice

c .
hether set}téq}g@?B is viable;

what this would achieve, the benefits (potential downward i ouse prices, % A/are likely to be
marginal) and costs/risks (as a big impact on house prices is unlik risks to stability ar e&pected to be
small, but these policies could have an impact on the inv stor funded parts o market like the rental

.

government objectives were being targeted.

AMea thin h obticons-inthe RBNZs-finan

3 ancial policy-sbace b ,-‘es‘,.er 3 AL 0 6 3y

W ay A M O FHoHRetd v.v,- v—d c-couta—aay \ Bod
o oh“t;lree but d above]
e Like most of the initiatives aimed at reducing-.investor deman sing, it would be useful to have a

tal market, so that we understand any

renta
—
ether reducing investor demand is the right objective
the housing market and rental prices.

e policy objectives for this work and do further analysis of
e broader housing market (home ownership vs rental

the implications of r q‘qge\d}ﬁvestor dems
market and mu i elopment%\e d to rely more on investor funding).

rental prices — but may also be of less demand for
home ownership). :
e However if we do further
from the housing work perspect
e We think that the H ir\m‘g /\y‘ls should
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From: Matthew Galt [TSY]
Sent: Tuesday, 12 January 2021 6:47 pm

To: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Monetary policy remit - sensitive S

Hi Neil, & ?5\/

I've been trying to write a useful email but have bee gt:rhggllng to get it in-a:logical order and
I'd like to go home now. So | thought I'd just send t Pve got |/cas rou’re online later.

understanding of MOF’s objectives, V&d

instability in house prices”. %
) )

| agree that it would seem M Jectlves are
- Supporting first ho @er&; who are s I
large mortgages tially Iarg/e m\fe\ st costs should interest rates rise in the
coming decad/es> |

- Leanmg agalrkst{be\a ge and re

*d note tha entirely agre%

first home o ould be given litt r policy purposes (and hopefully not just because |
owhn a housel). While first home buyers do tend to be reasonably well off,

aces I/ke%uckl ind and Wellington, | would expect that enormous and random

s of the % ee/ng 5200k-300k for an Auckland house for example —

tain a fair society Where contributions are rewarded On/y a

oj/her policy choices that has led to it, ie. the fa///ng neutral interest
rate, high tre ‘ t/on growth, and the Way the p/annmg and tax system treats housing.

to thcf; 17\ heredistribution is predominantly going towards the most very well off fraction of
s0ci roperty owners who have for the most part already profited from previous bouts of
house price inflation, and (2) not long ago it was possible for fairly low income earners to buy a
house in many regional parts of NZ (down to about the fourth income decile) so the lift in prices
is not exclusively impacting high income earners.

As for how it could achieve MOF’s objectives, I've put the various options in the table below
and added my comments. Overall, as mentioned earlier, | actually think adding house prices to
the remit is a good idea, and that it would make the objectives of monetary policy better
specified.

Option Matt’s comments
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Give greater weight to
house prices as part of the
Bank’s objective of
“achieving and maintaining
stability in the general level
of prices over the medium
term"

Page 45 of 169

e Asyou’ve noted, in my view, owner-occupied
housing costs are underweighted in the CPI —
specifically the cost of owner-occupied urban land
doesn’t enter the CPI. There would appear to have

of house prices rise \\j /“

e This means that NZ has probably&é@n\b\;@tting
monetary policy"?:%% I

l{fﬂoe viewed as cI ssic.

ation-expectations.arepegged at 2%,

urprises the publ c\o e upside, with

5] ociated e \.\g.ipa“ndom
'\utions of wealth(H er, systematically

t
unde ating inflatio ssures has more than
me sated for t Wl?—p’leasurement
%d ‘have r house prices’ is an indirect
A

r this. It’s probably the most

agre‘.{tha\t ng regard for house prices will
n sénl)y)ead to worse macroeconomic outcomes
n whole.

<x\j\{ol}ld likely be counterproductive — monetary policy

% obably couldn’t permanently lean against house
prices to any material extent without creating a
deflationary spiral

rggr@e\a/ffordablllt

stchome buyers/ 7

Y

[ ~O\
RN \
N

e A bit too specific and probably hard for the RBNZ to
know what to do with it. On the one hand higher
interest rates would help first home buyers with their
deposit and reduce the amount of debt they have to
take on. On the other hand, lower interest rates
could help with servicing a mortgage. (Although
empirically, this cycle, the drop in mortgage servicing
costs has already been fully capitalised into house
prices, so in this instance FHBs are worse off on both
the deposit and the serviceability fronts).

Have regard for asset prices

e Possibly a better formulation as its more
encompassing. However, | think house prices are
different to asset prices because they’re a
consumption good: no one needs stocks to live, but
you do generally need to rent or own housing. So it’s
more important to adequately include house prices
than other asset prices. And housing is the biggest
asset class in NZ, and considering other asset classes

is out of scope of this advice anyway.

Doc 16
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Thoughts on the proposal in general: Financial policy remit

For financial stability, | think it should be specified more precisely in terms of housing

affordability, something like “have regard to housing affordability for’[target group]”.

target group could be some combination of first home buyers, own (

think a more specific target would suit the financial policy remit beca ere are a wider,

range of tools with financial stability policy that can be aimedmore precisely at he\\\f)/}

government’s objectives. Eg. lower deposits for owner-oc han investors. I\st;fﬁ’\t}fhink it
0

would be helpful to simply ask financial policy to stabilise house prices in g@?}a{éwomdn't

give the RBNZ a mandate to favour first home buyer %\by\\er particular coharts. Though there
may be no harm in asking financial stability policy o all-three of (1) support-financial
stability (2) mitigate instability in house prices ( Jp’im ctice this is
probably what financial stability policy has triec

er the Ia%{e’gm or so.

Impact of falling interest rates on rents P~
N Z?_ .
t%ffa ling interest rates on rents,
t

| haven’t seen much work trying to i %ﬂ(
but here’s what | would expect to &eh/in rough 1 significance of the effects:
1. First order effect: a d ’p"m\intéf’est rates should have roughly no impact on rents
because the drop i r@rd/s' desired r /ields should match the drop in the
required return fo . Rents s‘/l’z#/t
equilibrate r tal\y\ggis and interest rates.

a. Tbére\m\éy,/b'e upward on rents because lower interest rates will
ﬁ“c\\ rage net housi g'"'(,,,,gp area/bedrooms) to be removed from the rental

farket as first homeb s purchase and owner-occupiers move, each on
rage trading up in'the process. This effect isn’t very well studied but | did
There should-be downward pressure on rents in the long term because lower

. A \ \\\\\ .
. intere rét%é ake development more economic and encourages greater
ﬂ"*/ hO}J»SJ'rF) (if supply is able to respond)

Of these two\s&ca order effects, | think (a) would probably outweigh (b) in the short
to me term in NZ, giving rise to modest upward pressure on rents.
3. Be fects (probably third order):

igher asset prices may lead to higher rents if landlords are slow to update
eir required percentage returns.
—~ On the other hand, price rises may lead to slower rent increases if landlords
\\\g/‘ feel like they’re making enough from capital gains or charge low rent to be
— nice or get higher quality tenants.

c. Turnover in the housing stock tends to rise when interest rates drop, and
turnover tends to be associated with faster increases in rents (a behavioural
effect as its easier for landlords to reprice with new tenants, and/or landlords
with the highest assessed rent on a property are more likely to buy).

Empirically, rents tend to rise at the same time as interest rates. However, this is probably
general inflation pressures causing the lift in interest rates rather than interest rates causing
the lift in rents.

The 2012 PTA
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The 2012 PTA had the following in it:

“In pursuing the objective of a stable general level of prices, the Bank shall monitor prices,
including asset prices, as measured by a range of price indices. The price stability target will be
defined in terms of the All Groups Consumers Price Index (CPI), as published by Statistic&

Zealand.”

I've seen some commentary about this. It looks to me like a fairl use that we A
wouldn’t want to use, and is not specifically about house pri ight be rfhndt/wg
this used to be in the PTA for completeness. & g\/
Novelty

| agree that in a sense what MOF is con5|der|ng i

entirely out of step: ]

e I’'m not entirely sure, but | think it

regard to asset prices when settin
objectives).

e There is a wide variety in

i f ntral banks to have
if. not stated in their

via the CPI /

O\
Impact of exchange of Iettaé&l\thé market:

You asked what mpapttja
this in the table belowba/se\d n RBNZ
longer term trenc(s m mt/reét rates. If

double chec%m\gbdt this is &

r\had on market interest rates. I've summarised
ing markets reports (attached) and shown the

1t to quote these in the advice it might pay to
neral market response:

xpected OCR \LO>year Exchange rate | Other events impacting
in 2021 bond yield interest rates that day
Reléase of Up 9by @ow Up 11bp NzZD/USD The move happened
8?—"5 Q%;\/ (from +0.7% immediately after the
d the/Bank’ /020 0.81% to release of MOF’s letter.
initial’respons ﬁr\sijm bly 0.91%) Furthermore, markets
(24 Novemb \ome/ generally rose that day,
nding) but interest rates in
other countries changed
PN by far less than in NZ,
( r"\\\ suggesting the move was
\\J/“ attributable to the
N MOF’s letter
Bank’s letter No change Down 2bp No change Routine volatility of US
back (11 to 0.88% congress debating fiscal
December) stimulus, Brexit,

24 November:
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11 December

I hope tp orry it couldn’t be more thought through.
Chee@
Matt

From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 12 January 2021 10:30 am

To: Angus Hawkins [TSY] <Angus.Hawkins@treasury.govt.nz>; Ben Gaukrodger [TSY]
<Ben.Gaukrodger@treasury.govt.nz>; Matthew Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Monetary policy remit - sensitive

I've been thinking a little more since last night...
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| wonder if the justification for changes rather than levels is that the Bank are considering
changes to the OCR away from the neutral rate in order to hit their economic objectives. It is
the neutral rate that, in part, determines house prices in the medium term (assuming housing
supply is constrained) and not the short term changes to the OCR around the neutral rate, The
Bank can’t do much about the neutral rate (the level of house price ut they can conside
the impact on house price changes in moving the OCR away fro

| ~noting t?lg es
will only be short-term impacts if the OCR eventually returns to tk | rate. In r
words, they could look to take the peaks and troughs off the akin to the wte.

On your alternative —isn’t that what the Bank already 407 — to the extentt e

s — but that
could be solved). So if CPIl is 2% and housing co eﬁz lem with
house cost inflation? Even if there were, presuma /fVation in the rest of

the bundle of goods and services? Or are yot ing that som us ds spend more on
housing than others (poorer households) a e ket is not a
O

representative basket? If that was th m_though, wh f1\;>>c just housing costs —and
not just make them consider diffe@ for different.groups somehow?

And a question in red below.., ‘
TR
From: Angus Hawkins [T Hawkins @treas) %;govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 12 Jan 021 9:29 AM '&)B/
To: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Nei Kfohsl treasuryz@ﬁhz »-Ben Gaukrodger [TSY]
<Ben.Gaukrodget@ﬁ&asﬁfy/govt.nzx \}@ Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: M e\%yjﬁicy remi @i\
Cheers. | think ructure Iook% | agree on your fourth bullet in particular — the choice
of targe Wlty struck me as odd in the original letter, as the objective is surely levels.
ingi how the b treats the exchange rate might be helpful — the ‘seek to avoid
in exehange rates’ provision in the current remit doesn’t prevent the
Ak argeting sustained appreciation/depreciation for monetary policy objectives, it just

That said ing levels increases the risk of a conflict with the core monetary policy
objective is probably a bad idea. The only alternative | can think of (which would have
quit tggf\ economic implications) would be a new bullet under section 2(b) of the remit
along\::r ines of: “have regard to impact of monetary policy on housing costs” — with the
intentio at housing costs refers to rents and mortgage servicing costs, i.e. the consumption
value rather than the asset prices. I'd see the advantages being:

e Loose monetary policy will tend to reduce housing costs for owner occupiers, but raise
it for renters (through higher assets prices — do higher asset prices raise rents? If
prices are up b/c interest rates are low, then haven’t house prices risen for a given
level of rent?) so the conflict with monetary policy objectives is less direct, and it may
worker better as a distributional objective.
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e It could be met through more thorough consideration of how housing costs enter CPI,
and considering (alongside CPI) measures of inflation that place greater weight on
housing costs.

e There could be a distributional/living standards case to be made focusing on thos
aspects would help the most distressed households at the sha
crisis, rather than otherwise quite well off first time buye

I’'m not convinced this is better wording, and may not meet Mo
in the interests of getting more options on the table. «

| have one other thought I'll talk to you about. <§\L,\

Thanks,
Angus

Angus Hawkins | Macroeconomic & Fi
Tel: s9(2)(k)

From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil. Kldd@treasurv govt. nz/S N

Sent: Monday, 11 January \PM %W

To: Ben Gaukrodger [TS %rodger@U&a \,govt nz>; Angus Hawkins [TSY]

<Angus.Hawkins@treasur 6’//?12> Mat @a t)TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: Monetary pq%;e% - sensitiv
RV

<%/ N
brain dump = Meuate your thoughts

<( frgm MoF’s fﬁc e would like advice — ideally this week — on the wording of the
hou rice add|t| o<the onetary policy remit. This would be a relatively focussed piece of
an/d less so on the pros and cons of adding house price considerations
to the remit/Nata as clear th|s was about the MP remlt but | think it should probably also

THIS IS SENSI

Thls'

r avice if he wants it. There’s nothing going over from the housing team that
— so will have to be standalone.

request

we an{%\k

I think perh/aps structure of the report should be:

e Context — MoF wrote to RB proposing change and RB wrote back with their suggestion
that would prefer this be a financial policy issue.

e Ourview: The MPC do already consider house prices but largely to the extent that it
impacts on CPI or affects monetary policy transmission, as opposed to the welfare
impacts that high house prices create —the way the MPC considers house prices
probably does not therefore align with the Ministers concerns. Requiring the RB to
have regard to house prices when setting monetary policy is more likely to create a
conflict between their economic objectives and consideration of house prices —in
some scenarios, particularly at present when house prices are high and growing but
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unemployment is elevated and CPI inflation is below the midpoint. Given that the
house price requirement is just a “have regard to” — in these circumstances the Bank
probably won’t place much weight on it. If they did place significant weight on it, it is
likely to come at the cost of their other economic objectives. There is less likely to be a
fundamental conflict between the financial stability objecti d controlling h

prices.
e Understand that MoF wants to put a reference to house p oth the n(memry
policy and financial policy remits. This advice specifica cusses on th qués(cl ﬁpf

use p ices.

\@rhment ObJeCtIV ~the.Minister wants
rtorfcerned e impact that

ality, then house’\m\es ould only

e Ministers objective is
e buyers —and that

this impact is what you would like th i account when setting

e What wording to choose depends on what g
the Bank to have regard to — if the Minister
monetary policy might have on levels o
capture one part ofthat impact, for exc

monetary policy. Where doe s is to add “to seek to avoid
unnecessary instability in sts to me that the Bank would
con5|der the |mpact on cha e m/house pr| esar uld need to have regard to

on’t crash the ;lrg market. Con5|derat|on of levels is
5 rn about housing affordability. But
)have allong-run material impact on house price
als, but they could have an impact on short term
n the OCR create instability in house prices as

they are even/fe';/s 0 be abl
levels, whlchks@x@n y fundame!

g different for the financial policy remit (bearing in
3 have 2 thoughts: 1. the same wording is an option — have
srice-instability. Changes in interest rates are a source of that
'\-§gﬁ(encourage the RB to use financial policy tools to limit that

d go further — given there is less of a trade-off between financial
rices — what about “have regard to housmg affordability (for first

N better option? Or we could be silent on this issue and just say we will provide

‘//a\ﬁa r draft of the FP remit?

O\Shohld we say that internationally this would be quite novel — especially for the MP
remit?

\

Thanks
Neil

Neil Kidd | Principal Advisor, Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | The Treasury
Tel: s9(2)(k) | Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz

The information in this email is confidential to the Treasury, intended only for the addressee(s), and may also be legally privileged.
If you are not an intended addressee:
a. please immediately delete this email and notify the Treasury by return email or telephone (64 4 472 2733);
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NZ news: Finance Minister Robertson suggests change to RBNZ Remit - including
of house prices;

NZD and NZ rates
higher on correspondence from the Minister of Finance to the RBNZ
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The NZD/USD appreciated by 0.7% yesterday, to a multi-year high, following the
release of correspondence from Finance Minister Robertson to the RBNZ regarding a
potential change to the wording of the Bank’s remit. On the release, the NZD/USD
reached a high of 0.6984 as stops were triggered. The surprise also caused investors to

rising by 9bps.
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From: Matthew Galt [TSY]
Sent: Wednesday, 13 January 2021 2:59 pm
To: Neil Kidd [TSY]; Dasha Leonova [TSY]; Leona Feng [TSY]; Sam Thornton [TSY]; Daniel

Jury [TSY]; Ben Gaukrodger [TSY]; Angus Hawkins [TSY]

Subject: RE: adding house prices to the RB remits
Yo i>

Hi all,

I think this paper is shaping up well and | think it adequately captGres-my comments. I'v

the new document here: Treasury Report: Requiring the Reséﬁ/)e ankto have rEéiéFeL \E6use prices MG comments
(K \

(Treasury:4402836v1) |[Add to worklist o \ ) )
3 \ \\\,J/
ot
ing/that my thi bout the components of the CPI are
'y
7

I'll double check with someone in forecasting and m
accurate without explaining the context of this wark gi sensitivity {I've this section largely as Neil had it as
it incorporated my comments, with just a few \Aé?\dl\ suggestions). \V -

A few other comments that | haven’t tracked&ﬂqéy're not a

e | wonder if we should commen O%Nt other cou '@?}d\ :
mandates before Christmas but recall the results. My
single out house prices, | do (it would be i ’t?e{}'g ionally unusual to consider asset prices when
formulating monetary pﬂigf/—;—q since hou \lx\}/’g’dominant asset class this might mean the proposal is
only a bit removed f?Q[ﬁfthef(mﬁinstream this might already be captured by the financial stability
clause in the remit). I;I@\gh;‘a so be worthbri mentioning the asset price reference in the 2012 remit.

ents imply shouldn’t have been removed, but it was quite a weak clause so

écommend reinsta ‘ “In pursuing the objective of a stable general level of prices,

or prices, including asset prices, as measured by a range of price indices. The price

be defin?d\[q f the All Groups Consumers Price Index (CPI), as published by

Zealand.” \%/

ow lowe est rates impact rents — | assume this was more for background than for
pape‘r(\lr’—v/efo ined my thinking below FYI, although | haven’t seen any comprehensive

external analysis p&ﬁ@\e%/c\h effect together the way | have below.

7

N
The causal impact tih‘\a

_/
Here’s what | would expect to happen, in rough order of the significance of the effects:
1. First order effect: a drop in interest rates should have roughly no impact on rents because the drop in
landlords’ desired rental yields should match the drop in the required return for investors, and rents are set
by balancing demand for accommodation with supply for accommodation, not interest rates. Therefore

rents stay the same and house prices undergo an upward level shift to equilibrate rental yields and returns

on other assets.

2. Second order effects:
a. There may be upward pressure on rents because lower interest rates will encourage net housing

(floor area/bedrooms) to be removed from the rental market as first home buyers purchase and
owner-occupiers move, each on average trading up in the process using the extra purchasing power
from lower interest rates. This effect isn’t very well studied but | did see one RBA paper that
outlined how this effect had occurred in supply-constrained US cities.

Cheers,
Matt

ng interest rates on rents
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b. There should be downward pressure on rents in the long term because lower interest rates would
make development more economic and encourage greater housing supply (if supply is able to
respond)

Of these two second order effects, | think (a) would probably outweigh (b) in the short to medium term in
NZ, giving rise to modest upward pressure on rents following a drop in interest rates.
3. Behavioural effects (probably third order):

a. Higher asset prices may lead to higher rents if landlords are slow to update their required
percentage returns and try to push through rent increases.

b. On the other hand, price rises may lead to slower rent increasés’if landlords feel lj ey’re making

gher quality te,nams
g,-and turnov tgn@ to be

enough from capital gains or charge low rent to be nice or g
c. Turnover in the housing stock tends to rise when prices ate

obably rei{e tha(t it is easier for

e highest as el/rent on a property

associated with faster increases in rents (a behaviour
landlords to reprice with new tenants, and/or land| ith
are more likely to buy).
Empirically, rents tend to rise at the same time as interest rat
pressures causing the lift in both rents and interest rates ra

neral inflation

N _
. However, this is p babry
g the lift in rents.

|r/erest ra;/és éa\ i

From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil Kidd@treasury.govt.nz> / @

Sent: Tuesday, 12 January 2021 9:36 pm
To: Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@trea S(?] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>;
5}@\4 Daniel. Jury@treasury.govt.nz>; Ben

TSY] <Angus.Hawkins@treasury.govt.nz>;

Sam Thornton [TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasur
Gaukrodger [TSY] <Ben.Gaukrodger@treas

Hi All,

Attached is the TR. I've it in e-copy as we ink b/c imanage was being difficult and I’'m concerned the link
won’t work. If it d or prefer WS in the imanage version (it should be about 5 and a half pages long

iring the B@Q& ank to have regard to house prices (Treasury:4402242v1) |Add to worklist,

%}aﬁs but is at a good point to get comments. I’'m not working tomorrow but | will

2\
Treasury Re&ﬁ/tR

It still needs a bit of polishing

pick up comments tom evening and then probably try to turn this into a version for Bryan and Caralee either
Wednesday night or day morning. You are strongly encouraged to get stuck in and draft some text into this (in
tracked changes pI equally discouraged from providing high level comments that would be hard to

address. ,/

Matt — I’'m not 5\641{@ justice to your very thorough set of comments you sent me, so please do feel free to get
stuck into the document and draft something — not least b/c it would seem you are the most open to the idea of
adding house prices to the MPC remit, and I’'m concerned that | don’t give it enough of a hearing.

Thanks
Neil

Neil Kidd | Principal Advisor, Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | The Treasury
Tel: s92)(k) | Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz

The information in this email is confidential to the Treasury, intended only for the addressee(s), and may also be legally privileged. If you are not an intended
addressee:

a. please immediately delete this email and notify the Treasury by return email or telephone (64 4 472 2733);

b. any use, dissemination or copying of this email is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

2
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From: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 26 November 2020 3:24 pm

To: Matthew Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>; @Macroeconomic and Fiscal Policy
<MacroeconomicAndFiscalPolicy@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: House prices and the RBNZ's Remit - Damned if they d mned if they dc&

\\J
These are good points. When you read the monetary poI iew from th|s phaset

description of Graeme’s decisions are nowhere to be fou y that. e the R sbanks
approach to getting an external assessment of the ¢ é\ct of monetary % regular

Thanks Matt

intervals. Even Stephan Ingves —s9(2)(g)(i)
acknowledged the Riksbank conduct of policy i was wro
r poI|t|caIIy driven but
ore like below. To be
ill'be_time to work through

I haven’t followed all the informed comm
harmless because it will have no impact.ond
honest | would prefer the former to t
exactly what this might mean in th
costs of seeking to minimise finanC| istupti ghiinterest rates are a net negative for
growth. However, given the ge of tools i ’he RBNZ’s kit now (including FLP) perhaps
there are some choices that E\\th fewer co ts<> W\7
€ entar ?}et less pressure interest rates would be
through an easier f|sé\?®l\c\ 1 f us have discussed before.
</
In otherw }H’s arisk bega to uilc

price-setti age formation would begin to weaken — that the
or that has bee important part of the favourable developments in

w nce the ea 990s crisis would begin to slip. As the basic premise of
i o anchor long-term inflation expectations at the target,

it urgent to bring inflation back up towards 2 per cent fairly
HLRETE

Interestingly one way sugg

p that the role of the inflation target as

e clear that the Riksbank needed to focus entirely on the task of
confidence in the inflation target. Consequently, there was no longer any
Jdlng a policy that “leans against the wind”. As a result, the Riksbank
ate quite rapidly down to —0.50 per cent and also began to purchase
s ial volumes of government bonds, particularly in relation to the size of the
ign’debt. This of course did not mean that we ceased to concern ourselves with
blems associated with debt and housing prices. Throughout this entire period,
ave highlighted this development in our communication as a significant risk in the
edish economy that needs to be dealt with but that we do not have the scope to
address under the prevailing circumstances.

Mario

From: Matthew Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 26 November 2020 12:00 PM

To: @Macroeconomic and Fiscal Policy <MacroeconomicAndFiscalPolicy@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: FW: House prices and the RBNZ's Remit - Damned if they do, damned if they don't
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FYI — | think this is pretty good analysis

From: Westpac 1Q <financialmarkets@email6.westpac.com.au>

Sent: Thursday, 26 November 2020 9:22 am

To: Matthew Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: House prices and the RBNZ's Remit - Damned if they oi?l ned'if they dan!
S

Westpac IQ: Insights delivered to you.

House prices and the
RBNZ's Remit -
Damned if they do,
damned if they don't

i A ominick Stephens
% hed 7:06AM, 26 Nov 2020
NZ Chief %@Dominick Stephens's thoughts on the exchange of letters

betwee% ster of Finance and the Governor of the RBNZ.
Re r

e The Minister of Finance proposes changing the RBNZ’s Remit, as is his
right.

e The RBNZ's main goals will still be inflation and employment.

e Watching out for house prices will make the RBNZ more gradualist.

e That makes near-term OCR cuts less likely. Our OCR forecast is under
review.
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e However, we still favour monetary easing at some point due to the closed
border, low inflation, the rising exchange rate, the L unning out of fu

et al.
g their in@

e Central banks that pursue side goals usually end.u
targets and have to play catch-up later.

e The RBNZ could nix house price inflation i tant by lifting inte
rates...
e ... but that would boost the exchange rate; ¢reate unempl nd

cause deflation.

e Itis great to see the government ging the rte est rates in
pushing up house prices.

e However, changing the Remi ake muc to long-run
interest rates or house pri

overnor “- serve Bank has thrown a

forecasters. The Minister

ra 55 b ng house prices. He
Remitthat would add house prices to
oid’unnecessary instability in,

» ge rate.

The Minister of Finance’s lettérto
spanner in the works for financ

ent targets, but it is not going to make a great deal of difference to the
level of interest rates or house prices.

Near-term OCR cutslesslikely.

After this change to the Remit, the RBNZ will continue to pursue its medium-term
inflation target, but it may take a more gradual approach to getting there. That
might make the RBNZ less gung-ho about lowering interest rates in the near term.
We were forecasting OCR cuts in April, May and August, but that timing now looks
less likely. We are reviewing our OCR forecasts and will update them in due
course.
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During the Covid crisis the RBNZ's approach has been “least regrets”. They have

judged the cost of overshooting the inflation and employme Jets SS
than the cost of an undershoot.

That was appropriate during the darkest days of th
different now. If it does turn out that the RBNZ has over-
about inflation. This means that the RBNZ
before easing monetary policy any furthers

Another possibility is that the RBNZ
Programme (FLP) in order to skew-i
banks might be allowed access4
their lending to businesses. This s\t atthe Reserve Bank of

Australia has taken, and was wha happen prior to the last

Monetary Policy State he RBNZ doés-of ore stimulus next year, this
might be the way it goes:
Central banks can’t/ch ature. @

olds interest rates too high or too low in pursuit of some side
o find that inflation drifts away from target. It then has to play

During the mid-2000s, then-Governor Alan Bollard was concerned about the high
exchange rate and yawning current account deficit, and so became very reluctant
to hike the OCR further. The eventual result was that inflation rose well above
target, requiring bigger OCR hikes later to rein inflation back in. The exchange rate
still rose.

In the mid-2010s then-Governor Graeme Wheeler was concerned that lower
interest rates would exacerbate house price inflation, and so became reluctant to
cut rates. During Wheeler’s tenure inflation remained consistently below target,
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and the RBNZ was eventually forced to cut the OCR well below their own lines in

the sand. House prices still rose. &
order to p@@
was’eventua "‘i

orthereal exchange
governo % iS how

hanges in things

apidly meeting the inflation

erapid-changes in interest

Also in the mid-2010s, Sweden tried keeping interest rate
a house price boom. The result was deflation, and Sw
to reduce policy rates below zero.

assiduously to pursue the inflation targe k
inflation tends to vary more, but (argua e\ e

ice octusing on

other, sqoner rather than later."The Reserve Bank could nix rising house prices
by lifting.interest rates. But that would send the exchange rate through

s well as causing;more unemployment and deepening the recession — all
% avention «: NZ’s other side goals.
et

roublei RBNZ has many side goals but only one tool (the OCR,
all just variations on the theme of influencing private sector

. The exchange rate is already rising as financial markets give up on
RBNZ cutting the OCR in the future. As the exchange rate rises

The RB anding list of%%ials are going to come into conflict with one
an
i

favour OCR cuts at some point. The damage Covid has done to the
tourism sector has created a huge hole in economic demand. The non-tourism part
of the economy may be doing well, but we are still not completely convinced that
medium-term inflation is on track. To make matters worse, the recent rise in the
exchange rate and wholesale interest rates amounts to a de facto tightening of
monetary policy that will constrain the economy and inflation. And finally, the
RBNZ's Large Scale Asset Purchase Programme (LSAP) is going to run out of fuel
and will have to be replaced with another form of monetary easing.
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Playing by therules.

focus on inflation and employment, which is written i
inflation and employment goals — it sets out the rule
Committee must play. The Minister decides the i ge it
i etter).

Before 2019 things were different. The RBNZ's poficy-1 u: :: d jointly

enthere was a

Changing the Remit is not an infring
independence, although it doe
However, | was less comfort

alternative monetary tools the
aspect of the letter did fe
rather than leaving the'R

its goals. That particular
ow it should meet its goals,

Read more

Thi uld know:
ect your privacy. If you do not wish to receive any further financial market commentary,

please’click here to manage your preferences or click here to unsubscribe from just this publication.
© 2018 Westpac Banking Corporation ABN. 33 007 457 141 AFSL and Australian credit licence
233714.

Each time someone visits our site, data is captured so that we can accurately evaluate the quality of
our content and make improvements for you. We may at times use technology to capture data about
you to help us to better understand you and your needs, including potentially for the purposes of
assessing your individual reading habits and interests to allow us to provide suggestions regarding
other reading material which may be suitable for you.
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Disclaimer
This material contains factual information only and is not intended to reflect any recommendation or
financial advice. To the extent that this material contains any general advie as been prepare

one of Westpac or
rmation, or otherwise

an Australian“Financial Services Licence (No. 233714). This material is
e and in your capacity as a client of Westpac.

WNZL). Neither Westpac nor its other subsidiaries guarantee or otherwise
nce of WNZL in respect of any such product. The current disclosure statements
aland branch of Westpac and WNZL can be obtained at the internet address

(alelrom your Relationship Manager) for any product for which a Product Disclosure
Statement is required, or applicable customer agreement. Download the Westpac NZ QFE Group
Financial Advisers Act 2008 Disclosure Statement at www.westpac.co.nz.
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From: Matthew Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, January 13, 2021 11:14:22 AM
To: Chris Parker [TSY] <Chris.Parker@treasury.govt.nz>; Bastiaan van der Scheer [TSY]

<Bastiaan.vanderScheer@treasury.govt.nz>; Gabrielle Groube
o s

<Gabrielle.Groube@treasury.govt.nz>
(¢

Subject: RE: Media Release: Reserve Bank's response to Minister o

>

Thanks Chris, yes it is bizarre. | expect the CPl would be a bit'higher'~perhaps a ra\éigfzj
rather than a bit below, with spikes when prices really shot up.in 2015/16 and n W@fﬁ ug
would depend a bit on the methodology (eg. imputed rents vs'd
Do you know where | could get data on nationwid

ect cost).
N
ol % |

a idential tst0 test this
out? C
I’'m feeling emboldened on this because | @in rents %measured back when |
was at the Bank. And when they revie xﬁé}n methodo 018 it turned out that |

@%mei

>

it

w <
was right (not that the change was d % luence, ju nce!)

)
From: Chris Parker [TSY] <Chrjs.Parker {easurv.gé’\?t\

Sent: Wednesday, 13 Janu @}\M:OS am &N”\\7
To: Matthew Galt [TSY] :%2{; .Z-u/alt@tre?rfuw\.g %nz>; Bastiaan van der Scheer [TSY]

<Bastiaan.vanderSche y.govt.n “Qabﬂylle Groube

<Gabrie|Ie.Groube@tré?ﬁﬁ?v\gévt.np
Subject: RE: Medi éﬁé' eserve B onse to Minister of Finance

Thanks Mat this. It does seem bizarre that the good with the
greatest price inflation is excluded fr he national measure of price inflation because it's

w exclude carssandwhitewear from the index, despite them being durable.
ndprices when'land markets are uncompetitive are extremely sensitive to interest

s RBNZ’sga ol./So it’s doubly bizzare. Regardless of whether this ends up

e needs to account for it, and explain the issues.

gjvi)ce index might’ve said in hindsight if land were fully included? Would
ige sustained level of price inflation, with only a temporary dip after the

late 80s flation targeting was introduced before land price escalation started?

et

From: Matthew Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, 13 January 2021 10:44 am

To: Bastiaan van der Scheer [TSY] <Bastiaan.vanderScheer@treasury.govt.nz>; Chris Parker
[TSY] <Chris.Parker@treasury.govt.nz>; Gabrielle Groube
<Gabrielle.Groube@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: FW: Media Release: Reserve Bank's response to Minister of Finance

Hey Bastiaan, Chris and Gabbi,
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I've been further pondering how housing enters the CPI and increasingly coming to the view
that urban land is significantly underrepresented. The home ownership component only
includes construction costs because the land is treated as an asset. To me, this unreasonably
overlooks the significant consumption cost of urban land (whether measured as the direct land
price, imputed rents, or mortgage costs), and inflation of urban lan ts has been, if
anything, the rising price of greatest social concern over the last d ban land is™
included to a minor extent — it’ll be indirectly captured in market nd real estaté fees
(to the extent that these are correlated with house prices), but.owner-occupied bén\\raﬁpl
costs are otherwise omitted. I've outlined my thoughts in a | ore’detail in th émé‘l\lja;élow

from December.
I’'m wondering what the CPI would look like if it had, %(,“é% weight on b%(whether
age costs). Do»zou now-what the best
INZ median

measured as direct land price, imputed rents, or
long term nationwide time series of urban land
section prices?

Cheers, Matt

From: Matthew Galt [TSY]

Sent: Friday, 11 December 2020 11:%#\/‘ s \;:\
To: @Macroeconomic and Fis EI‘R%cy"ZMacroecaﬁ‘ ‘\C\A FiscalPolicy@treasury.govt.nz>;
Bastiaan van der Scheer [T &Esti an.vanderS{h(e/er‘@tfeasurv.govt.nz>; Chris Parker [TSY]

<Chris.Parker@treasury.govi:nz ctor Kuir“yé;;ﬂ Victor.Kuipers@treasury.govt.nz>;
Stephen Revill [TSY] <Stepj emill@treaﬁuw.\gg t.hz>; Siobhan Duncan [TSY]
<Siobhan.Duncan@trle§ﬁ;(% vt.nz>; Leo g{TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: Med(é*Relé:aSé;/Reserve Ban onse to Minister of Finance

\ & 7 %

In case ofinterest; | had a f servations on the letter:

N this is r%onable response from the Bank on the whole given the time
__preéssures e %
13

On paragr@\ﬁg ‘ tablishing a housing agency): | thought we already had a single
agenc led to act as a ‘clearing house’ to co-ordinate the Government’s response
i ss agencies: this was why the Ministry of Housing and Urban

ent was established.

ragraph 18 (housing being in the CPI): | still question whether the CPI

tely accounts for housing prices.

\\ ) )0 First, it doesn’t include house prices directly, and this is the price of interest to
— the government. (The reason is that it is considered an asset, not a
consumption good, but there is a more first principles question as to whether
consumption goods are the right prices for monetary policy to exclusively
target — this is an old debate around the world of course)

0 Second, even with the components it does have, | suspect it underweights

owner-occupied housing costs. Below are the weights in the CPI of the items

the Bank points to. Two things stand out to me:
= Summing the homeownership components (highlighted) gives 16.07%
of the CPIl weight, and rents (actual market rentals, social rentals and
student accommodation) are 10.26%. Yet owner-occupied housing
accounts for around 3/4 of the value of housing in New Zealand, so
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you might expect homeownership weights to sum to something closet
to 4x the weights on rents.

= The key concern with house pries is the cost of land, but that does not
enter directly into the CPI (because its viewed as an asset, not a
consumption good). Purchase of new housingis only the cost o
building only if | recall correctly.

James Beard meé Beard@treasury.govt.nz>; Tamiko Bayliss [TSY]
<Tamiko.Ba urv govt.nz>; Bastiaan van der Scheer [TSY]
<Bast|aa0&Ne cheer@treasury.govt.nz>; Chris Parker [TSY]

<Chris. P%{I%é?@}gasurv.govt.np, Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>
Subjt.{ctWedia Release: Reserve Bank's response to Minister of Finance

{iﬁ:a iscal Policy <MacroeconomicAndFiscalPolicy@treasury.govt.nz>;

[UNCLASS1/IED]
FYl — the RBNZ’s response to MOF’s letter is now public.

From: Reserve Bank of New Zealand <no-reply@lists.rbnz.govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, 11 December 2020 11:05 am

To: Matthew Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: Media Release: Reserve Bank's response to Minister of Finance
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View this email in your browser

Reserve Bank's response to Minis @0‘ Elnance

h@%?has this morning
inister of Finance, Hon

e Reserve Bank’s website.

11 December 2020

The Reserve Bank of New Ze
published its detailed respon 1
Grant Robertson sent o @ovember 2 %9

—

:TN

A copy of the Bank’ eis ava

4’/

More infor

etalledxesponse from the Reserve Bank to Minister of Finance

Mn 9 Deéqwn\quZJZO) (PDF 50KB)

py of mn@*&rfjse letter from Governor Adrian Orr to Minister of
Flnancg (SeN 24 November 2020)(PDF 65 KB)

Me@a@%
Ollvéhg es

Manager, External Stakeholders

DDI:s9)k)

Email: Oliver.Bates@rbnz.govt.nz
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From: Neil Kidd [TSY]

To: ZParliament: Natalie Labuschagne

Cc: Ben Gaukrodger [TSY]; Dasha Leonova [TSY]; Caralee McLiesh [TSY]; Bryan Chapple [TSY]; Renee Philip
[TSY]; James Beard [TSY]

Subject: Draft Treasury Report: requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices

Date: Friday, 15 January 2021 1:53:00 pm

Attachments: TR Requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices 15012021 .doc

Hi Natalie, @

Please find attached the draft TR on requiring the Reserve Bankto’have regard to house prices.

We are still awaiting some further views from the Go

efno
add to a final version. Either way, we will provide@'e version t

on Monday.

Thanks
Neil

Neil Kidd | Principal Advisor, Macroe
Tel: s9(2)(k) | Neil.Kidd@1trea

ited and may be unlawful.
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Treasury Report:  Requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices


Executive Summary


On 24 November 2020, you wrote to the Governor of the Reserve Bank (the Bank) to consult on a proposed change to their monetary policy remit, specifically whether to require the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) to “seek to avoid unnecessary instability in house prices” whilst pursuing their operational objectives. The Bank’s response indicated that they would prefer that consideration of house prices be explicitly required in their forthcoming financial policy remit, and possibly by issuing a section 68B direction, instead of their monetary policy remit. This report provides the Treasury’s advice on your proposed change and the Bank’s alternative.


We consider that there is more potential to deliver your housing objectives by issuing a section 68B direction or through an addition to the forthcoming financial policy remit.

Compared with monetary policy, there is less conflict between financial policy objectives and your broader objectives around housing affordability and house prices. The objectives are more likely to complement each other in many regards. Whilst it is still unclear how much of an impact a secondary, “have regard to” requirement would have on Bank decision making, there is the potential that a house price requirement could encourage the Bank to go further in using some of their financial policy tools than they would from considering housing as solely a financial stability issue.


If you wish to strengthen the Bank’s role in relation to house prices, we recommend that you issue a direction under section 68B of the current Reserve Bank Act. This allows you to direct the Bank to have regard to a specific government policy when formulating financial policy. The effect of any section 68B direction could be carried over into the financial policy remit after the passage of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill. An alternative to issuing a section 68B direction is to consult the Bank on a draft financial policy remit now, but this would only come into force after the passage of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill.  


The proposed change to the monetary policy remit could be a useful signal to send that you expect the MPC to consider the broader impacts of their decisions. However, the primacy of the MPC’s economic objectives of stable inflation and sustainable employment mean the impact on house price inflation is likely to be limited.

The way in which the MPC considers house prices probably does not align with the broader concerns you have about high house prices. The MPC largely considers house prices to the extent that they are important for their economic objectives of price stability and maximum sustainable employment. Adding a requirement for the MPC to have regard to house prices is a useful signal that you expect some of the broader impacts of high house prices to be considered when formulating monetary policy. 

However, we would not expect the addition of a requirement to have regard to house prices to have a significant impact on monetary policy decisions. Using monetary policy to reduce house price growth requires tighter monetary policy, which, all else equal, leads to lower inflation and higher unemployment. In the current economic context, if monetary policy were used to moderate house price growth, it would likely come at the expense of the MPC’s primary economic objectives. Given that the proposed requirement to consider house price instability would be secondary to the MPC’s economic objectives, the MPC is unlikely to adjust policy in any substantial way and the impact on house price inflation is likely to be limited. To some extent, this is also true of some existing requirements in the MPC’s remit. For example, the requirement to “seek to avoid unnecessary instability in interest rates” would, at times, conflict with the primary objectives and likely be given relatively less weight. 

If you wish to include a reference to house prices in the monetary policy remit, we think the wording you proposed in your letter to the Governor is the best option.

We have considered the alternatives identified by your office but consider that these risk representing your concerns about house prices as solely a financial stability or macroeconomic stability issue, rather than representing your broader concerns about house prices. We also considered an update to the specification of the Government’s economic objective set out in the remit but think that this would carry less weight than requiring the Bank to “have regard to” house prices. Finally, we considered specifying a housing affordability consideration, rather than a house price consideration, in the monetary policy remit but think this could be difficult to capture in a clear way, given that interest rate changes have different impacts on housing affordability for different groups. 

If you wish to proceed with changing the monetary policy remit and/or issuing a section 68B direction or commencing work on the future financial policy remit, we recommend you:


· Direct Treasury to consult with the Bank on the wording for either a section 68B direction or for the future financial policy remit that would best enable them to contribute to your housing objectives. 


· Write to the Governor indicating your decision on the monetary policy remit. An order in Council is then required to implement the change.


We are also aiming to provide you with some further advice in February on options for Ministerial involvement in the future Deposit Takers Act, for example in the setting of standards for bank regulation, that could progress your broader government objectives.


Recommended Action


We recommend that you:


a agree 

i. to proceed with work on a section 68B direction for the Bank to have regard to a government policy on housing in relation to its financial stability functions and consult with the Bank before issuing a direction 

Agree/Disagree

or


ii. to consult the Bank on a draft financial policy remit before the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill is passed, including a requirement for the Bank to have regard to the Government’s housing policy objectives


Agree/Disagree

b indicate if you wish to proceed with amending the monetary policy remit as proposed in your letter of 24 November


Yes/No

If yes:


c agree to write to the Governor setting out your decision on adding a house price consideration to the monetary policy remit

Agree/Disagree

d note the Treasury will provide you with a draft Cabinet paper proposing the change for your agreement

e note that further advice on the appropriate level of Ministerial involvement in financial policy under the future Deposit Takers regime will be provided to you in February. 


Ben Gaukrodger

Acting Manager, Macroeconomic and Fiscal Policy


Hon Grant Robertson

Minister of Finance

Treasury Report:  Requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices


Purpose and Background

1. This report sets out some considerations in adding house prices to the monetary policy remit and forthcoming financial policy remit, and provides advice on what the wording of any change to the monetary policy remit should be.

2. This advice follows from your 24 November 2020 letter to the Governor of the Reserve Bank (the Bank) that consulted on a change to their monetary policy remit. Your proposal was to require the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) to “seek to avoid unnecessary instability in house prices” whilst pursuing their operational objectives. The Bank replied that, amongst other things, they would prefer that consideration of house prices be explicitly required in their forthcoming financial policy remit, and possibly by issuing a section 68B direction, instead of their monetary policy remit.

Analysis


3. The MPC and the Bank, when setting monetary and financial policy, already considers house prices and housing costs to an extent. However, the way in which they consider them probably does not align with the broader concerns you have about high house prices. 


4. Housing costs – for example, rents, maintenance and the cost of construction of a new house – enter into the measure of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) that the Bank target. However, the CPI does not include house prices directly, and it gives little weight to the cost of land (there is no measure of the cost of land for owner-occupiers in the CPI - the homeownership component only includes the cost of the building).  Since land has been the main component of the increase in house prices over recent decades, these exclusions may mean the CPI gives an incomplete picture of housing inflation for policy purposes. 


5. Residential lending is an important channel for the transmission of monetary policy, which provides another lens through which the Bank will consider house prices. Importantly though, the MPC considers housing costs, and to a lesser extent house prices, to the extent that they affect the MPC’s economic objectives as opposed to being given weight as they affect broader government objectives. Similarly, for financial policy, the Bank are not required to consider the impact that house prices have on broader government objectives, only financial policy objectives. 


Including a house price consideration in the monetary policy remit


6. The Reserve Bank Act allows you to specify, in the remit for the MPC, a requirement for the MPC to have regard to one or more matters in connection with seeking to achieve an economic objective.

7. Requiring the MPC to have regard to house prices when formulating monetary policy has the potential to better align the MPC’s decision making with your broader objectives. In the short-term, it is possible that requiring the Bank to have regard to house price stability might result in slightly higher interest rates and lower house prices than otherwise. Whether this is welfare enhancing would depend on the benefits of greater house price stability outweighing any costs that might arise from marginal impacts on the Bank’s primary economic objectives.

8. However, we would not expect that the MPC would be able to have a significant impact on house prices in the long-run. Persistently higher interest rates than warranted by the MPC’s economic objectives are likely to be costly. The primacy of the MPC’s economic objectives of stable inflation and sustainable employment mean the impact on house price inflation is likely to be limited. 


9. As the Reserve Bank set out in their response, monetary policy is a cyclical tool: it aims to adjust interest rates relative to their structural level (the level of interest rates that are neither stimulatory nor contractionary).  Over time, a large reduction in the structural level of interest rates has contributed to rising house prices. The MPC have little control over the structural level of interest rates: they set the OCR (or use alternative monetary policy tools) to influence interest rates relative to this structural rate in order to manage the economic cycle. 

10. Attempting to use monetary policy to change the long-run level of house prices would require a persistently higher level of interest rates than warranted by the MPC’s economic objectives. At most, we would expect that the MPC would only mitigate the extremes of the interest rate cycle. Even then, if that entailed significant trade-offs with their economic objectives, then the requirement to have regard to house prices is unlikely to result in a significantly different monetary policy stance. This is likely to be the case presently, where there is a risk of further high house price growth but unemployment is elevated and CPI inflation is below the midpoint of the target band.

11. This is likely to be true for other, existing requirements in the MPC’s remit too. For example, the MPC is currently required to “seek to avoid unnecessary instability in output, interest rates, and the exchange rate”. At times, this requirement will be complementary to the MPC’s primary objectives and at times in conflict. When it is in conflict, the MPC likely do not place significant weight on it – or they consider that the instability in output, interest rates and the exchange rate is necessary, not unnecessary. 

12. Finally, there is a risk that requiring the Bank to have regard to house price instability creates uncertainty as to the MPC’s commitment to their economic objectives. It could come at the cost of higher expected interest rates – for example, following your letter to the Governor, market expectations of interest rates for the 3rd quarter of 2021 shifted up by 9 basis points and the NZD/USD exchange rate by +0.7 per cent.

What wording would the requirement take?


13. What wording to choose depends on what government objective you are aiming to achieve when requesting the MPC to have regard to house prices. For example, if you were concerned with the impact that monetary policy might have on levels of inequality, then house prices would only capture one part of that impact and ignore other impacts such as broader asset prices and any offsetting impacts from low interest rates e.g. higher than otherwise employment for those on the margins of the labour market. Having said that, house prices will capture some aspects of the wealth inequality generated by high house prices, which create a large transfer of wealth towards property owners. 


14. We understand there are three main options that have been identified by your office to require the Bank to have regard to house prices. These are marked up as potential additions to the monetary policy remit in bold below. 

“In pursuing the operational objectives, the MPC shall:


i. have regard to the efficiency and soundness of the financial system, as well as the stability of house prices (option 1);


ii. seek to avoid unnecessary instability in output, interest rates, house prices and the exchange rate (option 2);


iii. discount events that have only transitory effects on inflation, setting policy with a medium-term orientation.


iv. give consideration to the effect of monetary policy decisions on house prices and the potential associated risks to macroeconomic stability (option 3)”

15. Our preference is for option 2, to “seek to avoid unnecessary instability in house prices”. It places house prices alongside unnecessary instability in output, interest rates and the exchange rate, which are some of the other potentially negative economic impacts that could be generated as the MPC pursue their economic objectives. That the wording would be to seek to avoid unnecessary instability helps to further clarify that this is a secondary objective – presumably there would be times when the MPC considered that house price changes were a necessary consequence of meeting their economic objectives. 

16. Option 1 risks making consideration of the stability of house prices more of a financial stability consideration, whereas your letter to the Bank makes it clear that your concern with regard to house prices is broader than just financial stability. Option 3, “to give consideration to the effect of monetary policy decisions on house prices” does not make it clear what you want to happen to house prices, and the bank already consider the effect of monetary policy on house prices to the extent it impacts on their operational objectives. It also makes house prices a consideration with respect to macroeconomic stability, as opposed to your broader considerations. Our second preference would be option 1, rather than option 3. 


17. In addition, we understand there has been a proposal that instead of a requirement to have regard to house prices, that house prices could instead be added to the Government economic objective that is specified in the remit. We think that adding a reference to house prices to the Government economic objective would carry less weight than adding an additional requirement to the remit. 

18. A final alternative would be something that more explicitly specified the outcome that you are trying to achieve e.g. have regard to housing affordability, perhaps for specific groups. However, it might be that the objective is complicated to specify, given that you will have concerns about a number of different groups e.g. prospective first home buyers, recent buyers with large mortgages, as well as any flow on impacts on the rental market. It would be necessary to specify what groups you wanted to improve housing affordability for, as interest rates are a blunt tool and they would have different impacts on affordability for different groups.

Including a house price consideration in the formulation of financial policy

19. There is less likely to be a conflict between financial policy objectives and a requirement to consider house prices when setting financial policy, compared with the trade-off involved for monetary policy. More often, reducing house price growth will reinforce financial stability. Financial policy tools can also be more targeted to specific sectors of the housing market e.g. residential investors, in contrast to interest rates, which are quite a blunt tool. 

20. Section 68B of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act allows you to issue a direction to the Bank to have regard to a government policy that relates to the Bank’s financial policy functions. If you wish to proceed with a section 68B direction, you will need to consult with the Bank before giving a direction. This will need to be set out in a signed written statement, presented to the House of Representatives and published in the Gazette. The effect of any section 68B direction could be carried over into the financial policy remit after the passage of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill.


21. Whilst choosing similar wording as for the monetary policy remit could be an option, section 68B refers to “a government policy”, which the Bank would be required to have regard to. Given the potential for financial policy tools to provide a more targeted approach in certain areas (for example on LVR settings), it would be important to consider exactly how to specify the government policy the Bank should have regard to and how the Bank would interpret any direction in carrying out its financial policy functions.


22. An alternative to issuing a section 68B direction is to begin consulting the Bank on the forthcoming financial policy remit. The financial policy remit will set out matters the Bank board should have regard to when pursuing the financial stability objective. However, this would only come into force once the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill is passed.

23. If you prefer this option, we can begin a process with the Bank of drafting a financial policy remit for your agreement before the Bill is passed, which includes a request for the Bank to have regard to the Government’s housing policy objectives. This could be modelled on the sample financial policy remit (Annex 1), which already includes a reference to housing affordability (T2020/88 refers).  


Next Steps


24. As you have already consulted the Bank on the change to the MPC’s monetary policy remit, if you are minded to proceed, no further consultation is necessary. However, we would recommend a letter be sent to the Reserve Bank informing them of your decision. This could also set out your decision on the section 68B direction or the future financial policy remit and that you would like to work with them to consider how best to articulate this. If you agree, we can draft the letter. 


Ministerial involvement in financial policy under the Deposit Takers Act

25. In the future Deposit Takers Act (DTA) regime, there will also be a new process for how financial policy is developed and implemented. The Treasury and the Reserve Bank are currently considering the role of the Minister in financial policy decisions under the DTA (including standards for bank regulation). We are aiming to provide you with some advice in February on options for Ministerial involvement, for example in the setting of standards for bank regulation, that could progress broader government objectives.


Annex 1: Sample Financial Policy Remit


The Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 2021 requires the Minister of Finance to issue the Reserve Bank with a Financial Policy Remit. This sets out matters the Reserve Bank must have regard to when pursuing the financial stability objective, and when applying the purpose statements and decision making principles in the Deposit Takers Act (DTA) and the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (IPSA). 


The Reserve Bank’s role


The Government recognises the important role the Reserve Bank plays in regulating and supervising deposit takers and insurers, and the overarching goal of the prudential framework to protect and promote a stable New Zealand financial system. A stable financial system with sound and strong regulated entities is an important prerequisite for sustainable economic growth.


The Government also recognises that risk-taking is essential to well-functioning markets, and ultimately the efficiency and growth of the New Zealand economy. The prudential regime cannot and should not seek to guarantee a zero rate of failure for regulated financial institutions. The Government expects the prudential regime to contribute to a low incidence of failure of regulated entities, while fostering a competitive, innovative and inclusive financial system. Where failures do occur, the Government expects these to be managed in a way that minimises the disruption to depositors, policyholders, the financial sector and broader economy.

The Government’s economic plan


This Government is focused on addressing long term economic challenges to New Zealand. This is with a view to building an economy that is more: 



· productive;


· sustainable; and 


· inclusive. 


The Government’s economic plan sets out four priorities and the eight key economic shifts that are required to transition the economy. The Reserve Bank must have regard to the relevant aspects of Economic Plan and specific priorities as set out below. 


Building a more productive economy 

Open banking


I note the work currently being undertaken by the Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment (MBIE) on open banking. This Government considers that open banking can deliver competition, efficiency and innovation across the financial services sector. The Reserve Bank must have regard to ongoing developments in this area and the Government’s desire to see this work progress when pursing the financial stability objective.   


Housing affordability


This Government is working towards improving housing affordability and supply. This includes a commitment to ensuring that more low and middle income New Zealanders are able to buy a home. A comprehensive programme of work is taking place designed to deliver improved housing affordability. The Reserve Bank must have regard to the Government’s priorities in this area, along with the associated policy programme, when considering the adoption and implementation of macro-prudential tools to achieve financial stability.   

Small business


The Government supports continuing access to finance for small to medium enterprises. When pursuing the financial stability objective, the Reserve Bank must have regard to the impact on small business finance. This includes taking into account the New Zealand Small Business Strategy and related initiatives. I note in particular the principles relating to competition and avoiding unnecessary compliance costs, and request that the Reserve Bank take into account this Government’s desire to enable the development of the small business sector in New Zealand. 


Building a more sustainable economy 

Climate change

I acknowledge the work the Reserve Bank has undertaken to identify and manage the financial stability risks associated with climate change. I note the Government’s continued focus on transitioning to a climate resilient, sustainable and low-emissions economy.


The Reserve Bank must continue to take into account the risks to financial stability associated with climate change. The Reserve Bank must also take into account the risks associated with climate change when giving effect to the legislative purposes requiring the promotion of public confidence in the financial system, and the maintenance of a sound and efficient insurance sector. 


More generally, the Reserve Bank must also have regard to New Zealand’s climate change programme. In particular, the Reserve Bank should take into account the work currently being undertaken by the Ministry for the Environment and MBIE on the design of a climate related financial disclosure regime. In particular, the extent to which this may contribute to promoting public confidence in the financial system and the insurance sector.

Affordable and available property insurance contributes to resilience

The Government supports measures that promote a sound and efficient insurance industry that contributes to New Zealanders’ resilience to unforeseen events. In particular, this Government has an interest in ensuring that property insurance appropriately contributes to New Zealanders’ long-term resilience to all natural disasters, including earthquakes. The extent to which property insurance contributes to resilience will change if the number of underinsured or uninsured properties materially changes. Accordingly, this government is looking to pursue policies that ensure that property insurance is affordable and available. The Reserve Bank must have regard to these government policies when carrying out its functions, including the impact of insurer solvency standards on competition dynamics and compliance costs in the insurance sector, and the implications for the affordability and availability of building insurance generally. 


New Zealand’s emergency management plan

The National Disaster Resilience Strategy was published in April 2019. I note that the strategy highlights the importance of the ability of infrastructure to function in adverse conditions and to quickly recover after an event. This includes banking and financial services. 


The Reserve Bank must have regard to continuing work on developing New Zealand’s resilience and ability to respond to emergencies. This includes building the resilience of critical infrastructure and managing insurance risks. This must be taken into account when pursing the legislative purposes in the DTA and IPSA. 


Conduct and culture review

This government continues to support measures that ensure the public can have confidence in our financial system and insurance sector. I acknowledge the work done by the Reserve Bank and the Financial Markets Authority on the review of the conduct and culture in New Zealand’s retail banks and life insurers. The Reserve Bank must continue to have regard to work being undertaken across government to strengthen public confidence in New Zealand’s financial system and insurance sector. This includes an in-principle decision to strengthen director and executive accountability, following recent reforms in Australia. 

Building a more inclusive economy 


Financial inclusion


I recognise the work the Reserve Bank has been doing with the finance sector and the Council of Financial Regulators on financial inclusion. Increased competition in the retail and commercial banking sectors supports the Government’s desire to create a more inclusive economy. The Reserve Bank must have regard to this Government’s focus on improving financial inclusion, particularly among low income and rural communities. When assessing regulatory interventions and the relative risk posed by small deposit-takers, the Reserve Bank must have regard to this Government’s willingness to tolerate a degree of regulatory risk in order to ensure the ongoing viability of these institutions.


Regional Economic Development


The Government is committed to supporting thriving and sustainable regions. This includes ensuring that regional communities have access to banking and insurance facilities. The Reserve Bank should have regard to the Government’s aim to enhance economic development opportunities in the regions, improve social inclusion and participation, and to build resilient communities. In this context, the need to avoid unnecessary compliance costs is noted, including compliance costs that may have an impact on regional services. 

Annex 2: Current monetary policy remit


The Government’s Economic Objective

The Government’s economic objective is to improve the wellbeing and living standards of New Zealanders through a sustainable, productive and inclusive economy. Our priority is to move towards a low carbon economy, with a strong diversified export base, that delivers decent jobs with higher wages and reduces inequality and poverty.


Context

Monetary policy plays an important role in supporting the Government’s economic objective. The Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 (the Act) requires that monetary policy promote the prosperity and wellbeing of New Zealanders, and contribute to a sustainable and productive economy. Monetary policy contributes to public welfare by reducing cyclical variations in employment and economic activity whilst maintaining price stability over the medium term. 


This remit is issued by the Minister of Finance to the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) under Clause 3, Schedule 1 of the Act. 


1) Monetary Policy Objectives

Under Section 8 of the Act the Reserve Bank, acting through the MPC, is required to formulate monetary policy with the goals of maintaining a stable general level of prices over the medium term and supporting maximum sustainable employment.


2) Operational Objectives

For the purpose of this remit the MPC’s operational objectives shall be to:

i. keep future annual inflation between 1 and 3 percent over the medium term, with a focus on keeping future inflation near the 2 percent mid-point. This target will be defined in terms of the All Groups Consumers Price Index, as published by Statistics New Zealand; and


ii. support maximum sustainable employment. The MPC should consider a broad range of labour market indicators to form a view of where employment is relative to its maximum sustainable level, taking into account that the level of maximum sustainable employment is largely determined by non-monetary factors that affect the structure and dynamics of the labour market and is not directly measurable.


 In pursuing the operational objectives, the MPC shall:

i. have regard to the efficiency and soundness of the financial system;


ii. seek to avoid unnecessary instability in output, interest rates, and the exchange rate; and


iii. discount events that have only transitory effects on inflation, setting policy with a medium-term orientation.
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Treasury Report: Requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house
prices

Executive Summary

On 24 November 2020, you wrote to the Governor of the Reserve
on a proposed change to their monetary policy remit, specifica
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) to “seek to avoid unnece

Bank (the Bank) nsult
ether to reqprreth

, stability in hoC use prices”
¢ indicated atﬁﬁeyWould

eir forthco ?{)?%fmanmal
h

tary policy

remit. This report provides the Treasury’s advice o Xonr proposed change and the Bank’s
alternative. - / N\

We consider that there is more potential to- our housi gkojf@ectives by issuing
a section 68B direction or through an a i nancial policy
remit.

Compared with monetary policy, ther i
your broader objectives around housi
more likely to complement each oth
an impact a secondary, “have regard to” requirement d have on Bank decision making,
there is the potential that a > pri rice requrre ent co d encourage: the Bank togo further
in using some of their financi /
solely a financial stabrl}y} u

If you wish to stren ank’s r Iatlon to house prices, we recommend that you
issue a direction u %se ion 68B of-the ent Reserve Bank Act. This allows you to
direct the Bank a\/e egard to ecific.government policy when formulating financial
irection could be carried over into the financial policy
e of the Reserve-Bank of New Zealand Bill. An alternative to issuing a

section 68B tion is to co@{\ﬁ? Bank on a draft financial policy remit now, but this
nly ~ fter passage of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill.

Th oosed change to't monetary policy remit could be a useful signal to send
that your xpect the MPC to’consider the broader impacts of their decisions. However,
the primacy of t MPC; economic objectives of stable inflation and sustainable
employment %i‘mpact on house price inflation is likely to be limited.

The way i i MPC considers house prices probably does not align with the broader
concern ave about high house prices. The MPC largely considers house prices to the
extent t at re important for their economic objectives of price stability and maximum

sustarn}sug| /e ponment Adding a requirement for the MPC to have regard to house prices
is a useful signal that you expect some of the broader impacts of high house prices to be
considered when formulating monetary policy.

However, we would not expect the addition of a requirement to have regard to house prices
to have a significant impact on monetary policy decisions. Using monetary policy to reduce
house price growth requires tighter monetary policy, which, all else equal, leads to lower
inflation and higher unemployment. In the current economic context, if monetary policy were
used to moderate house price growth, it would likely come at the expense of the MPC'’s
primary economic objectives. Given that the proposed requirement to consider house price
instability would be secondary to the MPC'’s economic objectives, the MPC is unlikely to
adjust policy in any substantial way and the impact on house price inflation is likely to be
limited. To some extent, this is also true of some existing requirements in the MPC’s remit.
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For example, the requirement to “seek to avoid unnecessary instability in interest rates”
would, at times, conflict with the primary objectives and likely be given relatively less weight.

If you wish to include a reference to house prices in the monetary policy remit, we
think the wording you proposed in your letter to the Governor is the best option.

We have considered the alternatives identified by your office but consider that these risk
representing your concerns about house prices as solely a financial stability or
macroeconomic stability issue, rather than representing your brgader,concerns ab use
SOVE ent’s econo

ss weight than requiringthe
Bank to “have regard to” house prices. Finally, we considereo cifying a h u&%}gj/
affordability consideration, rather than a house price coré%gt: i, in the monetary policy
remit but think this could be difficult to capture in a clear way, given that i teresl\éte changes
have different impacts on housing affordability for di Srég\t groups. —

—

If you wish to proceed with changing the monetary policy remit angiféf{ |g a section 68B
e

direction or commencing work on the future financial policy rem%\ﬁj 90mmend you:

e wording for either a section 68B
it that wo lld best enable them to
7

e Direct Treasury to consult with the
direction or for the future financial
contribute to your housing objecti

S

e Write to the Governor indicat%y decisio

Council is then required toimplement the ¢ 1an|
We are also aiming to provi Qw ith som L advice in February on options for
Ministerial involvement in Deposit( Takers Act, for example in the setting of
standards for bank reg\@i at could ess your broader government objectives.
v

Recommen M@ﬁc{n

We recom d that'you: Q
a \\\\\
<Q

th werk on a section 68B direction for the Bank to have regard to a
nt policy on housing in relation to its financial stability functions and
ith-the Bank before issuing a direction

Agre%
or

ii. 13 consult the Bank on a draft financial policy remit before the Reserve Bank of
New Zealand Bill is passed, including a requirement for the Bank to have regard
to the Government’s housing policy objectives

Agree/Disagree

b indicate if you wish to proceed with amending the monetary policy remit as proposed
in your letter of 24 November

Yes/No
If yes:
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c agree to write to the Governor setting out your decision on adding a house price
consideration to the monetary policy remit

Agree/Disagree

d note the Treasury will provide you with a draft Cabinet paper proposing the change for
your agreement

e note that further advice on the appropriate level of Ministefial‘involvement in@l
policy under the future Deposit Takers regime will be pr ed toyou in ag)(.
~)
J

Febru
A
o

Ben Gaukrodger
Acting Manager, Macroeconomic and Fi

Hon Grant Robertson
Minister of Finance
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Treasury Report: Requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house
prices

Purpose and Background

1.  This report sets out some considerations in adding hou the mcmetary
remit and forthcoming financial policy remit, and provi on what f@vﬁofdlng
of any change to the monetary policy remit shoul &

2. This advice follows from your 24 November 2020 letterto the Gov, e Reserve
Bank (the Bank) that consulted on a change 4{0 ir monetary p I%ut Your
proposal was to require the Monetary Polic nittee (MPC)- to avoid
unnecessary instability in house prices” ing their eraf al objectives.
The Bank replied that, amongst other thir would pref gt conS|derat|on of
house prices be explicitly required in their forthcoming financial policy remit, and
possibly by issuing a section 68B direction, it stead{q c onetary policy remit.

‘\vg;?

Analysis

3. The MPC and the Bank <I%\settlng tan aﬁd financial policy, already considers
house prices and hgusi 0sts to an | xt n wever, the way in which they consider
them probably d@ lign with t ‘k\eader concerns you have about high house
prices. =

/ J
4. Housing costs. —\vforexample ent ntenance and the cost of construction of a new

house — e into the mea the’Consumer Price Index (CPI) that the Bank
target. Ho er;the CPI does include house prices directly, and it gives little
wei ht to the cost of land (there iS no measure of the cost of land for owner-occupiers
P~ t w. component only includes the cost of the building).
s bee th\e ain component of the increase in house prices over recent

des, these ions’'may mean the CPI gives an incomplete picture of housing

e.extent that they affect the MPC’s economic objectives as opposed to

weight as they affect broader government objectives. Similarly, for financial

%ﬁg”t e Bank are not required to consider the impact that house prices have on
e(government objectives, only financial policy objectives.

be’n

Including a house price consideration in the monetary policy remit

6.

The Reserve Bank Act allows you to specify, in the remit for the MPC, a requirement
for the MPC to have regard to one or more matters in connection with seeking to
achieve an economic objective.

Requiring the MPC to have regard to house prices when formulating monetary policy
has the potential to better align the MPC’s decision making with your broader
objectives. In the short-term, it is possible that requiring the Bank to have regard to
house price stability might result in slightly higher interest rates and lower house prices
than otherwise. Whether this is welfare enhancing would depend on the benefits of
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greater house price stability outweighing any costs that might arise from marginal
impacts on the Bank’s primary economic objectives.

However, we would not expect that the MPC would be able to have a significant impact
on house prices in the long-run. Persistently higher interest rates than warranted by the
MPC'’s economic objectives are likely to be costly. The primacy of the MPC’s economic
objectives of stable inflation and sustainable employment mean the impact on house

price inflation is likely to be limited.

As the Reserve Bank set out in their response, monetar a cyclicaltool: it aims
to adjust interest rates relative to their structural level (the of interest‘ireﬁes”that are

neither stimulatory nor contractionary). Over tim eduction in the structural

level of interest rates has contributed to rising ho ices. The MPC have little control
over the structural level of interest rates: they set the (or use alternative monetary
policy tools) to influence interest rates relativ @ﬂm\s structural ratei

the economic cycle. —

AN
Attempting to use monetary policy to ¢ ong-run le\ é*&zouse prices would
require a persistently higher level of int ra & d y the MPC'’s

rder to manage

C would only mitigate the
en, if that entailed significant trade-offs with
have regard to house prices is

licy stance. This is likely to be
house price growth but

extremes of the interest rate cycle. E
their economic objectives, then%"""”””"
unlikely to result in a significan ifferent mone
the case presently, where there.is a-risk of fu

| tis el “and CPI inflation is
unemployment is eleva @q inflatio ésﬂ;)
This is likely to be tr ther, existing '

example, the MP tly requi d\trQ ek to avoid unnecessary instability in
output, interest r - ate”. At times, this requirement will be

complement g‘fj\ne}]lPC‘s pri jectives and at times in conflict. When it is in
conflict, the MPC likely do no ificant weight on it — or they consider that the
and‘the exchange rate is necessary, not

instabilit t, interest
unneces

) mnng the Bank to have regard to house price instability
to-the MPC’s commitment to their economic objectives. It could

gﬁéxpected interest rates — for example, following your letter to
ectations of interest rates for the 3" quarter of 2021 shifted
d the NZD/USD exchange rate by +0.7 per cent.

y 9 basis paints
ponis

What wording \e requirement take?

13.

14.

Wha to choose depends on what government objective you are aiming to
achieve when requesting the MPC to have regard to house prices. For example, if you
wer b\ rned with the impact that monetary policy might have on levels of inequality,
theirhgbse prices would only capture one part of that impact and ignore other impacts
such as broader asset prices and any offsetting impacts from low interest rates e.g.
higher than otherwise employment for those on the margins of the labour market.
Having said that, house prices will capture some aspects of the wealth inequality
generated by high house prices, which create a large transfer of wealth towards
property owners.

We understand there are three main options that have been identified by your office to
require the Bank to have regard to house prices. These are marked up as potential
additions to the monetary policy remit in bold below.
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“In pursuing the operational objectives, the MPC shall:

i. have regard to the efficiency and soundness of the financial system, as well as
the stability of house prices (option 1);

ii. seek to avoid unnecessary instability in output, interest rates, house prices and
the exchange rate (option 2);

iii. discount events that have only transitory effects on i ion, setting poIi ith a
medium-term orientation.

y.decisions o mase
prices and the potential associated risks {0 ma conomlcg }ry (opt|on

prices”. It places house prlces alongside u
and the exchange rate, which are some

impacts that could be generated as the
the wording would be to seek to avoi
that this is a secondary objective ~ pre
considered that house price ch

economic objectives.
Option 1 risks making consid&ew(of the st

S your lette tO\the nk makes it clear that your concern
ﬁrfanmal stability. Optlon 3, “to give

consideration to theeffec monetary pb“ri(:
make it clear what you war
the effect of monEt\;/ary policy on hot
operatlonal % es/ltalso nake

Ve underst there has been a proposal that instead of a requirement to

to house pric at house prices could instead be added to the

nt economic ebjective that is specified in the remit. We think that adding a

ices to the Government economic objective would carry less
dditional requirement to the remit.

wéuld be something that more explicitly specified the outcome that
chieve e.g. have regard to housing affordability, perhaps for specific
ver, it might be that the objective is complicated to specify, given that you

ent buyers with large mortgages, as well as any flow on impacts on the
:yarket It would be necessary to specify what groups you wanted to improve
hou g affordability for, as interest rates are a blunt tool and they would have different
impacts on affordability for different groups.

Including a house price consideration in the formulation of financial policy

19.

20.

There is less likely to be a conflict between financial policy objectives and a
requirement to consider house prices when setting financial policy, compared with the
trade-off involved for monetary policy. More often, reducing house price growth will
reinforce financial stability. Financial policy tools can also be more targeted to specific
sectors of the housing market e.g. residential investors, in contrast to interest rates,
which are quite a blunt tool.

Section 68B of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act allows you to issue a direction to
the Bank to have regard to a government policy that relates to the Bank’s financial
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policy functions. If you wish to proceed with a section 68B direction, you will need to
consult with the Bank before giving a direction. This will need to be set out in a signed
written statement, presented to the House of Representatives and published in the
Gazette. The effect of any section 68B direction could be carried over into the financial
policy remit after the passage of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill.

21. Whilst choosing similar wording as for the monetary policy remit could be an option,
section 68B refers to “a government policy”, which the Bank would be required to- have
regard to. Given the potential for financial policy tools to provide a more targ@&
approach in certain areas (for example on LVR settings), it would be |mpovfam to
consider exactly how to specify the government polic should have\regard to

and how the Bank would interpret any direction in ¢ its flnar§ Ilcy
functions.

22.  An alternative to issuing a section 68B direction s, to begin consultin nk on the
2;) licy remit will set out- atters the

forthcoming financial policy remit. The financia
Bank board should have regard to when p @s the flnanc(ars abil objective.
However, this would only come into foree-once'the Reser B\\ﬂlgif New Zealand Bill
is passed. % &

23.  If you prefer this option, we can begin-a process ngh the k of drafting a financial
policy remit for your agreemen%r"”t e Bill is passed, which includes a request for

the Bank to have regard to t%r ment’s licy objectives. sa(2)f(iv)
O
Q‘ ) Y~
N
Next Steps an \ -

24. As you have g;@adyconsulte %& on the change to the MPC’s monetary policy
e minded to n further consultation is necessary. However, we
d a letter be 0 the Reserve Bank informing them of your
ould aI§ set out your decision on the section 68B direction or the future
ee}

Al ou would like to work with them to consider how best to
a% e can draft the letter.

-~

cial policy under the Deposit Takers Act

financial developed and implemented. The Treasury and the Reserve Bank

considering the role of the Minister in financial policy decisions under the
standards for bank regulation). We are aiming to provide you with some

advice ebruary on options for Ministerial involvement, for example in the setting of

In the futur%&s }Takers Act (DTA) regime, there will also be a new process for how
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Annex 2: Current monetary policy remit

The Government’s Economic Objective

The Government’s economic objective is to improve the wellbeing and living standards of New
Zealanders through a sustainable, productive and inclusive economy. Our priority is to move
towards a low carbon economy, with a strong diversified export base, that delivers decent jobs
with higher wages and reduces inequality and poverty. j %

Context

Monetary policy plays an important role in supporting the Goye

This remit is issued by the Minister of Finance to
Clause 3, Schedule 1 of the Act.

1) Monetary Policy Objectives

2) Operational Objectives

For the purpose of this re

percent mid-point. This target will be defmed in
ce Index, as published by Statistics New Zealand;

&t indicators to form’a view of where employment is relative to its maximum
level, tak%;qé?ccount that the level of maximum sustainable employment
determined by -monetary factors that affect the structure and dynamics of
ot directly measurable.

ectives, the MPC shall:

iii. /~diseount events that have only transitory effects on inflation, setting policy with a
% dium-term orientation.

T2021/11 Requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices Page 12
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From: Neil Kidd [TSY]

Sent: Monday, 18 January 2021 2:46 pm

To: Yulia Gonina [TSY]; Ben Gaukrodger [TSY]
Subject: RE: Sign out in moto

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged Yo

(
NS,

Ben — I've made the minor changes Caralee wanted. If you wanted t@r ad—itis pa has changed and

a new para 13 added. A couple of other words changed but not r akly wor | don’t think.

pointing
O S

I have also got some feedback from Mario:
He has said — 1. AMP tools, whilst primarily working by lowering’i
they deliver stimulus but encourage less house price gr @—\ )
2- It is not clear the extent to which financial policy can'ip
objectives — this could be worth noting. —

I've been concerned about whether we shou &d
discussion of it — | think, so far, AMP tools have wor

encouraging lending directly. | would e ﬁ is would conti )
that there could be tools out there (or circurastances) in
the following to para 9 —opentot S

(N

: /m their re monetary policy is a cyclical tool: it aims to adjust
interest rates relativ ir natural level(theevel of interest rates that are neither stimulatory nor
contractionary). Over tion’in the natural level of interest rates has contributed to
rising house pri e'MPC have | ontrol over the natural level of interest rates: they set the
OCR (or use e moneta licy'tools) to influence interest rates relative to this natural rate in
order to ma € economic n theory, AMP tools could offer a way to stimulate the
econom focussing sti away from the housing market. However, to date, these have

ing market interest rates, and would have similar house price

work d<§; imarity by further.re
impacts t r&iuctiony’ﬁjh O
()
On 2 — | have added th@\}%para 22:
i

2. Whilst choo ar wording as for the monetary policy remit could be an option, section 68B
refers t@ ment policy”, which the Bank would be required to have regard to. We have not
hass

done a ssment of the extent to which financial policy tools could impact on housing
objectives en the potential for financial policy tools to provide a more targeted approach in certain
areas (for example on LVR settings), it would be important to consider exactly how to specify the
government policy the Bank should have regard to and how the Bank would interpret any direction in
carrying out its financial policy functions.

I've added those to the current version in imanage.

Given not going until tomorrow now, the actual signing can wait until then.
Neil

Out of scope
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From:
To:

Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Doc 22

Neil Kidd [TSY]

Ben Gaukrodger [TSY]; Dasha Leonova [TSY]; Bryan Chapple [TSY]; Renee Philip [TSY]; James Beard
[TSY]; Sam Thornton [TSY]; Leona Feng [TSY]; Matthew Galt [TSY]; Caralee McLiesh [TSY]

RE: Readout from MoF - Treasury Report: requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices
Tuesday, 26 January 2021 12:08:00 pm

financial stability in central bank remits - international comparisons.ms
UMP on distribution.docx

Hi Caralee,

You said “l am keen to know whether there is any
monetary policy or practices in other central ban

1.

d

ing that there

®) NOtHGC
ty consideran other central banks, some of the remits (e.g. UK)
r financial stability and others (e.g. US) have published

Cial stability is a consideration in the committee’s policy

rs, sets out a view/assumption that distributional concerns do not drive much
king. Finally, there doesn’t seem to be much in the way of requirements for

@1 anks to assess the impact that they have on distributional outcomes, at least in
comparison to fiscal policy (although | admit I've done less of a significant search looking

forit).

2. Whatis the literature on distributional impacts: with thanks to Mario - the best thing we
have found on distributional impacts of monetary policy is a summary of the literature by
the IMF produced last year — attached. It has a particular focus on AMP tools. Our
summary of the summary would be: the evidence is mixed on the impact of monetary
policy on income and wealth inequality but it is probably true to say that there are
greater concerns with respect to AMP’s impact on inequality, particularly wealth
inequality, than there are for conventional monetary policy. The note sets out several
studies that found evidence of negative impacts on income and wealth inequality from
AMP tools (whilst still noting that overall the evidence is mixed). There is also a speech
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[SEEMAIL][SENSITIVE]



 



Hi Caralee,



 



You asked Renee how other central banks are required to take into account financial stability in their monetary policy considerations.



 



In summary, of the central banks we’ve looked at, Norway and Australia probably go the furthest in acknowledging that there should be some flexibility to the inflation target to allow for financial stability considerations. In other central banks, some of the remits (e.g. UK) make reference to the need for financial stability and others (e.g. US) have published papers discussing how financial stability is a consideration in the committee’s policy decisions - these tend to be subordinate to the price stability objective (as the ECB explicitly sets out). To state the obvious, the greater focus on financial stability tends to sit in the financial policy remit, as there is generally considered to be less of a trade-off with other objectives in using macroprudential policy tools to target financial stability. 



 



My reading of all this is that the current requirements on the RBNZ “to have regard to the efficiency and soundness of the financial system” are in line with international comparators – albeit perhaps not going as far as Australia or Norway. What would be different about the current proposal for the RBNZ to consider house prices (specifically in the context of the government’s broader objectives with respect to inequality, productive capacity etc) is that house prices are not being considered from solely a financial stability perspective, wherein consideration of financial stability could be done to further the Bank’s other objectives – at least in the long-run e.g. if financial stability were a longer-term risk to output and employment stability. 



 



As such, there could be more of a trade-off between giving consideration to house prices (from a distributional perspective) and the Bank’s objectives on price stability and maximum sustainable employment. That the Bank just needs to “have regard to” house price stability significantly lessens the trade-off in that it is a subordinate consideration (but also risks it not having the desired effect on house prices). I think it would be useful for the Bank to think quite broadly as to whether there are other changes to their frameworks that would allow them to maintain a focus on delivering price stability and maximum sustainable employment whilst also taking pressure off the housing market (to deliver distributional goals, not just financial stability ones) – for example, it could be that other parts of the framework e.g. giving a direction under section 68B (to have regard to a government objective in the setting of prudential policy) could be considered as well as changes to the monetary policy framework. 



 



…



 



*	Norway: The Norges Bank’s objectives are set out by law and by regulation. The regulation states that Inflation targeting shall be forward-looking and flexible so that it can contribute to high and stable output and employment, and to counteracting financial imbalances. Norges Bank notes that to some extent, monetary policy can contribute to counteracting the build-up of financial imbalances and thereby reduce the risk of sharp economic downturns further ahead. If there are signs that financial imbalances are building up, the consideration of high and stable output and employment may in some situations suggest keeping the policy rate somewhat higher than would otherwise be the case. The regulation and supervision of financial institutions are the primary means of addressing shocks to the financial system

*	Australia: Their statement on the conduct of monetary policy says “they (the RBA and the Government) agree that an appropriate goal is to keep consumer price inflation between 2 and 3 per cent, on average, over time. This formulation allows for the natural short-run variation in inflation over the economic cycle and the medium-term focus provides the flexibility for the Reserve Bank to set its policy so as best to achieve its broad objectives, including financial stability.”

*	UK: The Act sets out the monetary policy objectives as price stability and “subject to that, to support the economic policy of Her Majesty’s Government, including its objectives for growth and employment.” The monetary policy remit states that “The government’s economic policy objective is to achieve strong, sustainable and balanced growth. Price and financial stability are essential pre-requisites to achieve this objective in all regions and sectors of the UK economy.”

*	US: The Fed’s monetary policy objectives do not make reference to any financial stability consideration. They publish a ‘statement on longer-run goals and monetary policy’ strategy which states… “Moreover, sustainably achieving maximum employment and price stability depends on a stable financial system. The Committee’s policy decisions reflect its longer-run goals, its medium-term outlook, and its assessments of the balance of risks, including risks to the financial system that could impede the attainment of the Committee’s goals”.

*	Euro area: There is nothing in the monetary policy section of the on Treaty of the Functioning of the European Union on financial stability. An overview of the ECB’s monetary policy states that “Regarding the ECB’s monetary policy, the contribution to financial stability is subordinated to the objective of price stability. This assignment reflects the view that the maintenance of price stability is ultimately the best contribution monetary policy can make in support of financial stability.” 



 



Happy to look at more if you have some specific ones in mind?



 



Neil Kidd | Principal Advisor, Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | The Treasury



Tel: +64 4 890 7203 | Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz



   



CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE [SEEMAIL]



The information in this email is confidential to the Treasury, intended only for the addressee(s), and may also be legally privileged. If you are not an intended addressee:



a. please immediately delete this email and notify the Treasury by return email or telephone (64 4 472 2733);



b. any use, dissemination or copying of this email is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. 



 






Source: IMF Intendent evaluation of the IMF work on UMP impacts 

file:///C:/Users/dimaioM/Downloads/ump-bp05-the-risks-side-effects-of-ump-an-assessment-of-imf-views-analysis.pdf 



UNCONVENTIONAL MONETARY POLICIES AND INEQUALITY 

Portfolio and labor income channels 

6. It has long been recognized that monetary policy actions have distributional effects (Greenspan, 1998). Expansionary monetary policy, i.e., lowering of policy interest rates, lowers interest incomes, other things equal. At the same time, it also raises labor incomes by reducing unemployment and bringing about a recovery of the economy. Depending on their asset positions and labor force status, households can be affected differentially through these portfolio and labor income channels. The presumption, supported by some empirical evidence, has been that for the vast majority of households, the latter effect dominates and moreover that the gains in labor income are fairly evenly distributed (Romer and Romer, 1999). Thus, conventional expansionary monetary policy is generally believed to decrease income inequality. Moreover, since the monetary easing is usually reversed in a year or two as the economy recovers, the policy is considered not to have a permanent impact on the distribution of income, i.e., there is little impact on wealth inequality from conventional monetary policy. 

7. Though similar channels operate in the case of UMP, there have been concerns that UMP may be more prone to raising inequality. The nature of the portfolio channel may be somewhat different with UMP than with conventional monetary policy. On the one hand, the cut in policy interest rates to zero and even to negative values—and the forward guidance to hold rates low for an extended period of time—lowers interest incomes on fixed-income assets, which tend to be held by older, retired people often with limited alternatives.[footnoteRef:1] This point was emphasized in a 2013 study by McKinsey Global Institute, which shared that “younger households that are net borrowers” had benefited from UMP. On the other hand, with UMP, central banks are rather explicitly trying to push up the prices of risky assets (e.g., equity prices and house prices), which have larger shares in the portfolios of higher-income households. Critics have argued that this effect can be substantial and can even offset the equalizing impact of UMP through the labor income channel. Moreover, by leading to a persistent increase in the prices of risky assets, UMP may also have led to an increase in wealth inequality, not just income inequality, in part because UMP have persisted for much longer than a conventional monetary policy cycle.  [1:  4 Note, however, that in countries with negative interest rates, banks have typically chosen to protect retail customers by not applying negative rates to their deposits (Honohan, 2019).
] 


8. Central banks undertaking UMP have been open to considering the possibility that their effects on income and wealth distribution may be less benign than in the case of conventional monetary policy (Fontan, Claveau, and Dietsch, 2016). In particular, central banks acknowledge that encouraging some risk-taking, and raising asset prices in the process (particularly benefiting wealthy households) is an important part of the transmission channel from UMP to the economy. However, they argue that while this channel taken in isolation might raise inequality, the beneficial—and fairly evenly distributed—gains in labor income from economic recovery are also likely to have been substantial, given the depth of the recession. Haldane (2018) argues that had UMP not been undertaken, the distributional consequences would have been worse. Central banks also recommend that to the extent that there are adverse distributional consequences on some segments of the population, these would be better addressed through fiscal policy rather than by scaling back UMP. 

Empirical evidence 

9. The evidence on the impacts of UMP on income and wealth inequality is mixed. This is not surprising given the lack of a commonly accepted framework for analysis of such effects, the numerous ways in which inequality can be measured, the heterogeneity in household portfolio and labor force composition across countries (and even over the course of the decade), and differences in the timing and specifics of UMP programs. Nevertheless, a number of credible studies do find some evidence of an increase in inequality from UMP. At the same time, these studies do not generally provide evidence on what inequality would have been if UMP had not been carried out or if alternate policies had been adopted; hence, they do not offer a rebuttal of central banks’ argument that the counterfactual would have been worse. 

10. Key studies, many of them carried out by central banks, on the link between UMP and income inequality include the following: 

I. United States: Montecino and Epstein (2017) decompose changes in households’ net income (total income minus interest payments on debt) between 2010 and 2013 into changes coming from employment and returns on various financial assets. They find that while employment changes and mortgage refinancing tended to narrow income inequality, these impacts were outweighed by the increase in inequality from realized equity returns. Using estimates from the literature on the impact of QE on the different 37 components, they conclude that the Fed’s UMP led to modest increases in inequality over this period.5 

II. United Kingdom: Bunn, Pugh, and Yeats (2018) compare the actual change in income components of U.K. households between 2008 and 2014 with their hypothetical values had the BoE kept its monetary policy as in 2008 before the GFC. While UMP had a positive overall impact on aggregate household income, the upper part of the income distribution benefited from a larger increase than the lower part; in fact, the bottom decile percent are estimated to have lost out from the loosening of monetary policy. Mumtaz and Theophilopoulou (2017) also find that quantitative easing worsened income inequality in the United Kingdom, in contrast to the effects of conventional monetary policy easing. 

III. Japan: Saiki and Frost (2014) estimated UMP’s effects on income inequality based on Japanese household survey data spanning from 2008 to 2013. They find that the use of UMP significantly widened income inequality in Japan, mostly through higher realized capital gains for the households at the top of the income distribution. Saiki and Frost (2018) revisited their initial study on a longer time span and confirm their initial results. Using a similar measure for QE on an extended sample (2002–17), TaghizadehHesary, Yoshino, and Shimizu (2018) confirm Saiki and Frost’s results.6 

IV. Euro area: Empirical findings on the distributional impact of UMP in the euro zone have only recently started to emerge. In contrast to the literature cited above for the other countries, these studies tend to conclude that the ECB’s UMP have or will lead to a decrease in income inequality. Some rely on the assumption that an equalizing impact through the labor market will eventually materialize and offset an initial increase in inequality due to lower interest incomes (Bundesbank, 2016). Others translate UMP into a decline in shadow policy interest rates, an assumption likely to understate the impact of the portfolio balance channel—and the consequent increases in asset prices—which are a key transmission channel of UMP (Lenza and Slacalek, 2018). 

11. The impact of UMP on wealth inequality is particularly difficult to assess, given greater challenges in measuring wealth than income. Nevertheless, there is suggestive evidence: 

· The Bank of England (2012) notes that their UMP programs pushed up the prices of equities—of which 40 percent are held by the top 5 percent richest households—by at least as much as it has pushed up the price of the government bonds they bought. 

· Adam and Tzamourani (2016) study the distributional consequences of asset price increases for euro area households. They find that gains from bond price increases have been spread evenly across households, leaving wealth inequality largely unchanged. In contrast, equity price increases largely benefited the top of net wealth (and income) distribution, and thus increased wealth inequality. House price increases display a hump shaped pattern over the net wealth distribution, with the poorest and richest households benefiting least. 

· Domanski, Scatigna, and Zabai (2016) explore the impact of QE in different advanced economies using household survey data. They find that, while low interest rates and rising bond prices have had a negligible impact on wealth inequality, rising equity prices have been a key driver of inequality. Higher housing prices have only partly offset this effect. 

· Dobbs and others (2013)7 examine the distributional effects and risk of QE and ultra-low interest rates in the United States, the United Kingdom, and the euro zone. They provide suggestive evidence that ultra-low interest rates have produced large distributional effects on both incomes and wealth in different segments of the population in advanced economies through changes in interest income and interest expense and through gains in house prices.
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by Andy Haldane from the BoE, setting out their view of the impacts on inequality from
the large monetary policy easing (conventional and AMP) following the GFC. They
conclude that there were benefits from monetary easing across the income distribution,
that these benefits were greatest for those at the top of the distribution but in
propor‘uon to eX|st|ng income and wealth dlstrlbut|ons and therefore did not exacerbate

‘ macro—ﬁnam nerabilities at the heart of monetary policymaking”

gthat argue ingorporating financial vulnerabilities into the Taylor rule, sits
= rd view that “leaning against the wind” is likely to be

his propo6sed rule o uce the build-up of financial vulnerabilities as there is a credible
o them — without necessarily needing to respond with higher rates (i.e.
a rolé). Given we are mostly considering better coordination, as opposed to

commitment to'pe
expectationsy
changes t6 wrt financial stability (?), | think perhaps that question can wait — either

Thanks
Neil

From: Caralee McLiesh [TSY] <Caralee.Mcliesh@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, 20 January 2021 8:51 AM

To: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Ben Gaukrodger [TSY]
<Ben.Gaukrodger@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>;
Bryan Chapple [TSY] <Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY]
<renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; James Beard [TSY] <James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam
Thornton [TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>; Leona Feng [TSY]


https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/-/media/boe/files/speech/2018/how-monetary-policy-affects-your-gdp-speech-by-andy-haldane.pdf?la=en&hash=FCBD26BEE0C888B53856C099796780DED35190A4
https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/-/media/boe/files/speech/2018/how-monetary-policy-affects-your-gdp-speech-by-andy-haldane.pdf?la=en&hash=FCBD26BEE0C888B53856C099796780DED35190A4
https://www.bankofengland.co.uk/-/media/boe/files/speech/2018/how-monetary-policy-affects-your-gdp-speech-by-andy-haldane.pdf?la=en&hash=FCBD26BEE0C888B53856C099796780DED35190A4
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<Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Matthew Galt [TSY] <Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>;
AParliament: Natalie Labuschagne <Natalie.Labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Readout from MoF - Treasury Report: requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to

house prices
olild be add

hould

Thanks Neil, very helpful.

It strikes me there are two main policy concerns about house prie

I think there is a strong case to be made to referé inancial policy links,
as you suggest. | just read an IMF paper you r g or Long" and Risk-

heart of monetary policymakin
emphasis). Itis worth us devel

link between financial and
coordination with fiscal). %

The other question j ing distri concerns, which has been the emphasis of
e our Tsy advi ing section 2bii appears to be the most
to gddress thi ighlevel — but we should also consider a couple of
e feedback fmﬁerday’s meeting. | am keen to know whether there is
tribution nsequences of monetary policy or practices in other central
m | discuss this with Adrian. | think the question is more one

O Q
o utional impacts rather than tools to manage it. As discussed,

vients on the importance of monetary policy being cognisant of
or) distributional impacts Monetary Policy and Inequality: COVID-19 and
planning to contact PIIE to check if they are willing to discuss with us.

government to dat
straightforward way

ny further context and also indication of timing (Andrew mentioned MOF
agreed approach by 24 Feb?).

would

Kind regards

Caralee

From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 19 January 2021 10:42 pm

To: Ben Gaukrodger [TSY] <Ben.Gaukrodger@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY]
<Dasha.leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Caralee McLiesh [TSY]


https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/Departmental-Papers-Policy-Papers/Issues/2020/11/23/Low-for-Long-and-Risk-Taking-49733
https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/Departmental-Papers-Policy-Papers/Issues/2020/11/23/Low-for-Long-and-Risk-Taking-49733
https://www.piie.com/events/monetary-policy-and-inequality-covid-19-and-beyond
https://www.piie.com/events/monetary-policy-and-inequality-covid-19-and-beyond
mailto:Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Ben.Gaukrodger@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz
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<Caralee.Mcliesh@treasury.govt.nz>; Bryan Chapple [TSY] <Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>;

Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; James Beard [TSY]
<James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornton [TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>
Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Matthew Galt [TSY]

<Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>; *Parliament: Natalie Labuschagne

<Natalie.labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz>
Subject: Readout from MoF - Treasury Report: requiring the Resery to have rega

house prices @
Just resending as | had Natalie’s Tsy email and not her Parl&

Natalie — see below

From: Neil Kidd [TSY]

Sent: Tuesday, 19 January 2021 10:41 PM § %
To: Ben Gaukrodger [TSY] <Ben. Gaukrode e .govt.nzs a lleonova [TSY]

Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona Ferg@ . .nz>>Matthew Galt [TSY]
<Matthew.Galt@treasur M l '

Subject: Readout r n requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to
house prices

Natali € with Mo ck on our report on house prices in the RB remits following
i arlier today. Given I’'m not in tomorrow | thought | would jot
ie — you said you would email round tomorrow, feel free to just

° Fin

||cy He would like to progress a section 68B direction, which would then be

d il the forthcoming financial policy remit. He acknowledged that consideration

u chbe required as to how to phrase the government policy the RB should have regard

der the direction and that this could be a complicated question. He would like joint
advice from Tsy and the RB on this issue.

e Monetary policy: He noted that Tsy and the RB were not on the same page on this issue
— specifically with respect to the preferred wording, with the Governor favouring
something added to the government objective set out at the beginning of the remit and
Tsy preferring the Minister’s wording in his letter — “to seek to avoid instability in house
prices”. MoF would like us to explore if there is something that the Governor would be
content with but still delivers the Minister’s objectives. There were several points the
MoF raised with respect to this:

0 Is it possible to have words in another part of the remit, other than including it as

a new requirement to have regard to in section 2B, while still achieving

something?


mailto:Caralee.McLiesh@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz
mailto:Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz
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
mailto:Natalie.Labuschagne@treasury.govt.nz
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0 Is there a way of having something in the remit that captures what is already
happening with respect to the RB considering house prices and just makes that
explicit. As the Governor set out in his response, they do already consider house
prices —so can we reflect that somewhere?

0 Is it possible that the monetary policy remit could acknowledge the relationship
that monetary policy has with financial policy

On the final sub-bullet above...I take this to mean: could we ackng

financial policy remit.

I will pick up on Thursday
Neil

From: Neil Kidd [TSY]

Sent: Friday, 15 January 2021 1:53 P
To: "Parliament: Natalie Labu - <Natalie.labGsch \\:x' parliament.govt.nz>
Cc: Ben Gaukrodger [TSY] <Ben:

scha
v N
rodger(@ tr.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY]
<Dasha.leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Caralee %SSY]
apple [TSY] <

N
<Caralee.Mcliesh(@ trz>; Bry‘ !

Renee Philip [TSY] s«re e ip@treasuny t.nz>; James Beard [TSY]
<James.Beard@ evt.nz> NY%
Subject: Draf 0 Report: requliring.the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices

Please find attache -@

Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>;

e-draft TR on requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices.

We are still aw e further views from the Governor so we might have some things to
addtoafi ersion. Either way, we will provide a finalised version through the proper channels
on Mond

Thank@

Neil

Neil Kidd | Principal Advisor, Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | The Treasury

Tel:s9(2)(k) | Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz

The information in this email is confidential to the Treasury, intended only for the addressee(s), and may also be legally privileged. If
you are not an intended addressee:

a. please immediately delete this email and notify the Treasury by return email or telephone (64 4 472 2733);

b. any use, dissemination or copying of this email is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.
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Source: IMF Intendent evaluation of the IMF work on UMP impacts

file:///C:/Users/dimaioM/Downloads/ump-bp05-the-risks-side-effects-of-ump-an-assessment-of-
imf-views-analysis.pdf

UNCONVENTIONAL MONETARY POLICIES AND INEQUALITY /&
( '« N\

Portfolio and labor income channels \\)/}?

6. It has long been recognized that monetary policy actions istributional effegg\\( rgenspan,

1998). Expansionary monetary policy, i.e., lowering of policy interest rates, lowers interest incomes,
other things equal. At the same time, it also raises lab i@ofrfﬁgs by reducir em loyment and

i 3 their asset po‘s{' \x labor force status,
tfolio an \bQ‘ingtﬁme channels. The
presumption, supported by some empirical evi 1as been t (o) vast majority of
households, the latter effect dominates and mc that the g labor income are fairly

' conventio a@\X}z‘}nsionary monetary policy is

. Moreoveér 'nk<:§fhe monetary easing is usually

generally believed to decrease incomgi

reversed in a year or two as the economy r ng:‘)vers, the nsidered not to have a permanent
impact on the distribution of in@e., there is little | n wealth inequality from
conventional monetary polic ) -

0N
7. Though similar channgliy eratein the cas o&UMP,Athere have been concerns that UMP may be

more prone to raising mgqﬁahﬂl he natu e portfolio channel may be somewhat different
with UMP than with(g\n\vejﬁiohal monetan . On the one hand, the cut in policy interest rates
to zero and even to negati évalues% e forward guidance to hold rates low for an extended

retired people n.with limited alternatives.! This point was emphasized in a 2013 study by

stitute, V\yﬁi that “younger households that are net borrowers” had

MP. On the\dgbé\r\nd, with UMP, central banks are rather explicitly trying to push
up the prices.of risky asse S e\quity prices and house prices), which have larger shares in the
portfo io: of/higher-in;(coﬁ%Q/ seholds. Critics have argued that this effect can be substantial and
can even offset the eq él*rZyg impact of UMP through the labor income channel. Moreover, by
leading to a pe %rease in the prices of risky assets, UMP may also have led to an increase in
wealth inequali t just income inequality, in part because UMP have persisted for much longer
than a con nalmonetary policy cycle.

£

8. Centirakbé/nk;s undertaking UMP have been open to considering the possibility that their effects on
incomeWalth distribution may be less benign than in the case of conventional monetary policy
(Fontan, Claveau, and Dietsch, 2016). In particular, central banks acknowledge that encouraging
some risk-taking, and raising asset prices in the process (particularly benefiting wealthy households)
is an important part of the transmission channel from UMP to the economy. However, they argue
that while this channel taken in isolation might raise inequality, the beneficial —and fairly evenly
distributed—gains in labor income from economic recovery are also likely to have been substantial,
given the depth of the recession. Haldane (2018) argues that had UMP not been undertaken, the

1 4 Note, however, that in countries with negative interest rates, banks have typically chosen to protect retail
customers by not applying negative rates to their deposits (Honohan, 2019).
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distributional consequences would have been worse. Central banks also recommend that to the
extent that there are adverse distributional consequences on some segments of the population,
these would be better addressed through fiscal policy rather than by scaling back UMP.

ixed. This is &
ch effects th

Empirical evidence

9. The evidence on the impacts of UMP on income and wealth inequ
surprising given the lack of a commonly accepted framework for analy

numerous ways in which inequality can be measured, the heteroger ousehold p@*tf@llo and
labor force composition across countries (and even over the ¢ the decade) al'\Lgdlf erences

some evidence of an increase in inequality from UMP. A 51& same time, these'st
generally provide evidence on what inequality wouldhave b een'if UMP

d by the increase in inequality from realized
eli I/terature on the impact of QE on the different
e Fed’s UMP led to modest increases in inequality

%&BOE kept its ry policy as in 2008 before the GFC. While UMP had a

ive overallé'ﬁé;\ct\ aggregate household income, the upper part of the income

L _distribution % rom a larger increase than the lower part; in fact, the bottom

. /deC|Ie per/cent are estimated to have lost out from the loosening of monetary policy.
az.2 BT’r}eophllopoulou (2017) also find that quantitative easing worsened

nequality in the United Kingdom, in contrast to the effects of conventional

inc

iki and Frost (2014) estimated UMP’s effects on income inequality based on

se household survey data spanning from 2008 to 2013. They find that the use of

/P significantly widened income inequality in Japan, mostly through higher realized
cap|tal gains for the households at the top of the income distribution. Saiki and Frost
(2018) revisited their initial study on a longer time span and confirm their initial results.
Using a similar measure for QE on an extended sample (2002-17), TaghizadehHesary,
Yoshino, and Shimizu (2018) confirm Saiki and Frost’s results.6

V. Euro area: Empirical findings on the distributional impact of UMP in the euro zone have
only recently started to emerge. In contrast to the literature cited above for the other
countries, these studies tend to conclude that the ECB’s UMP have or will lead to a
decrease in income inequality. Some rely on the assumption that an equalizing impact
through the labor market will eventually materialize and offset an initial increase in
inequality due to lower interest incomes (Bundesbank, 2016). Others translate UMP into
a decline in shadow policy interest rates, an assumption likely to understate the impact
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of the portfolio balance channel—and the consequent increases in asset prices—which
are a key transmission channel of UMP (Lenza and Slacalek, 2018).

11. The impact of UMP on wealth inequality is particularly difficult to assess, given greater
challenges in measuring wealth than income. Nevertheless, there is suggestive evidence:

The Bank of England (2012) notes that their UMP programs p the prices @
equities—of which 40 percent are held by the top 5 percent ric usehold{ by at

as much as it has pushed up the price of the governme ds they bought. \\ ) )

s have been spread
evenly across households, leaving wealth ineq I{Ey\iargely unchanged.Incontrast, equity
price increases largely benefited the top of €ea thf(énd |nco/me) istribution, and thus
increased wealth inequality. House price i ed pattern over the
net wealth distribution, with the poorest ar o nefltlng least.
Domanski, Scatigna, and Zabai (201 i
economies using household survey

bond prices have had a negligib% ine Ml't\/ rising equity prices have been

fferent advanced

a key driver of inequality Higﬁi@ artly offset this effect.
Dobbs and others (2013) >\t i n: ‘re ects and risk of QE and ultra-low
interest rates in the Unite B\Q ates, the Unit d<l§idgd , and the euro zone. They provide

suggestive evidenc ra ow interest. rat\ ave produced large distributional effects
in differe @ents of the population in advanced economies
j erest expense and through gains in house prices.
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From: Neil Kidd [TSY]

Sent: Thursday, 28 January 2021 2:28 pm

To: Leona Feng [TSY]; Sam Thornton [TSY]; Mario DiMaio [TSY]; Renee Philip [TSY];
Dasha Leonova [TSY]; James Beard [TSY]

Subject: RE: Draft timetable of options for s 68B and remit.docx

Follow Up Flag: Follow up @ &

Flag Status: Flagged ‘ (\j\]

N -
My view is that it would be good to have one TR that covered by hg MP remit and th%%t\i;%together. | think
omm

there are some interactions between the 2 of them. This is wh t@ahe7r1visage us récom ding....
Updating the Government economic objective in the mone icy remit tg i(;: a reference to house prices
(possibly, but not necessarily, the exact language that escribe the Government policy that

e%c( 68B uses Q.&
financial policy should have regard to) )
A new section in the MP remit that requires the iblyco

nmunicate) the impact their
decisions are having on the government econo N>
A new requirement in the remit requiring th o\c ordinate with financial policy with regards the impacts that
monetary policy is having (on the government objective, or just'g )

A section 68B that e.g. requires the Ban@e regard to price consideration when formulating
financial policy / ~
(¢
v
o

This hangs together as a packag@ cause it%\!% b/é MPC to assess the impact they are having on house

prices, communicate that and coordinate with fin olicy. In turn financial policy is required to have regard to
house prices. So we are not qu i onetary-poli ave regard to house prices but they do have to assess the
re) appr {Hﬁ%ﬁn ncial levers for tackling high house prices.

impact and coordinate with the (
|. But that means We have to switch to option 2 timing or the section 68B gang need

02 ?13@?-
F&gjreasury.gov‘c.nv

ornton@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>;

Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kid

Subject: RE: DrgﬁT
{ \
Hi Everyone, @/

I made a few tweaks (for clarity, not substance) to the timetable before sending it onto the Minister last night. |
have attached that version which:

e Makes it clearer in Option 1 that there will be 2 Cabinet papers - one on Tax/Housing and one on the
remit/s68 decisions. | understood from discussions that 2 separate cab papers is the preference for
officials/RBNZ. Both Cab papers are essentially on the same time track, except that the first draft of the
Tax/Housing is due to the office on the 4™,

e Based on the first bullet, and that your timetable noted that the Minister will receive the draft Cab paper on
the 10™ Feb, | made changes to clarify that MoF would not take an Oral item to Cabinet on the 15% but
would take the actual s68 and remit paper Cab paper.

e Also to note, Ministers are being asked to always take papers through a Cab committee (hence my
emphasis on the 2 oral items at DEV).

asury.govt.nz>; James Beard [TSY] <James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>
able of options for s 68B and remit.docx
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Please shout out ASAP if there are concerns with any of the tweaks attached but hopefully not.

Based on the attached the Minister noted:
e The slower timetable for both (Option 2) is not the Minister’s first preference but he can accept it if that is
necessary to make sure “we get it right”. Particularly for S68B where we are in new territory.
e However, the trade-off for the Minister is the remit. The Minister accepts that either way the Governor will
be asked how this would have affected the decision or has affected the decision.
e But the Minister’s view is that officials should see if they can get the it done in the ne k or two
before the Tax/Housing Cabinet paper. If not, then officials can re ntentioqﬁ((if/bot

B \\f )
| hope this clarifies things but give me a call if not. \\‘;\—7/

Natalie

Q

Natalie Labuschagne | Economic Advisor 7 Y
Office of Hon Grant Robertson \ \
Minister of Finance \\1 \\\ %
Level 7.6 Executive Wing, Parliament Buildings, P 8041, Wellington X

T: s9(2)(k) | M:Is9(2)(a)(ii)
E: natalie.labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz

NP
N or the addressee only. If you are not the intended

euse of its contents. If received in error you are

The information contained in this email is privileged and confidential and inten
recipient, you are asked to respect that confidentiality e;)*iisclose, copy o
asked to destroy this email and contact the sender immediately. Your assi

(N
-/

-
From: Leona Feng [TSY] [maiJfo:L\eﬁﬁQ.Eeng@tre& .gavt.nz]
Sent: Wednesday, 27 Januar 2@2\1\\{}731 PM ([

To: Natalie Labuschagnigma ie{Labuscha Eﬂi'a'ment.govt.nv

Cc: Sam Thornton [TSY] amornton@treas\u{}g\gvt.np; Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>;
Renee Philip [TSY] @we.x\mﬂi/p@treagmw.govt.np; Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil
Kidd [TSY] <Neil/l(@d@t(e£urv.govtmz\>\; M Beard [TSY] <James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: timeétable of optio\ﬁ?\\s 8B and remit.docx

b

'S o
U<

)
/)

Hi Natalie

ble doc for MoF and some comments from Treasury and RBNZ. Much appreciated if you
any feedback (particularly around preferred timing of the announcement and what he

Below is the updated ti
could let us know if
would like to anno
/-
Treasury view | /\\B )
Option 2 would be preferable to allow more time to develop options and think through the broader policy
implications. However, we think Option 1 would also be workable, though there are some risks to timing as we
undertake consultation and seek agreement on the wording of s 68B and the remit changes. There may also be

some legal risks around the definition of what ‘government policy’ is and what the RBNZ's relevant ‘functions’ are.

There is a judgement to be made about whether to announce the confirmed wording of the remit before or after
the MPC statement on 24 February. If the wording of the remit is announced before the MPC statement, the
Governor would likely be questioned on how the decision would have been different under the new remit
(acknowledging that it is not yet in effect).

RBNZ view

Option 2 would allow for extra consultation time so that the wording for s.68B is exactly right. It would be the first
time this option in the legislation has been exercised and we would want to make sure it is done well, also with a
view to how the RBNZ might be able to respond to it.
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Option 2 will give us more time to think about how the Reserve Bank will respond to the Direction before it is
announced and would bring the public announcement closer to the Governor’s speech. That should make
communications easier for both sides, aligning messages where possible and demonstrating that Treasury and the
Reserve Bank are coordinating effectively around this issue.

Allowing some time between the RBNZ LVR announcement and the s 68B direction will also make it easier to
articulate how the direction has been taken into account, which RBNZ thinks would also be in the Minister’s interest.

cement in later Fébruary should
also make it clear that the s.68B Direction is not a reaction to the LVR decision, whic otherW|s)€c9
misinterpreted by the media as RB and Tsy/minister not being fully coordinat he RBNZ’s L\ R&eﬁlon

' pact of then seftmgs and will
revisit them in a few months’ time, with a view to using the FSR as a for any potenti e
announcements.

From a monetary policy point of view, Option 2 would give
board on the changes, and also provides greater clarity that
existing remit.

ore tlme/fo C finate with MPC and the

MPS d%n\s\are eing made under the

Cheers
Leona

o

From: Natalie Labuschagne <NataJ1 fhagne@par(é{n}m\,govt.np

Sent: Wednesday, 27 January 2 Zl/3 -/

To: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona/Feng@ﬁ¥e/35ury govthz

Cc: Sam Thornton [TSY] <S@r}x“ﬁwrn§on@treasurv§ok >: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>;
Renee Philip [TSY] <rene//|5)rrd\3@ftreasurv g@t}m@)fsha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil
Kidd [TSY] <Ne|I.K|dd@ﬁeaWovt.nz>

Subject: RE: Draft ti

Woptions@ and remit.docx

\%

Office’of Hon Gr.
Minister of Fin
Level 7.6 Ex

T: ss>(2\%><£/>
E: natali h

The information cpnta \.\\>ms email is privileged and confidential and intended for the addressee only. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are éie Jrespect that confidentiality and not disclose, copy or make use of its contents. If received in error you are
asked to destroy this ma/l and contact the sender immediately. Your assistance is appreciated.

<SA((ii
e@parliament.govt.nz

From: Leona Feng [TSY] [mailto:Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz]

Sent: Wednesday, 27 January 2021 3:22 PM

To: Natalie Labuschagne <Natalie.Labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz>

Cc: Sam Thornton [TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>;
Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil
Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: Draft timetable of options for s 68B and remit.docx
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Hi Natalie
As discussed, here is a draft timetable for options to implement s 68B and the MP remit changes.

We will get back to you later this afternoon to confirm whether RB has any feedback once we have had a chat with
them, along with any further background/comments on timing risks.

Cheers
Leona

& TE TAl OHANGA
THE TREASURY

Leona Feng | Senior Analyst, Financial Markets | Te Taj
Tel: s9(2)(k) | Email/IM: Leona.Feng@treasury

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

The information in this email is confidentia
are not an intended addressee:
a. please |mmed|ately delete this ema al

mail or telephone (64 4 472 2733);
may be unlawful.
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Date Option 1 (fast track) - MoF Option 2 (slower track) - MoF
announces actual announces intention to:
e 68B direction e issue s68B direction
e changes to MP remit e changes to MP remit
1 Feb Tsy to work up text for s68B, consult | Draft opti rremit changes(a
with RBNZ on text s68B, dIS u roach W|thRBNZ
RBNZ and Tsy to agree text for remit )
4 Feb TR: Tax policy advice paper signals N@ advice paﬁ\r\s/lgﬂafs next
next steps on s68B and remit ste S 8B and remit

S

TR: Substantive advice on s68 and
remit You ywll receive a rrrrft,,,]f x/Housing
(You will receive a draft Tax/Hous'@Y@b paper) ‘/‘ /\\
Cab paper) -~ N\ )
5orw/c9 Feb RBNZ announces LVR decisio@/ [VR decision
e draft text for remit and
568<I§ consultwith RBNZ on text
W/c 8 Feb DEV: : %?ht/em on upcoming
Oral item on upcom%ax/‘ ousing 'Pak sing Cab paper includes high
Cab paper \} — & \%@l irection on remit and s68B
Oral item on ing Cab paperion’ |
direction 9@ &hwalpﬂgSGSB / ’<< -
10 Feb You WI/ Wraft Cab Kér\ ) ) | TR: Substantive advice to MoF on s68B
with s SfﬁndY it decisian and Remit
/oc{gmg tha f ‘week

Lodging of Tax Cab paper (includes high
Bb paper level direction on remit and s68B)

11/12 Feb fTax Cab pap
)Qgng s68 andém{
B

15 Feb ax Cabinet pap@r\cbnSIdered. CAB: Tax Cabinet paper considered
: s68B and. remit-Cab paper (paper signals intention to issue s68B
onsidered > and remit).

ovt-announces and issues Govt announces intention to issue s68B
ide‘other housing and direction of MP remit changes
zette and table s68B in alongside other housing measures

22 Feb PN Executive Council — OIC — for remit Incorporate feedback from MoF and

( \\ changes revise draft Cab paper on s68 and remit
24 Feb — )| mps (decision taken under old remit) | MPS (decision taken under old remit)
After 24 Feb Govt issues new MP remit (following

OIC process)

Present remit to the House
25 Feb Lodging of s68 and remit Cab paper
1 March Cabinet approval,

Executive Council approves OIC for
remit changes

After 1 March Gazette and table s68B in Parliament
Announcement of s68B and remit
changes (following OIC process)
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Present remit to the House
Governor speech outlining how the
Bank will take new remit / s68b into
account
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From: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, January 22, 2021 3:18 PM
To: Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>
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Cc: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: RBNZ Tsy Alternative Monetary Policy catch up

Hi Mike, Chris,

monetary policy remit (received from our secondee in his office) to help ensurexye are on the sam
will be your first day back Mike but do you think we could meet on Tuesda m out gf office
and an initial chat might be useful? It can probably wait til Thursday if n
e Financial policy: He would like to progress a section 68B dire hich would thlected in the
forthcoming financial policy remit. He acknowledged that-consideration would be required as to how to

I thought | would jot down my readout about what the Minister decided on section 68B, financial policy remit and
'é:

e Wednesday

phrase the government policy the RB should have regardto under the dire dhthat this could be a
complicated question. He would like joint advice fro ’ v.andthe RB o e.
e Monetary policy: He noted that Tsy and the RB hat preference s‘t e exact wording to capture a

house price consideration. MoF would like us to 0
with but still delivers his objectives. There wére r
0 s it possible to have words in anothe Lo
requirement to have regard to i

0 Isthere a way of having som
happening with respect to the

0 Isit possible that the mo
policy has with finangial po
g mean: nowledge somewhere in the remit that monetary

On the final sub-bullet above...I 3
policy creates some negative co

e distributional consequences of high house prices) and it is
ated to tackle those consequences.

Neil
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From: Elle Hughes [TSY]
Sent: Wednesday, 3 February 2021 3:06 pm
To: Michael Thornley
Subject: RE: Consultation timeframes - joint report on RB housing objectives
Amazing, thanks! Leona incorporating in her section now. On track to have ing with yom’@thin next halfa
From: Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz> g\/J

Sent: Wednesday, 3 February 2021 2:56 pm
To: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Consultation timeframes - joint report on RB ho

Elle,

‘Supporting sustainable house prices’ requiresth a/mk to consj

st some sustainable level. In practice, this

requirements and loan-to-value ratio p |®1ffec;c house 5@5 7
\‘ T~ . . . .
would require an assessment of wh se prices aﬁ;WiK'n oﬁwe range of ‘fair value’.l! This includes looking

|
\

\ \
for signs of shorter-term portfoljo i nt driver @eekt/d expected capital gains, eg a significant rise in the

imies

share of houses purchased bfpr}(jp}g@y/investors warranted fall in rental yields.

[ Measures of fair v, i comparisgh-.of house prices to (i) the affordability of owner occupiers in the prevailing

ost-a ding a new house.

\/

Mike
From: Elle Hughjéfs g\&lle.Hughes@treasurv.govt.np

Sent: Wednesd\éﬁ\F bruary 3, 2021 12:28 PM
To: Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Consultation timeframes - joint report on RB housing objectives

Hi Mike,

Just tried to call you re this, to relay a bit of the discussions we’re having with legal — not sure how in the loop Nick’s
been to date, but might be worthwhile bringing him closer in to review when report circulated later today.

Thanks for relaying, and will consider it — and reflect in report partly in light of how PCO are likely to react to such
drafting instructions.
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Out of scope

From: Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, 3 February 2021 11:37 am

To: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz> &

Subject: RE: Consultation timeframes - joint report on RB housing objectiv /(7
NS,

Hi Elle,

On the MPC remit and need to remove the cross-reference withs68B, Christian has asked:

I don’t understand how asking the MPC to “assess” somethjng he> “inconsist, @t\@e economic objective”, as
it does call on any action from the MPC in regard to its t tive

| think that is a fair challenge. Grateful if you could C%@t UItimateI propose the policy with having a
tion.

s68B cross-reference and let PCO weigh up this sti

Cheers ) @E
Mike
o)
Q}.govt.nz{ \Qb
W |

From: Elle Hughes [TSY] <EIIe.Hughe@g
Sent: Tuesday, February 2, 202% \QJ
To: Michael Thornley <Michael. rnl}v rbnz.govt.

Subject: RE: Consultation tiry s ~joint repo ousing objectives

—

I

Superb, and yes! Relevant H be there. ulevel 3 —advanced apologies for squishy room booking.

From: Michael T chael.Thor?rL}y«@%nz.govt.nD

Sent: Tuesday, 2021 2:5%
To: Elle Hu E@\[L lle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: Co Itation timﬁﬁjﬂﬁe@&int report on RB housing objectives
<\

Hi Elle — just to confirm avan and | will head over to TSY at 3:30. Useful if you can bring along the key

people at your end (if

See yousoon ©

From: Elle Hug@&%} <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Monday, February 1, 2021 11:35 AM

To: Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Chris Parker [TSY] <Chris.Parker@treasury.govt.nz>; John
Beaglehole [TSY] <John.Beaglehole@treasury.govt.nz>; Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Chris
Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Stephen Revill [TSY] <Stephen.Revill@treasury.govt.nz>; Stephen Bond [TSY]
<Stephen.Bond@treasury.govt.nz>; Felicity Barker [TSY] <Felicity.Barker@treasury.govt.nz>; Greg Low [TSY]
<Greg.Low@treasury.govt.nz>

Cc: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornton
[TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>; Cam Vannisselroy [TSY] <Cam.Vannisselroy@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario
DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: Consultation timeframes - joint report on RB housing objectives

Hi all,
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This email provides a heads up on our intended timelines for consulting you on the upcoming joint report on
requiring the Bank to have regard to house prices, due with the Minister on Thursday. As you know, the report will
provide follow-up advice on options to issue a s68b direction, and options to amend the remit, to support the
Government’s housing objectives.

On timelines, we're planning for —

i COP today — circulate a first draft to you for working-level commen

ii. 12pm Tuesday — receive working-level comments, Treasury team vise accordin

iii. COP Tuesday — circulate a revised draft for comments from Ca Cha pple/B;ank (via Mike,
Chris). \\J

iv. 12pm Wednesday — receive SLT-level comments, revise a

V. COP Wednesday — circulate for Treasury managers’ sign nee, Dasha/Sa % dfor near-final
Bank visibility. \;

Vi. Thursday — to Minister, final version circulate fyi.

O\
y others &@md\a so be include in circulation
_/

Please let us know if that doesn’t look practicable, or if ther
rounds. _

Best,

Elle

z TE TAl OHANGA
¢ THE TREASUR

Elle Hughes | Macroeconomic an/6/>F|s al Policy | T anga The Treasury
Tel: s92)(k) | Email: Hleﬁughe/s@treasu@\g

CONFIDENTIALITY ICE

\\

t ly /elete this email, an the Treasury by return email or telephone (64 4 472 2733);
ination or copylﬁrg/of tgx\ ernail is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

%\\/

[
"This message (an emymes} transmitted with it) are confidential and
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
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(11 Measures of fair value include comparison of house prices to (i) the affordability of owner occupiers in the prevailing
macroeconomic environment or (ii) the cost of building a new house.
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From: Elle Hughes [TSY]

Sent: Thursday, 4 February 2021 11:24 am

To: michael.thornley@rbnz.govt.nz; chris.bloor@rbnz.govt.nz
Cc: Neil Kidd [TSY]; Renee Philip [TSY]

Subject: Expiry of replacement remit

Hi Mike, Chris,

We'd like to get MoF’s agreement to an expiry date in this T irform dr |;n F the Cab paper. We're

leaning to recommend it expire in line with when the currer would e@hj bruary 2024). Do you have

views/preferences? Happy to chat. @

Elle C 3 >
nsbs TE TAI OHANGA ®

w2y THE TREASURY —

e Treasury

)
Elle Hughes | Macroeconomic and Fis licy’ | Te Tai Oh:
Tel s9@)(K) | Email: Elle. es@treasury.govt ng\/
("N \,:/
)

/C{/?
@\7

N
There’s a choice about when we specify the replacement remi% xpire (up t
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From: Bryan Chapple [TSY]

VoY
From: Renee Philip [ %philip@treasury.govt.nv
Sent: Thursday, 4 kebruary-2021 6:13 PM

To: Bryan Chapple <Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>

Cc: James Beard E‘@] James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>; Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil
Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: FW: For review - DRAFT Treasury Report on Housing Policy and the Reserve Bank

Hi Bryan

RB comments attached - We didn’t manage to get this out before Natalie went home so will be picking up the Bank’s
comments overnight, doing some consistency checks and sending it across tomorrow.

Their most significant comment was about the remit. Consistent with what you agreed, the Bank have redrafted the
remit recommendation to the following (changes in bold):
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The Treasury and the Bank jointly recommend that you seek a new remit that incorporates the
government's housing policy via a reference to s68b directions. Indicative proposed wording
agreed between the Treasury and the Bank is:

In pursuing the operational objectives, the MPC shall: [...] Assess the potential material impacts of
its monetary policy decisions on Government policies outlined in section 68B directions.

As discussed, we are a bit uncomfortable with this s9(2)(h)

s9(2)(h) One option would be to delete the words “ag between the
Treasury and the Bank” just before the wording, which we would be slightly 1 comfortable with, we are

AoF had w{mgd agree
therwise we NI\\aVe tasis.

wording. Let me know if you would be comfortable with us making t

If you want to see it the latest imanage version is here: Treasury Report ousing policy and e\/RZserve Bank

(Treasury:4414750v1) |A | dd to worklist %
I’'m WFH in the morning but we’re aiming to get to Natalie @

Cheers %\ %
Renee \%
%

From: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz
Sent: Thursday, 4 February 2021 5:49 pm
To: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona. Feng@treas/uw\govt nz> Mic }h y <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Elle

Hughes [TSY] <Elle. Hughes@treasury/g@ ‘Cavan 0'C e <Cavan O'Connor-Close@rbnz.govt.nz>;
James Beard [TSY] <James. Beard@ r t nz>
Cc: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario. D’@aﬁ@{ﬁésurv gox/>n Thornton [TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>;

Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha. Lebnoya@treasurv g&% Cam Vannlsselroy [TSY]

<Cam. Vanmsselrov@treasur@M ; Renee hm\\[}&\ﬁ <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; John Beaglehole [TSY]
<John.Beaglehole@treas@vlg\@vt/mé, Freya TSY)<Freya.Dean@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil Kidd [TSY]
<Neil.Kidd@treasury. g&yt%z/;' eg Low [TS Low@treasury.govt.nz>; Stephen Revill [TSY]

<Stephen. Rewll@trgasury\g\o .nz>; Mario DiMaio/[TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: For 1, FT Treasu on Housing Policy and the Reserve Bank

We have a f dits, reﬂ@derstandmg of the discussion. Let me know if any issues.

Cheers,

Chris

From: Leona Feng ona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, y 2021 5:24 PM

To: Michael Thor ichael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Cavan
O'Connor- CIose O Connor-Close@rbnz.govt.nz>; Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; James Beard

<James.beard@treasury.govt.nz>

Cc: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornton [TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>;
Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Cam Vannisselroy [TSY]
<Cam.Vannisselroy@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; John Beaglehole [TSY]
<John.Beaglehole@treasury.govt.nz>; Freya Dean [TSY] <Freya.Dean@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil Kidd [TSY]
<Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Greg Low [TSY] <Greg.Low@treasury.govt.nz>; Stephen Revill [TSY]
<Stephen.Revill@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: For review - DRAFT Treasury Report on Housing Policy and the Reserve Bank

Hi all
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Please see attached the final draft report for your review.

This includes Legal advice that this is being shared for reasons of common interest, subject to confidentiality, and is
not intended to be a waiver of legal privilege. We are still working through the final text for the Legal advice. We
have highlighted in the comments where substantive changes for your review.

Much appreciated if you could get back to us within the next 15 minutes, apologies for the tight timeframes.

Kind regards

Leona @

From: Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 4 February 2021 9:29 am

To: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Leona F SY] <Leona. Feng@«aasu .govt.nz>; Cavan
0O'Connor-Close <Cavan.0O'Connor-Close@rbnz.govt.nz>; Chrlz Iggr ‘Zthrls Bloor@ nz\gQEnv James Beard [TSY]

<James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>
Cc: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury. govt n rnton [T, \sgg hornton@treasury.govt.nz>;
Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt. z>€‘§3 annisselr y
<Cam.Vannisselroy@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip ee. phlllp I{e ury.govt.nz>; John Beaglehole [TSY]
<John.Beaglehole@treasury.govt.nz>; Freya Dea va.Dean@ﬁa&Movt nz>; Neil Kidd [TSY]

<Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Greg Low [TSY] <Greg.Lo @treasuW\e,o\(t anStephen Revill [TSY]
<Stephen.Revill@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario Diﬂ@?ﬂ <Mar|o easurv govt.nz>
Subject: RE: For review - DRAFT Treasury Report ousing P d\ﬁe Reserve Bank

Hi Elle,
Ahead of our meeting, please f| d our co he report.
We understand that Adria |N§§I|s uss the re ralee later today and is seeklng to narrow the options

wording in the MP

e We continue to/bglj it is best to remove option 3
A more minor but i a oint is that ‘we’ is used throughout the report. It will be necessary to check that ‘we’
cannot be misc sQ o refer to the Bank and TSY in places (I've picked up a few in the attached comments)
Regards \,/
Mike

From: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, February 3, 2021 3:32 PM

To: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Cavan O'Connor-Close <Cavan.O'Connor-
Close@rbnz.govt.nz>; Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>;
James Beard <james.beard@treasury.govt.nz>

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

3
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<Stephen.Revill@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: For review - DRAFT Treasury Report on Housing Policy and the Reserve Bank

Hi all,

placeholders we’re working to resolve (particularly on process implications)
to tease out any final comments, and/or views to be reflected. Could you
morning.

This has still yet to be reviewed by our senior leadership team, and
changes we propose.
\y]c>utstan§ﬁ/ﬁ"' i

[

Let’s pencil in a feedback chat tomorrow morning to work t
to between now and COP)? 9.30am?

Elle

From: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona. Feng@treasury%&it \3
Sent: Tuesday, 2 February 2021 6:01 pm \\95@/

To: Cavan O'Connor-Close <Cavan.0O'Conner-Close@tbnz.govt.
Thornley<M|chaeI.Thornlev@rbnz.govt/ni\\

Cc: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario. DlMa@lt E/surv govt.nz>;
Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha. Leon@a@{éﬁsury govt n2>$\C\am annisselroy [TSY]
<Cam.Vannisselroy@treasury. g@/\mnzx\ e Hughe Ile/Hughes@treasurv govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY]
<renee.philip@treasury.govinz>; f@tm/Beagleho Y].<John.Beaglehole@treasury.govt.nz>; Freya Dean [TSY]

<Freya.Dean@treasury. govt\m% >
Subject: For review: Draft h\%d advice

restzonly loans

We have also decide

your review. \\\X‘

We will get the revised TR over to you tomorrow for consultation. It would be useful if you could also provide us
with any text on the Reserve Bank’s views on the options and how it would interpret the policy of ‘sustainable house
prices’.

Kind regards

A TE TAl OHANGA
THE TREASURY

Leona Feng | Senior Analyst, Financial Markets | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury
Tel: s9(2)(k) | Email/IM: Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz
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From: Cavan O'Connor-Close <Cavan.0O'Connor-Close@rbnz.govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 2 February 2021 12:57 pm

To: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY]
<renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Chris Parker [TSY] <Chris.Parker@treasury.govt.nz>; John Beaglehole [TSY]
<John.Beaglehole@treasury.govt.nz>; Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Stephen Revill [TSY]
<Stephen.Revill@treasury.govt.nz>; Stephen Bond [TSY] <Stephen. Bond@treasmv govt.nz>; Felicity’'Barker [TSY]

<Felicity.Barker@treasury.govt.nz>; Greg Low [TSY] <Greg. Low@treasurv go en Thirkell-W
White@rbnz.govt.nz> /77

Cc: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornton [TSY] <S on@treasu?WEO)/t nz>; Cam
Vannisselroy [TSY] <Cam.Vannisselroy@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario Di Marlo Di re@‘tﬁeasurv govt.nz>;
Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Elle Hughe <EIIe.Hughes@\eaéurv.govt.nb, James

Beard [TSY] <James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: For review: Draft report on RB and housing obje

Hi Leona,

ping up ni great effort in such a short period
afewm r ac anges in the document.

Thanks for sharing the first draft of the report with t
of time. Below is a list of high level comments, and there a

Feel free to contact me if you have any quest@
Regards,
Cavan

Summary of commentsto T

High level comments:
assume that the

e This report see er can direct or encourage the Reserve Bank to use specific
tools, and ti isris‘both de5| le and within the spirit / letter of s68b (this comes through most clearly in

the discu 2 erest -0 n nd in option 3). However, s68B specifically states that “The Minister
may et\ a k}qu\vres the performance or non-performance of a particular act by the Bank”.
Th |@the otion of 56 ive the Reserve Bank an idea of a government policy and the Reserve Bank

chooses how to take 5 it via its various tools (rather than be directed or encouraged to use a
particular tool, in h ther or not to restrict interest only mortgages).

e Some of the pos &?ﬁ Fnroughout the document, including in paragraphs 24, 27 and 30 needs to be
objectives,
some of the-Government’s objectives to have regard to when setting policy. This will not lead the Reserve
Bank t nqﬁymg new risks, but may lead to the Bank tilting their tools / calibration to achieve the same
outcome'in a-different way.

e There seems to be some confusion between the Reserve Bank’s functions (which the s68b direction should
relate to) and the Bank’s objectives. That is, the direction should not be tied back to soundness and
efficiency (the Reserve Bank’s objectives), rather it should be giving the Bank another factor to have regard

to, while leaving the Bank to determine what constitutes a risk to soundness and efficiency. This is a
technical point but worth correcting, in our opinion.

Options:

e There is reference to a government economic objective to “decrease house price acceleration”. This is
slightly confusing, we suggest reframing this as “sustained low/moderate house price growth over time”.

e It may be worth dropping Option 3 for the s68B direction as it adds nothing above Option 2. The additional
wording “which could be considered when the RBNZ is developing relevant financial policy, for example on
loan-to-value ratios, debt-to-income ratios and risk weighted assets” adds nothing, as under the Act the
Bank will already have to have regard to the direction when setting financial policy.

5
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MPC remit:
e The MPC remit section all looks fine, and is consistent with our preferred direction.

From: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Monday, 1 February 2021 6:05 PM
To: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; arker [TSY]

<Chris.Parker@treasury.govt.nz>; John Beaglehole [TSY] <John.Beaglehole@héasﬁ(y./govt.npﬁ/mh?e ornley

<Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Stephen Revill [TSY] <Stephen.Revill@h‘e)asuw.govt.np' Stephen Bond [TSY]
2g Ltow [TSY]
Ben Thirkell-White

<Stephen.Bond@treasury.govt.nz>; Felicity Barker [TSY] <Fe|icitv.BarJér@ﬁaEs/urv.govt.n
<Greg.Low@treasury.govt.nz>; Cavan O'Connor-Close <Cavan.O‘ConWe@rbnz. ovt.n
<Ben.Thirkell-White@rbnz.govt.nz> ™
Cc: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornt ‘
Vannisselroy [TSY] <Cam.Vannisselroy@treasury.govt.nz>; iMaio [TSY] Ma(\io,\&waio@treasurv.govt.nz>;

Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; es [TSY] @Hes@treasurv.govt.np; James

Beard <james.beard@treasury.govt.nz> %

Subject: For review: Draft report on RB and housing ‘ebjective
)

Hi all

wae
Attached is the first draft of the rep @es to th/eﬂ?% s 68B direction.

Please note that this draft (and referfed optior
moment, and the draft has yet.to i

am.Thorntgn@trg ury.govt.nz>; Cam

b

recemmiendations) only reflects working level views at the

We will also be adding i
next version of the repo

tomorrow. In the e would@e any initial comments you have on this first draft.
Kind regar & a A ; ;
\> f’]
N\

2 TE TAI OH
THET

Leona Feng | Senio Financial Markets | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury
Tel: s9(2)(k) ail/f/M: Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz

o
)

From: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>

Sent: Monday, 1 February 2021 2:17 pm

To: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Chris
Parker [TSY] <Chris.Parker@treasury.govt.nz>; John Beaglehole [TSY] <John.Beaglehole@treasury.govt.nz>; Michael
Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Stephen Revill [TSY] <Stephen.Revill@treasury.govt.nz>; Stephen Bond
[TSY] <Stephen.Bond@treasury.govt.nz>; Felicity Barker [TSY] <Felicity.Barker@treasury.govt.nz>; Greg Low [TSY]
<Greg.Low@treasury.govt.nz>; Cavan O'Connor-Close <Cavan.O'Connor-Close@rbnz.govt.nz>

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

e\text on thei <()‘g%\n\encies between section 68B and the remit changes in the
ill aim to circu this along with a draft section 68B and remit for review later
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Hi Elle,

We should be able to work to these timeframes. Adrian is keen to stay looped in earlier, so we will be sharing the
draft report with him when it comes around tonight.

I’'ve copied in Cavan for the s68 material — he should be added to the circulation list as well.

Cheers,
Chris

< % % 7 /,

(

From: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz> \

Sent: Monday, 1 February 2021 11:35 AM §
.govt.nz>; John

To: Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Chris Parker Chris.Parker@trea

Beaglehole [TSY] <John.Beaglehole@treasury.govt.nz>; Michael ht)rnley <Michael. Tfﬁ\ﬂev@fbnz govt.nz>; Chris
Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Stephen Revill [TSY] <Stephen Q\?ﬁ@treasurv vtsgz> tephen Bond [TSY]
<Stephen.Bond@treasury.govt.nz>; Felicity Barker [TSY] <Feﬂc7w\8a}ker@treasﬁ/\;\g}v\t\ﬁz> Greg Low [TSY]

<Greg.Low@treasury.govt.nz> \y \\t
] <Leona¢@@ reasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornton

Cc: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Leo @%
[TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>; Cam Vanniss Y] <Cam ﬁann se ov@treasurv govt.nz>; Mario
ast a Leonova [TSY <l sh\lkonova@treasurv govt.nz>

DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>;

Hi all, —

@d timelir}ef
provide follow-up advice on opt; o\ -

e prices, du @
e as68b ion
Government’s housing objecti e\s‘ CJ/

N0 T

This email provides a heads up on
requiring the Bank to have regard to

Minister on Thursday. As you know, the report will
nd options to amend the remit, to support the

On timelines, we’re pla

day — recelve% comments, revise accordmgly
day — C|rcul t o& sury managers’ sign out (Renee, Dasha/Sam), and for near-final Bank

visibility.
Thursday — to Mini ver5|on circulate fyi.

Please let us know sn’t look practicable, or if there are any others we should also be include in circulation
rounds.

Best,

Elle

TE TAI OHANGA
THE TREASURY

Elle Hughes | Macroeconomic and Fiscal Policy | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury
Tel: s9(2)(k) | Email: Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE
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The information in this email is confidential to the Treasury, intended only for the addressee(s), and may also be legally privileged. If you
are not an intended addressee:

a. please immediately delete this email and notify the Treasury by return email or telephone (64 4 472 2733);

b. any use, dissemination or copying of this email is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

"This message (and any files transmitted with it) are confidential and ~
may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient please /(,]
notify the sender immediately and delete this message from your system. \ (\
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

Sent: Friday, 5 February 2021 5:59 PM

To: Adrian Orr; Bryan Chapple [TSY]
Subject: RE: [ ] Working together

Kia ora Adrian

N %
| think there are times when we will disagree—not least bedifferent 3 % g, functions and perspectives—

and not all disagreements reflect a poor process or quz i%a % ousing advice reflects we
haven’t agreed on everything, despite a lot of work afthe butldo not see that as poor quality
advice.

N ~— k

and a core

principle for Treasury is being specific’e n governm -W in S68B (vs outside communication), rather
than the details of the words (which oupoint out .@- een agreed by government yet).

I~

Nga mihi
Caralee

From: Adrian Orr <Adrian.Orr@rbnz.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 5 February 2021 2:41 pm

To: Caralee McLiesh [TSY] <Caralee.McLiesh@treasury.govt.nz>; Bryan Chapple [TSY]
<Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: | Working together
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Kia ora folks,

higher legal risk status of optio

needed in both options (not j
communicate.

Nga mihi,
Adrian Orr

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
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From: Stephen Bond [TSY]
To: ZParliment: Paul Young
Cc: James Beard [TSY]; Daniel Cruden [TSY]; Felicity Barker [TSY]; John Beaglehole [TSY]; Renee Philip [TSY];
Jessica Rowe [TS
Subject: RE: Talking Points
Date: Friday, 5 February 2021 2:40:31 pm
Attachments: kin ints(4414718.1).docx
Hi Paul, @ @
Apologies that these are a little late, but I've attached a set of speaking notesfor next
Tuesday.
Stephen
SN e

From:
Sent: Thursday, 4 February 2021 6:05 pm

ung <Paul.Youn arliament.govt.nz>
To: Jessica Rowe [TSY] <Jessica.Rowe@treasury.govt.nz>; Felicity Barker [TSY]
<Eelicity.Barker@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: Talking Points

Hi Jess and Felicity
As discussed with Felicity earlier, the oral item on the housing demand side measures has been
moved to Cabinet on Tuesday rather than CBC on Wednesday. This means that we will need

some speaking points tomorrow on:

e What the proposals are.


mailto:Stephen.Bond@treasury.govt.nz
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Speaking points for oral item at Cabinet on housing measures

Background and objectives

1. Next week the Mister of Revenue, the Minister of Housing and I will bring a paper to Cabinet setting out measures that we propose to take to reduce demand in the housing market to support more sustainable house prices and create additional opportunities for first home buyers.

2. [bookmark: _GoBack]In particular they will target the speculative investment that has helped drive the price increases affecting all prospective homeowners in recent years.

3. To help coordinate many policy areas and future Cabinet papers relating to housing we will also propose a set of strategic policy objectives for the housing market covering our objectives on both the demand and supply side. 

4. [bookmark: _Hlk63415501]The Minister of Housing will bring a package to promote land development and additional housing supply as part of Budget 2021. Taken together, these are one part of a comprehensive package that we can implement now, before we undertake the resource management reforms required to provide for our housing needs.

Tax measures

5. The first measure that we will propose is to extend the bright-line test from five years to twenty years for properties acquired after the announcement. 

6. That will mean that investor owners of property who sell that property within twenty years would have to pay income tax on the gains that they make. 

7. We will also need to consider other changes to the bright-line rules, for example on how we define a main-home, so they are fit for purpose for the extended period. We are considering those issues and will bring recommendations to Cabinet.

8. The second measure that we will propose is that we agree, in-principle, to restrict mortgage interest deductions. That will mean that investor landlords will be able to deduct less, or none of, their interest costs from their income before they calculate income tax.

9. The Minister of Revenue and I are considering the key design issues we should announce and will come to Cabinet with recommendations next week. That includes whether we should deny all or just a share of mortgage interest deductions, and whether it should only apply prospectively.

10. We will still need to consult on the implementation of this measure and other design issues after announcement, ahead a final Cabinet decision. 

11. By reducing investor demand, these measures should take some heat out of the housing market and create additional opportunities for first-time buyers. 

12. There are risks, such as potential upwards pressure on rents, which is why it is important that this is the first part of a broader housing package.

13. Given the risk that these tax changes could reduce incentives to build new homes, particularly rental homes, we will also recommend to Cabinet next week whether or not we should exempt early investors in new build homes from these measures.

Macro/Reserve Bank Measures

14. The third measure will be to require the Reserve Bank to consider government housing policy when it is fulfilling both its financial stability and its monetary policy duties. 

15. I intend to issue a direction to the Bank under section 68B of the RBNZ Act that it must have regard to the Government’s housing policy objectives in relation to its financial policy functions. 

16. I will also be seeking agreement to a change in the monetary policy remit, which sets out the Monetary Policy Committee’s operational objectives for monetary policy. This revised remit will:

· set the expectation that the MPC comprehensively understands the effects its decisions have on the Government’s housing objective, while it is pursuing its economic objectives, and

· provide transparency and assurance about how the MPC understands these effects.

17. These changes follow my letter to the Governor in late 2020 seeking his views on requiring the MPC to “seek to avoid unnecessary instability” in house prices through the remit. 

18. Upon receiving the Governor’s response, I asked the Treasury and the Bank jointly to identify options for a section 68B direction and to replace the remit. The changes I will be taking to Cabinet reflect that advice from officials.  

19. I am not changing anything regarding the Bank’s primary objectives of maintaining a sound and efficient financial system, and price stability and maximum sustainable employment in conducting monetary policy. These changes are about elevating the prominence that the Bank and the MPC will give to housing affordability when pursuing those primary goals. 

20. Alongside this third measure, I am also inviting the Bank to provide further advice on whether debt-to-income limits (DTIs) should be added to the Bank’s macroprudential toolkit. 

21. The Treasury has been relatively supportive of the addition of a DTI tool in the past. However officials recommended (and I have agreed) that more information is needed before a firm view of the merits of DTIs now can be reached, particularly in light of the upcoming section 68B direction. 

22. I have also asked the Reserve Bank to provide advice on whether there are any stability risks associated with interest only mortgages, and whether any restrictions may also take into account any government policy direction issued under section 68B.
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e The things that are still to be decided following consultation.
Alex and Toby will add the political aspects.

Hope that this will be relatively easy to do and I’'m sorry that we are having to ask for this early.
I’'m thinking that if possible about 2 pm would be great to give a little time for the political part.

Nga mihi é ; /;7(\

D )

Paul & @J
N

Paul Young

Revenue and Finance Advisor

Office of the Hon Grant Robertson | Minister of

Sport and Recreation, Minister for Racing \
%8\

Q 1‘\\7 %
inisterfor@u ture, Minister for

7.6 Executive Wing, Parliament Buildings,
Phone:sa@)(k)
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and supply
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Out of Scope

Macro/Reserve Bank Measures %
14.The third measure will be to require the Reserve Ba onsider | ‘f \

government housing policy when it is fulfilling ancial iabl y and
its monetary policy duties.

15.lintend to issue a direction to the Bank under section 688 f the RBNZ
Act that it must have regard to the G er 1ment’s hou: 'n —policy
ctions. (

objectives in relation to its financial

16.1 will also be seeking agreement to ein \@netary policy
[ [ |cy Com erational

e set the expectation % §Zvely understands the
effects its deC|S|ons /0 t's housing objective,

while it is purs

17. These changesfojlo my letter tc he Governor in late 2020 seeking his
k to avoid unnecessary instability” in

house prices tt otigh the e
18.Upon r the Govern esponse, | asked the Treasury and the Bank
joi 0 identify options for a section 68B direction and to replace the remit.
anges | w@beqﬁla\g@ to Cabinet reflect that advice from officials.

%gthfng regarding the Bank’s primary objectives of

nd efficient financial system, and price stability and

stamable employment in conducting monetary policy. These
about elevating the prominence that the Bank and the MPC will

ing affordability when pursuing those primary goals.

20.Alongside this third measure, | am also inviting the Bank to provide further
a(cj\u e.on whether debt-to-income limits (DTIs) should be added to the
Bgnk s macroprudential toolkit.

21.The Treasury has been relatively supportive of the addition of a DTI tool in
the past. However officials recommended (and | have agreed) that more
information is needed before a firm view of the merits of DTIs now can be
reached, particularly in light of the upcoming section 68B direction.

22.1 have also asked the Reserve Bank to provide advice on whether there are
any stability risks associated with interest only mortgages, and whether any
restrictions may also take into account any government policy direction
issued under section 68B.
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From: Elle Hughes [TSY]

Sent: Friday, 5 February 2021 3:48 pm

To: AParliament: Natalie Labuschagne

Cc: Renee Philip [TSY]; Neil Kidd [TSY]; Freya Dean [TSY]; Daniel Cruden [TSY]

Subject: LEG process for replacement remit i%

/ 7

)
_/

Hi Natalie,

Responding on your question about whether the recommend
LEG. Apologies this wasn’t clearer in the first instance.

not included in Next Steps).
=>» PCO will not be able to turn around
18 February (in time for Cabinet

e | understand MoF needs to obtdi ip LEG (facilitated by Cabinet office) —
assuming the Minister agree s, please liaise with the Cabinet office on this
(apparently Dan Cruden ca ome gmdan\\o ‘t is!).

e Alternatively, the Minist ecZo to LEG appy to delay the OIC process until after the MPS on the

24th February. (\\ \—7//\{‘/1

>
Elle Hughe @I croeconom % Policy | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury
Tel's9@)(K) | Email: E?é H s@treasury.govt.nz

=/

i~
/ J /
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From: Natalie Labuschagne

To: Renee Philip [TSY]; s9(2)(a)(ii) Elle Hughes [TSY]

Cc: Bryan Chapple [TSY]; Caralee McLiesh [TSY]; James Beard [TSY]; Andrew Rutledge [TSY]; Dasha Leonova [TSY];
Sam Thornton [TSY.

Subject: RE: TSY Bag: Treasury Report T2021-155; Housing objectives for the Reserve Bank

Date: Monday, 8 February 2021 2:16:37 pm

Attachments: im 2.
image003.png

T2021-155 - Housing objectives for the Reserve Bank.pdf

Hi everyone, /(f]
|
NI
Well done on a good report in such compressed timeframes. Th ni as agreed itl%\aH\QF’(l”/ne
Treasury recommendations in the report, with some commenta dments to the speci |t/wording.
I have included those comments on the attached and repeated below:
Q=

On the s68B direction: . //:\\
e  For the purpose of the Cabinet paper, th i uld like a \\'e\\ewp@tions to be presented,
with an acknowledgement of the RB pre e@t n, but wj ption 2 listed as the Minister’s

and the Treasury’s preferred option.

e The Minister would like to slightl
sustainable house prices, includi

® s9(2)@)N)

ent:
ortant that both the s68B and MP remit decisions are
im

of Finance
vel 7.6 Executive Wing, Parliament Buildings, PO Box 18041, Wellington 6160, New Zealand
@0 | M so2)(g)ii)

N
[ \ \k
\ \
\\\,/E:natah'elabuscha ne@parliament.govt.nz

The information contained in this email is privileged and confidential and intended for the addressee only. If you are not
the intended recipient, you are asked to respect that confidentiality and not disclose, copy or make use of its contents.
If received in error you are asked to destroy this email and contact the sender immediately. Your assistance is
appreciated.

From: Yulia Gonina [TSY] [mailto:Yulia.Gonina@treasury.govt.nz]

Sent: Friday, 5 February 2021 9:57 AM

To: Natalie Labuschagne <Natalie.Labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz>; [s9(2)(9)(ii)
s9(2)(g)(ii)

Cc: Bryan Chapple [TSY] <Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY]
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Treasury Report: Housing policy and the Reserve Bank

Date: 5 February 2021 Report No: T2021/155
File Number: MC-1-1-1-2

Action sought

Action sought Deadline
Minister of Finance (Hon Grant Agree the direction to be issued Tuesday 9 February, to inform
Robertson) under section 68B of the Reserve Cabinet paper drafting for 15
Bank of New Zealand Act 1989. February.

Agree to the policy intent for a
replacement remit that incorporates
the Government’s housing policy.

Contact for telephone discussion (if required)

Name Position Telephone 1st Contact
Elle Hughes Analyst, Macroeconomic and | +64 4 917 6108 N/A v
Fiscal Policy (Wk) (mob)
Renee Philip Manager, Macroeconomic +64 4 917 6046 +6421329561
and Fiscal Policy (wk) (mob)

Minister’s Office actions (if required)

Return the signed report to the Treasury.
Refer this report to the Associate Ministers of Finance.

Enclosure: Yes (attached)
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Treasury Report: Housing policy and the Reserve Bank

Executive Summary

Over the coming months, the Government will consider a range of policies to support better
housing outcomes for New Zealanders.

This report provides advice on exercising two levers you have to influence housing
outcomes:

i. Directing the Reserve Bank (‘the Bank’) to have regard to a government policy
objective relating to housing affordability when formulating financial policy, under
section 68B of the Reserve Bank Act (‘the Act’); and

. Requiring the Reserve Bank’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) to assess and
communicate the impacts of its decisions on government policy objectives relating to
housing affordability.

A previous report provided initial advice on requiring the Bank to have regard to house prices
[T2021/11 refers]. This report responds to your subsequent request that the Treasury work
with the Reserve Bank to identify specific options and jointly recommend wording. The Bank
has been consulted on this report and its preferences are indicated in the report.

The Treasury and the Bank expect these options would have a modest impact on
housing affordability, particularly in relation to monetary policy. The options in this
report elevate the prominence the Bank and the MPC give to housing affordability, but may
not lead to materially different decisions. The proposed measures will not lead the Bank and
the MPC to take decisions to promote housing affordability if they are not consistent with
their primary objectives. Therefore, these limitations highlight the importance of the other
initiatives the Government is considering to promote better housing outcomes.

Section 68B direction

Section 68B of the Act empowers you to direct the Bank to have regard to a government
policy that relates to the Bank’s registration and supervision functions under the Act. Section
68B is intended to be used to highlight government policy priorities that the Bank must have
regard to when pursuing its financial stability mandate and statutory purposes. The Bank
would then be required to ‘have regard to’ the specified government policy. It does not
change the nature of the Bank’s functions or require the Bank to implement a government
policy.

This report identifies three options for expressing a Government Policy on housing, which
could then be expressed in a section 68B direction.

o Option 1: To have regard to the Government policy on the desired overall level of
house prices, i.e. “to support more sustainable house prices”. This is the Reserve
Bank’s strongly preferred option.

o Option 2: Option 1, plus the Government’s specific policy objective regarding first home
buyers, i.e. “to support more sustainable house prices by dampening investor
demand for existing housing stock in order to allow more opportunities for first
home buyers”. This is the Treasury’s preferred option.

o Option 3: To have regard to the Government’s entire policy objective on housing, which
includes the above, as well as broader factors such as ‘safe, warm and dry’ housing.

Treasury:4414750v1 SENSITIVE Contains legally privileged material 2
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The Treasury’s preference is for Option 2 because it achieves the overall objective of
communicating the Government’s housing priorities. In addition, unlike Option 1, this would
justify a differential approach to investors than owner-occupiers. It is also more specific — and
therefore potentially more effective than — Option 3, and also has lower legal risk.

The Bank’s strong preference is for Option 1. This option most accurately represents the
Bank’s role in supporting the Government’s housing objective. It would require the Bank to
assess and have regard to whether house prices are within some range of ‘fair value’ and
whether there are shorter-term portfolio investment house price drivers related to expected
capital gains. The Bank thinks that this option would reduce the risk of setting unrealistic
expectations about the Bank’s ability to address issues around the balance between owner
occupiers and property investors, which are better addressed with other Government
policies. In practice, this would require an assessment of whether house prices are within
some range of ‘fair value’. This includes looking for signs of shorter-term portfolio investment
drivers related to expected capital gains, such as a significant rise in the share of houses
purchased by property investors or an unwarranted fall in rental yields.

Replacing the remit

In terms of the monetary policy remit, the Treasury and the Bank jointly recommend that you
seek a new remit that requires the MPC to assess how its monetary policy decisions affect
the Government’s housing objectives, which would be specified by reference to the section
68B direction. This change would require the MPC to both assess and communicate the
effects of monetary policy on the Government’s housing objectives. However, it would not
alter the monetary policy objectives and the MPC would retain autonomy over whether and
how its monetary policy decisions take account of potential housing consequences. We
recommend that any replacement remit expire in 2024.

Debt-to-income ratios

This report also recommends that you ask the Bank to provide further advice on debt-
to-income ratios (DTIs). This follows from the Bank’s 9 December 2020 request that the
Government allow it to make use of tools such as DTI limits. The Treasury’s previous view on
DTls — that we are relatively supportive of the addition of DTls to the Bank’s macroprudential
toolkit as a way of promoting financial stability and reducing the risk of boom-and-bust
economic cycles — largely still stands. However, to form a firm view on the merits of DTIs, we
recommend that you ask the Reserve Bank for more information on the DTI settings that
might be implemented, particularly in light of the upcoming section 68B direction.

Next steps

The annexes include a draft section 68B direction and a draft replacement remit. The
Treasury proposes that both matters be considered at Cabinet on 15 February, alongside
proposals relating to tax changes to moderate house price growth. The Treasury anticipates
that any new section 68B direction could be issued following 15 February, with any new
monetary policy remit issued after the release of the Reserve Bank’s Monetary Policy
Statement on 24 February.
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Recommended Action

We recommend that you:

a

Note that the Government housing policy objectives are being considered in a parallel
report [T2021/103 refers], and we have taken the proposed policy wording as given in
this report.

Section 68B direction

b

Agree to issue a section 68B direction on government policy
Agree/disagree

Agree wording for the section 68B direction to require the Reserve Bank to have
regard to:

1. Government policy “to support more sustainable house prices” (the Reserve
Bank’s strongly preferred option)

Agree/disagree
(or)
2. Government policy “to support more sustainable house prices by dampening

investor demand in order to allow more opportunities for first home buyers” (the
Treasury’s preferred option)

Ag rEE/d-Isa-g-r-ee I would like to slightly alter the wording to say "to support more sustainable house prices, including by dampening..."

(or)

3. The entire Government policy objectives on housing (see body of this report and
T2012/103)

Agree/disagree

Provide feedback on the attached draft section 68B direction.

Monetary policy remit

e

Agree to seek to implement a replacement remit that incorporates the Government’s
housing policy (Treasury and Reserve Bank joint recommendation),

Agree/disagree

Note that the Treasury and Reserve Bank have identified wording that both parties are
content with, and that PCO would then draft the remit,

Agree that the replacement remit should reflect the policy intent to:

Treasury:4414750v1 SENSITIVE Contains legally privileged material 4



LABUSCHN

Cross-Out



LABUSCHN

Cross-Out



LABUSCHN

Cross-Out



LABUSCHN

Cross-Out





SENSITIVE Contains legally privileged material

a.  Setthe expectation that the MPC, while it is pursuing its economic
objectives, comprehensively understands the effects its decisions have on
the Government’s housing objective, and

b.  Provide transparency and assurance about how the MPC understands
these effects.

Agree/disagree-

h Note that, if section 2B of the remit requires the MPC to assess its impact on the
Government’s housing objective, the charter will consequentially require the MPC to
publicly explain how it has sought to assess its impact on that objective,

i Agree that the replacement remit should expire on 14 February 2024,
Agree/disagree
Debt-to-income ratios

i Invite the Reserve Bank to provide further advice on introducing limits on debt-to-
income ratios.

Yes/no while noting that my default position is not to agree to their introduction.

Next steps

k Note that there are timing risks relating to the PCO drafting and certification of a new
remit, and the Treasury will undertake to provide an update on timing next week, and

Agree that the Treasury will draft a letter for you to send to the Bank to inform the Bank

of your decisions, and request further advice from the Bank on DTI ratio restrictions,
and

Agree/disagree
m  Refer this report to the Associate Ministers of Finance (Woods and Parker).

Refer/do not refer

Renee Philip
Manager, Macroeconomic and Fiscal Policy

Hon Grant Robertson
Minister of Finance

08/02/2021
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Treasury Report: Housing policy and the Reserve Bank

Purpose of report

1.

This report responds to your request for further advice on options to direct the Reserve
Bank of New Zealand (‘the Bank’) and its Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) to have
regard to the Government’s strategic objectives for housing.

This report seeks your decisions on options to support Government economic
objectives for housing by:

a Formulating a Government policy objective that relates to the Bank’s functions to
maintain a sound and efficient financial system, and directing the Bank to have
regard to that Government policy, under section 68B of the Reserve Bank of New
Zealand Act 1989 (‘the Act’), and

b  Replacing the MPC remit with one that requires the MPC to assess the impact of
monetary policy on the Government’s housing objective.

Following your decisions, the Treasury will prepare a draft Cabinet paper for 15
February, seeking Cabinet agreement to:

a Issue a direction to the Bank under section 68B of the Act, and
b Recommend that the Governor-General replace the MPC remit.

This would enable you to announce intended changes before the next Monetary Policy
Statement is released on 24 February. The section 68B direction would come into
effect after it is issued. The new remit would not come into effect until after being
agreed by the Executive Council and issued by the Governor-General. It may be
subject to the 28-day rule which means it would not come into effect until 28 days after
being notified in the Gazette. This timeframe would be consistent with the MPC
operating under the new remit for its decision in May.

Context

5.

The Government is considering a range of policies to support better housing
outcomes for New Zealanders. Access to affordable housing is a significant and
growing concern for New Zealanders. The current state of the housing market creates
significant societal inequities, and cuts across a number of the Government’s other
goals.

On 24 November 2020, you wrote a letter to the Governor of the Bank that
consulted on a replacement of their monetary policy remit. Your proposal was to
require the MPC to “seek to avoid unnecessary instability in house prices” whilst
pursuing their operational objectives. The Bank replied that, amongst other things, it
would prefer that consideration of house prices be explicitly required in their
forthcoming financial policy remit, and possibly by issuing a section 68B direction under
the Act, instead of their monetary policy remit.

A previous report provided initial advice on requiring the Bank to have regard to
house prices [T2021/11 refers]. The Treasury advised that there is potential to deliver
your housing objectives by issuing a section 68B direction or through an addition to the
forthcoming financial policy remit. This is because there is less likely to be a conflict
between financial policy objectives and a requirement to consider house prices when
setting financial policy, compared with the trade-off involved for monetary policy. More
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often, moderating house price growth will reinforce financial stability. Financial policy
tools can also be more targeted to specific sectors of the housing market e.g.
residential investors, in contrast to interest rates, which are quite a blunt tool.

Your proposed change to the monetary policy remit could be a useful signal to send
that you expect the MPC to consider the broader impacts of their decisions. However,
the primacy of the MPC’s economic objectives of stable inflation and sustainable
employment mean the impact on house price inflation from changes to the MPC remit
are likely to be limited.

You subsequently requested that the Treasury work with the Bank to identify
options to replace the remit, and issue a section 68B direction, and jointly
recommend wording for both. Treasury has consulted the Bank on each of the
options presented below. The Bank’s views are reflected where relevant.

On 15 February, Cabinet will consider the first in a new series of papers on
measures to address the housing crisis [T2021/103 refers]. That Cabinet paper will
outline the current state of the housing market and its fiscal and wellbeing
consequences. It will also propose tax policy changes to support the Government’s
housing objectives. Treasury is working to progress a potential section 68B direction
and remit changes such that Cabinet can consider them in parallel, on 15 February.
You have separately received a Treasury Report on the issue of interest-only
mortgages [T2021/199 refers].

The Bank will also be announcing its decision on reinstating the LVR restrictions by 9
February. While the decision will come before any section 68B direction, Treasury
understands that the Bank will continue to monitor and review the calibration of its LVR
settings. The Reserve Bank will not be able to refer to or take into account the
upcoming section 68B direction in their immediate LVR decision. The impact of the
section 68B direction on future Reserve Bank decisions on LVR limits will also depend
on the calibration of the reinstated restrictions which will be announced next week.

The Treasury expects that the changes proposed in this paper will have modest effects
on housing outcomes, compared with the more fundamental measures being
considered as part of the broader package. The changes proposed here are unlikely to
substantially shift longer-term outcomes in the housing market.

Issuing a section 68B direction to require the Reserve Bank to have regard to
Government policy

13.

14.

15.

You have asked for advice on issuing a direction on housing policy to the Bank under
section 68B of the Reserve Bank Act 1989. Treasury understands that your objective
for issuing a direction to the Bank would be to promote the development of financial
policy that maintains a sound and efficient financial system in a manner that supports
(or aligns with) the Government’s wider strategic objectives on housing.

This report provides you with further information about a section 68B direction, options
for expressing government policy on housing, Treasury and the Bank’s views, a draft
section 68B direction for your consideration, and advice on next steps.

Section 68B empowers the Minister of Finance to direct the Bank to have regard to a
government policy that relates to the Bank’s registration and supervision functions
under the Act.
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Your power to give a section 68B direction

16.

17.

18.

19.

The direction power in section 68B is based on section 104 of the Crown Entities Act
2004. However, a key difference is that for a section 68B direction, the government
policy must relate to the Reserve Bank’s functions under Part 5, 5B and 5C of the Act
(while the CEA provision refers to the autonomous Crown entity’s functions and
objectives).

Generally speaking, the Bank’s functions under Part 5, 5B and 5C of the Act include
bank registration, prudential supervision, and statutory management, and regulation of
payment and settlement systems.

Section 68 of the Act states the powers conferred on the Governor-General, the
Minister, and the Bank by this Part of the Act, which includes the 68B direction power,
shall be exercised for the purposes of:

a promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system; or

b avoiding significant damage to the financial system that could result from the
failure of a registered bank.

Certain procedural requirements also apply. For example, you must consult with the
Reserve Bank on the proposed direction before giving it and must present it to the
House and publish in the Gazette as soon as practicable after giving it.

Government Policy and the impact on Reserve Bank financial stability policy

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

A government policy is generally understood to be a collective government position on
a certain matter, such as a Cabinet decision or the governing party’s political position.
The term ‘policy’ implies some degree of generality, but less specific than a command
to perform a specified act.

Section 68B also assumes that the government has already determined a ‘policy’ which
the Reserve Bank is to have regard to, before the direction is issued. There is no set
form for a policy, but it could be a standalone announcement or evident in something
that is contained in a clear, public, written document.

As noted above, in order to give a direction under section 68B with respect to a
Government policy, that policy must relate to the Bank’s registration, supervision,
statutory management, payment or settlement system functions. For example, you
could use the section to highlight or clarify Government policies such as housing
affordability for first home buyers, or an intention to reduce demand by investors.
However, a direction may not be used to define the meaning of the Bank’s objectives in
section 68, or to direct the Bank to achieve other new objectives.

Section 68B is intended to be used to highlight government policy priorities that the
Bank must have regard to when pursuing its financial stability mandate and statutory
purposes. The Bank would then be required to ‘have regard to’ it, which is generally
understood to mean it must give genuine attention and thought to the direction, weigh it
against other relevant factors, and give it the weight the Bank considers is appropriate
in the circumstances. It does not change the nature of the Bank’s functions or require
the Bank to give effect to a government policy.

Treasury recommends seeking Cabinet confirmation of the current Government policy
and objectives on housing before a section 68B direction is issued.
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Government Policy on Housing

25.

26.

27.

28.

Treasury understands that you will soon be seeking Cabinet agreement on the
Government’s strategic policy on housing, including objectives [T2021/103 refers]. This
could be used as the basis of the government policy which is to be referred to in a
section 68B direction.

In particular, the relevant proposed objective is:

“In the short to medium term, support more sustainable house prices by dampening
investor demand for existing housing stock, while creating additional opportunities for
first home buyers.”

As noted at paragraph 18 above, you must exercise your powers for the purposes of
promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system, or avoiding
significant damage to the financial system that could result from the failure of a
registered bank.

The Treasury thinks that there are three broad options for a direction which would
promote a sound and efficient financial system, as well as highlight the government’s
housing policy objectives.

Option 1: ‘To support more sustainable house prices’ (the Reserve Bank’s strongly
preferred option)

29.

30.

31.

This option provides a general, high-level statement of Government policy on housing,
centred around sustainability. It also includes the wider Government policy objectives
on housing in the explanatory note. In this context, the Reserve Bank would interpret
‘supporting more sustainable house prices’ as requiring the Bank to consider how its
financial policies, including capital requirements and loan-to-value ratio policies, affect
house prices against some sustainable level. In practice, this would require an
assessment of whether house prices are within some range of ‘fair value’.! This
includes looking for signs of shorter-term portfolio investment drivers related to
expected capital gains, such as a significant rise in the share of houses purchased by
property investors or an unwarranted fall in rental yields.

The main benefit of this option is that it best aligns with long-term economic
fundamentals of housing and the Bank’s financial stability mandate. It is clearly linked
to the purpose of promoting a sound and efficient financial system. This would help to
manage the risk that the section 68B direction could create unrealistic expectations
around the ability of the Reserve Bank to address issues in the housing market. This
option is also a broad expression of the relevant Government housing objective above,
which is one part of ensuring house prices do not exceed their fair value.

On the other hand, this option does not explicitly include the more specific Government
policy objectives on housing, which are to ‘dampen investor demand for existing
housing stock, while creating more opportunities for first-home buyers’. The risk of not
articulating these specific objectives is that it does not formally require the Bank to
consider them when it is carrying out its relevant functions and therefore does not
justify a differential approach to investors and owner-occupiers. However, in practice,
the Bank is of the view that it would consider and have regard to the specific objectives,
to the extent that property investors are a factor driving house prices above fair value.

1 Measures of fair value include comparison of house prices to: (i) affordability for owner-occupiers in the prevailing
macroeconomic environment; or (ii) the cost of building a new house.

Treasury:4414750v1 SENSITIVE Contains legally privileged material 9





32.

SENSITIVE Contains legally privileged material

The economic language used in this option may also be difficult for the public to
understand fully. To counter this, the Reserve Bank plans to clearly articulate how the
direction will be factored into decision-making in a public speech in March if this option
is taken forward.

Option 2: 'To support more sustainable house prices by dampening investor demand
for existing housing stock, in order to allow more opportunities for first home buyers’
(the Treasury’s preferred option)

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

This option builds on Option 1 by including the Government’s specific policy objective
regarding first home buyers. It also includes the wider Government policy objectives on
housing in the explanatory note. The language on first home buyers in the direction
itself has been modified slightly to better fit with the Reserve Bank’s financial policy
functions. This objective relates to recent house price increases, largely caused by
demand-side factors.

This option clearly articulates the Government’s relevant policy objectives for first home
buyers and how it wishes to achieve this, by dampening investor demand, which may
be relevant to Reserve Bank policies regarding mortgage lending. When considering
financial policy, such a direction would prompt the Bank to have regard to the impacts
on different groups in a way that reflects the Government’s specific housing objectives.

While the first part of the objective has direct links to financial stability, the second part
is a sub-objective of sustainable house prices, by shifting distribution of housing
ownership away from investors and towards first home buyers. There may be different
financial stability risks from investors and first home buyers. For example, investors
may be expected to more quickly sell their properties in response to declining house
prices, which increases the risk of ‘fire sales’ in a downturn. Investors entering the
market at a later stage may also pose a higher risk.

We are still working to confirm that this option does not raise any risks within the legal
framework of section 68 and 68B. Treasury Legal notes that the powers conferred on
the Governor-General, the Minister, and the Bank by Part 5 of the Act need to be
exercised for the purposes of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient
financial system or avoiding damage to the financial system.

In the Bank’s view, a more targeted direction is likely to be less effective as, in some
circumstances, it could be inconsistent or incompatible with the main financial stability
objective. This objective would also not translate well to the MPC remit, given the blunt
nature of monetary policy tools, making it harder to coordinate monetary policy and
financial policy. The time-specific nature of the direction could also conflict with the
longer-term focus of financial policy. This could create unhelpful expectations about
future policy direction.

Option 3: Include the entire Government housing policy objectives in the direction to
the Reserve Bank

38.

39.

This would involve specifying the entire Government housing policy objective in the
formal direction to the Reserve Bank, rather than only in the context section, as in
Option 2.

The current proposed housing policy objectives are:

a Ensure every New Zealander has a safe, warm, and dry home to call their own —
whether they are renters or owners.

Treasury:4414750v1 SENSITIVE Contains legally privileged material 10





40.

41.

42.

SENSITIVE Contains legally privileged material

b In the short to medium-term, support more sustainable house prices by
dampening investor demand for existing housing stock, while creating
additional opportunities for first-home buyers.

c Create a high-performing housing supply system for renters and owners, taking
credible measures to increase supply and facilitate responsive, competitive, and
more affordable housing and urban land markets that are well planned and well-
regulated.

The benefit of this option is that it fully articulates the Government’s housing strategy to
the Reserve Bank. This may have benefits in terms of encouraging the Reserve Bank
to look at factors beyond just investor demand, such as the impact of its
macroprudential tools on the supply of new builds.

However, this option has limitations in that, by specifying the entire housing objective in
the direction, it may be insufficiently clear what part of the objective the Government
wants the Reserve Bank to focus on. This may lead to the direction having less effect
than one that is more precisely specified (such as Option 2).

In addition, this option has been developed under time constraints. Treasury Legal's
preliminary view is that, by including a wider range of matters, such as but not limited to
‘safe, warm and dry’ housing, which sits well outside of the Reserve Bank’s functions
under Part 5 of the Act, the direction is broader than what you are legally able to issue
under section 68B of the Act. Further, it is less clear that the direction would be
predominantly motivated by one of the purposes in section 68. If you are interested in
pursuing this option further, then we can look further into the legality of this option.

Treasury recommendation

43.

44.

45.

Overall, the Treasury thinks that issuing a section 68B direction is a useful tool
in the current context. It will signal the relevant government policy that the Bank will
need to consider, while recognising that the Bank still needs to assess the direction
and give the weighting that it considers appropriate in the circumstances. In having
regard to the government direction, the Bank would be expected to have regard to
options that support sustainability of house prices, with positive impacts for affordability
and risks to first home buyers.

In terms of the specific options, Treasury’s preference is for Option 2 because it
achieves the overall objective of communicating the Government’s housing priorities. In
addition, unlike Option 1, it provides information about which part of the market the
Government intends to focus its policies on. Option 2 would also require the Reserve
Bank to have regard to how it could achieve its financial soundness and efficiency
purpose without coming at the expense of first home buyers. It is preferable to Option 3
which is associated with stronger legal risks and arguably less relevant to the Reserve
Bank’s functions.

Nevertheless, it is important to emphasise that, while any of the options above should
‘elevate’ the prominence given to the Government’s housing policy by the Reserve
Bank when considering how to achieve financial soundness and efficiency, none are
expected to result in the Reserve Bank taking decisions to promote housing
affordability in a way that undermine its financial soundness and efficiency objectives.
As such, none of these options should be expected to have a significant impact on
housing affordability on their own accord. This highlights the importance of the other
initiatives being considered by the government to promote housing affordability.
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Reserve Bank recommendation

46.

47.

If the Government wishes the Bank to have regard to the Government’s housing policy,
the Bank supports that be done through a section 68B direction. It is the Bank’s
preference that the direction make clear the Government’s housing policy and the
Bank’s role in supporting that objective. To avoid unrealistic expectations, this would
reflect that the Bank’s policies do have a role in influencing the housing market but its
role in supporting the Government’s housing policy is limited, given the primacy of the
Bank’s financial and monetary policy objectives.

In terms of specific options, the Bank’s preference is for Option 1. This option provides
the most achievable objective for the Bank, as sustainable house prices are consistent
with its financial stability mandate. Like Options 2 and 3, it would require the Bank to
have regard to whether its financial policies could bring house prices closer to ‘fair
value’, including if overvaluation were caused by investor speculation. Unlike Options 2
and 3, it would not create unrealistic expectations about the ability of the Bank to target
specific subsectors of the housing market. Option 1 is also a more enduring
requirement, as it would be relevant in future circumstances where there was a desire
to bolster housing demand from both owner occupiers and investors.

Replacing the MPC remit

48.

49.

50.

51.

The current MPC Remit has been in place since 14 February 2019 and expires after
five years, unless replaced before then. Replacing the remit before its expiry requires
an Order in Council, which means it is subject to the Regulations Review Committee.
The provision to replace the remit was designed to accommodate changes to the
MPC’s decision-making, to reflect changes in economic circumstances. In the context
of rapidly rising house prices and very extensive use of alternative monetary policy
tools, the Treasury considers that replacing the remit is appropriate.

The Treasury recommends that the replacement remit expire on 14 February
2024, to align with the expiry date of the current remit. The Act provides flexibility
for the term of a replacement remit issued by Order in Council. It can have a term of
less than 5 years (which a remit issued through the five-yearly process cannot). Given
that we have not undertaken a full remit review, we recommend that any replacement
remit expire in 2024. The Bank has begun planning work for a 2024 review.

The replacement remit would be drafted by the Parliamentary Counsel Office (PCO) for
your review, and then issued by the Governor-General on your recommendation.
Therefore the following content regarding the remit is subject to PCO drafting and
further legal review. This introduces process risks. Foremost, the PCO would certify
whether the proposed remit is in order for submission to Cabinet (that is, whether it is
consistent with the scope of the remit set out in the Act). The PCO has not previously
considered or certified the content of the existing remit, as the first remit was not
subject to an Order in Council process.

The Act provides that the remit must set out operational objectives for carrying out the
function of formulating monetary policy. The remit may specify or provide for the
operational objectives in any way that you think fit, including one or more of:

a specifying or providing for a target or targets for an economic objective,
b a framework for weighting the economic objectives,
c defining any matters in connection with an economic objective,
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d a requirement for the MPC to have regard to 1 or more matters in connection with
seeking to achieve an economic objective.

A matter in the remit cannot be inconsistent with the economic objectives.

As requested, Treasury has worked with the Bank to identify mutually acceptable
wording for a housing-related matter to be included in a new remit. Our joint-
recommended policy intent is that the replacement remit would:

o Set the expectation that the MPC comprehensively understands the effects its
decisions have on the Government’s housing objective, while it is pursuing its
economic objectives.

o Provide transparency and assurance about how the MPC understands these
effects.

Annex One sets out an indicative draft of a proposed replacement remit in full and has
been agreed in principle between the Treasury and the Bank.

The Treasury and the Bank jointly recommend that you seek a new remit that
incorporates the government's housing policy via reference to section 68B
directions. Indicative proposed wording agreed between the Treasury and the Bank is:

In pursuing the operational objectives, the MPC shall: [...] Assess the potential material
impacts of its monetary policy decisions on Government policies outlined in section
68B directions.

This indicative wording would require the MPC to assess impacts on any future section
68B directions too. The Treasury do not think that the change to the remit needs to
capture any future section 68B directions, which may not be relevant for monetary
policy. However, it is not something we feel strongly about. PCO will need to decide
whether a reference to future section 68B directions is within scope of the matters that
can be included within the monetary policy remit. If not, we will need to revert to
specific language, which we would attempt to align with the section 68B language as
closely as possible.

We expect this change would achieve similar outcomes to your original
suggested wording. The original wording you suggested to the Governor was that the
MPC should be required to “seek to avoid instability in house prices”. Our proposed
change would instead require the MPC to assess and communicate the effects of
monetary policy on the Government’s housing objectives. As the requirement to “seek
to avoid instability in house prices” would have been secondary to the MPC’s economic
objectives, it is unlikely that it would have materially impacted on monetary policy
decisions.

We think a requirement to “assess” impacts on the Government housing objective is
likely to have similar impacts on decision making — in that it would likely still be given
weight only if it did not undermine the economic objectives. However, this would be up
to the MPC. The MPC would not be formally required to have regard to the
Government’s housing objective when formulating monetary policy. The wording
“assess”, rather than “seek to”, would help address the Bank’s concern that this could
undermine the MPC’s perceived commitment to the economic objectives.

The MPC would retain autonomy over whether and how its monetary policy decisions
take account of potential housing consequences. At the margins, the MPC’s
assessment of likely housing outcomes may impact its choice of the monetary policy
mix, if it supported the monetary policy objectives.

Following its decisions, the MPC would need to explain regularly how it has sought to
assess its impact on housing outcomes, supporting your objective to increase
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transparency about how the MPC considers its impact on housing outcomes. This
reporting obligation would arise because the Charter requires the MPC to explain how
it met the requirements of section 2B of the remit in its quarterly Monetary Policy
Statements.

We also recommend updating the ‘Government’s Economic Objective’ set out at
the front of the remit. This would complement the section 2B requirement to assess
the impacts of monetary policy on the Government’s housing objective, and support the
section 68B direction. To be consistent, we propose reflecting text from the section 68B
direction, for example (addition underlined):

The Government’s economic objective is to improve the wellbeing and living standards
of New Zealanders through a sustainable, productive and inclusive economy. Our
priority is to move towards a low carbon economy, with a strong diversified export
base, that delivers decent jobs with higher wages and reduces inequality and poverty.
[An effective functioning housing market is a critical component of a sustainable and
inclusive economy and promotes the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial

system.]

As far as practical, officials are attempting to align the text in the remit to the
Government policy set out in the section 68B direction. Consistency across these
documents would support the clarity of the Government’s policy objective. Subject to
your agreement, we will express a preference for consistency across the remit and
section 68B direction when issuing drafting instructions to PCO.

Debt-to-Income ratios

63.

64.

65.

66.

In the Bank’s 9 December 2020 response to your letter of 24 November, the Bank
requested that the Government give consideration to adding restrictions on debt
serviceability (that would include debt-to-income (DTI) limits) to the Bank’s
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Minister of Finance.

DTls limit the total amount of a borrower’s debt as a ratio to gross income, and — in a
macroprudential context — seek to reduce the probability a debtor will default. DTIs can
complement loan-to-value ratio (LVR) restrictions, which largely influence the extent of
a bank’s loss in the case of default. Like other macroprudential tools, under current
legislation, the Bank would only be able to make use of DTlIs to the extent that they
contribute to financial stability, rather than to directly target housing affordability
objectives. However, as discussed above, a section 68B directive could nevertheless
focus the Bank’s attention on housing affordability within the context of its overarching
financial stability objective.

Depending on their calibration, DTIs could reduce the extent of house price growth,
and long-term, they could be a useful tool to prevent house prices from ‘getting out of
hand’ in the future. However, banks already have debt-to-income serviceability
requirements in their internal credit assessments, meaning that the impact of DTIs on
house prices should not be overstated. In addition, while DTIs may reduce house price
growth, depending on design, in the current situation they are also likely to make it
more difficult for some buyers to enter the market.

In 2017, the Reserve Bank publicly consulted on the introduction of serviceability
restrictions (such as DTI limits). It proposed that DTIs would apply to both investors
and owner-occupiers, but that there would be a range of exemptions, such as for loans
that are for the construction of new dwellings, and for owner occupied houses priced
below a certain value. It highlighted one possible DTI limit that could be applied, of no
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more than 20% of new lending with a DTl ratio of greater than 5, although this was
indicative only.

At the time, the Treasury was relatively supportive of the addition of DTls to the Bank’s
macroprudential toolkit, as a way of promoting financial stability and reducing the risk of
boom-and-bust economic cycles. However, Treasury also recognised the risk that DTIs
could prevent or delay potential homebuyers from home purchases (although the
design of the Reserve Bank proposals would have mitigated this risk for owner-
occupiers to an extent), and noted that DTI limits were unlikely to substantially increase
financial stability. Ultimately, the MOU between the Reserve Bank and Minister of
Finance was not revised to include DTIs.

The Treasury’s previous view regarding DTIs largely still stands. However, to provide
further advice on the merits of such a measure, Treasury would need more information
and specificity about how the Bank would implement them, particularly in light of any
section 68B direction that is ultimately issued.

Given this, in response to the Bank’s request, the Treasury recommends that you
invite the Bank to report to you in more detail on DTI limits. This report should
include DTI settings the Bank might look to impose, how DTI limits might promote the
Bank’s objectives of financial soundness and efficiency, and the impact of lower
interest rates on DTI settings. It should also identify how the Bank would be thinking
about implementing the DTlIs in light of any direction you issue under section 68B,
including any impacts DTls might have on the Government policy objectives highlighted
through the section 68B directive, such as on house prices and on different categories
of potential house buyers.

Next steps

70.

71.

72.

73.

Issuing a section 68B direction: For the avoidance of doubt, Treasury recommends
seeking Cabinet confirmation of the current Government policy and objectives on
housing before a section 68B direction is issued. Once issued, you must present the
68B direction to the House and publish it in the Gazette as soon as practicable after
giving it.

Issuing a new monetary policy remit: To replace the remit, an order in Council is first
required. In brief, the usual process for an Order in Council includes the following
steps:

a submitting the policy to a Cabinet committee and Cabinet for approval,
b drafting by PCO (including certification by PCO);

c submitting the proposed Order in Council to the Cabinet Legislation Committee
and Cabinet for submission to the Executive Council;

d notification in the Gazette; and
e a 28-day period before the Order in Council come into force.

The following timetable for the enactment of an Order in Council is fairly compressed,
however may be achievable.

Given the interdependencies between the section 68B direction and changes to the
remit, Treasury recommends progressing both issues in parallel timeframes. The table
below sets out the timing of next steps:

Treasury:4414750v1 SENSITIVE Contains legally privileged material 15





74.

75.

SENSITIVE Contains legally privileged material

5 February Talking points for Cabinet on 9 February provided to your
office.
9 February The Treasury receives feedback from you on this report and

your preferred approach for s 68B and the remit.

10 February

At Cabinet on 9 February, oral items on upcoming Cabinet
papers regarding:

i. s 68B direction and replacing remit, and

ii. tax and housing policy changes.

10 February

Draft Cabinet paper on s 68B and remit (seeking
authorisation for drafting) provided for your feedback by 11
February.

11 or 12 February

Lodge both Cabinet papers.

15 February

Cabinet considers both Cabinet papers.

15-24 Feb

Possible Government announcement of Government policy,
and issue s 68B direction alongside other housing measures
(Gazette and table s 68B in Parliament).

22 Feb

Cabinet authorises recommended replacement remit.
Executive Council — Order in Council for remit changes.
Possible Government announcement of new remit.

24 Feb

Monetary Policy Statement (decision taken under current
remit).

After 24 Feb

Governor-General issues new monetary policy remit, on your
recommendation (following order in Council process).
Present remit to the House.

There are timing risks relating to the PCO drafting and certification of a new remit.

Treasury will undertake to provide an update on timing next week, at the same time as
advice regarding Cabinet approvals for authorisation.

Subiject to your feedback, the Treasury will draft a letter for you to send to the Bank to

inform the Bank of your decisions, and request further advice from the Bank on DTI

ratio restrictions.
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Annex One: DRAFT direction on Government policy

Pursuant to section 68B of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 (the Act), | direct the
Reserve Bank of New Zealand (the Reserve Bank) to have regard to the
following government policy that relates to its functions under Part 5 of the Act.

Government policy

[Option 1: preferred by RBNZ]
It is Government policy to support more sustainable house prices.

or

[Option 2: preferred by Treasury]
It is Government policy to support more sustainable house prices and dampen investor
demand for existing housing stock, in order to allow more opportunities for first home buyers.

or

[Option 3]

The Government’s policy objectives are:

1. Ensure every New Zealander has a safe, warm, dry and affordable home to call their
own — whether they are renters or owners.

2. In the short to medium term, support more sustainable house prices by dampening
investor demand for existing housing stock, while creating additional opportunities for
first home buyers.

3.  Create a high-performing housing supply system for renters and owners, taking credible
measures to increase supply and facilitate responsive, competitive, and more affordable
housing and urban land markets that are well-planned and well-regulated.

Consultation
The Reserve Bank has been consulted on this direction.

Communication
Pursuant to section 162B(1)(d) of the Act, the RBNZ is required to report on how it has had
regard to this direction in its next Statement of Intent.

Review
| intend to review this direction in consultation with the Reserve Bank in [two] years.

Issued at Wellington this X day of February 2021

Hon Grant Robertson, Minister of Finance
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Explanatory note (not part of this direction):

Section 68 of the Act requires that the powers conferred on the Reserve Bank under Part 5
be exercised for the purpose of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial
system. To promote the maintenance of sound and efficient financial system, the Reserve
Bank imposes a range of conditions of registration on financial institutions in relation to a
bank’s ability to carry on its business in a prudent manner.

The adoption and implementation of these conditions have implications for the housing
market and also for the Government’s broader policy objectives.

The Government policy which is the subject of the direction forms part
of the Government’s overall economic objective is to improve the wellbeing and living
standards of New Zealanders through a sustainable, productive and inclusive economy.

An effective functioning housing market is a critical component of a sustainable and inclusive
economy and promotes the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system. Access
to affordable housing is a significant and growing concern for New Zealanders. Despite

the impact of COVID-19, median house prices have increased significantly in the past year.

The current state of the housing market creates significant societal inequities, and cuts
across a number of this Government’s goals.

To that end, the Government’s overarching objectives are:

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

3. Create a high-performing housing supply system for renters and owners, taking credible

measures to increase supply and facilitate responsive, competitive, and more affordable
housing and urban land markets that are well-planned and well-regulated.
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Annex Two: DRAFT indicative remit for the MPC

Note: recommended changes are underlined.
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
with higher wages and reduces inequality and poverty. [An_effective functioning housing
market is a critical component of a sustainable and inclusive economy and promotes the
maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system.]

Context

Monetary policy plays an important role in supporting the Government’s economic objective.
The Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 (the Act) requires that monetary policy promote
the prosperity and wellbeing of New Zealanders, and contribute to a sustainable and productive
economy. Monetary policy contributes to public welfare by reducing cyclical variations in
employment and economic activity whilst maintaining price stability over the medium term.

This remit is issued by the Minister of Finance to the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) under
Clause 3, Schedule 1 of the Act.

1) Monetary Policy Objectives

a) Under Section 8 of the Act the Reserve Bank, acting through the MPC, is required
to formulate monetary policy with the goals of maintaining a stable general level of
prices over the medium term and supporting maximum sustainable employment.

2) Operational Objectives

a) For the purpose of this remit the MPC’s operational objectives shall be to:

i. keep future annual inflation between 1 and 3 percent over the medium term,
with a focus on keeping future inflation near the 2 percent mid-point. This
target will be defined in terms of the All Groups Consumers Price Index, as
published by Statistics New Zealand; and

ii. support maximum sustainable employment. The MPC should consider a
broad range of labour market indicators to form a view of where employment
is relative to its maximum sustainable level, taking into account that the level
of maximum sustainable employment is largely determined by non-monetary
factors that affect the structure and dynamics of the labour market and is not
directly measurable.

b) In pursuing the operational objectives, the MPC shall:
I. have regard to the efficiency and soundness of the financial system;

ii. seek to avoid unnecessary instability in output, interest rates, and the
exchange rate;

iii. discount events that have only transitory effects on inflation, setting policy
with a medium-term orientation; and
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iv. Assess the potential material impacts of its monetary policy decisions on
Government policies outlined in section 68B directions.

Hon Grant Robertson
Minister of Finance
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<renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: TSY Bag: Treasury Report T2021-155; Housing objectives for the Reserve Bank

Good morning,
Kindly note that Treasury Report T2021-155; Housing objectives for th nk has b e

MAS for 10am electronic upload.

Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any questions.
inked|p and Instagram

Kind regards,

Yulia Gonina | Team Assistant |
Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | Te Tai Ohanga

Email/IM: yulia.gonina@treasury.govt.nz
Visit us online at https://treasury.govt.nz/
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From: Elle Hughes [TSY]

Sent: Wednesday, 10 February 2021 12:49 pm

To: Natalie Labuschagne

Subject: RE: Draft remit format

“Housing policy and the Reserve Bank” — can change if you've got a prefer ise. /(&
LU

Elle

From: Natalie Labuschagne <Natalie.Labuschagne@parliament. d\"/’t\“nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 10 February 2021 12:30 pm T
To: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: Draft remit format

Thanks Elle — quick question so that | can submit thgu i ' cabi _ what is the title of the
Cabinet paper? )

Thanks! ®
o _/

Natalie Labuschagne | Econo ic@q‘r
Office of Hon Grant Roberts /

Minister of Finance

Level 7.6 Executive Wlng/P§rI| uildings, P
Tsoak | Misoatn,

E: natalie. Iabuschagﬁe@par}’l’aﬁwnt govt.nz

7
email’is privileged and confidential and intended for the addressee only. If you are not the intended

ect that’'confidentialit d disclose, copy or make use of its contents. If received in error you are
ohtact the sender immediately. Your assistance is appreciated.

<
From: Elle Hughes [TSY] [mai{cﬂil N, ghes@treasury.govt.nz]
Sent: Wednesday, 10 February 2021'11:02 AM

To: Natalie Labuschag Natali fLabuschagne@parliament.govt.nz>

Cc: Dasha Leonova [ <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornton [TSY]
<Sam.Thornton@treasury.gavt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Leona Feng [TSY]
<Leona. Feng@t(eashﬁ}ovt nz>; Daniel Cruden [TSY] <Daniel.Cruden@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TSY]
<Mario. D|Malo@ﬁe}sury govt.nz>; Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: Draft remit format

The information contained in
recipient, you are asked to 1

Hi Natalie,

This email follows up our discussion yesterday about what a replacement remit could look like, to support your
conversation with the Minister this afternoon. It also seeks confirmation on timing.

As mentioned in the report Housing Policy and the Reserve Bank (T2021/155), the remit replacement will be drafted
by PCO. Unlike the remit you issued, it is a legislative instrument. PCO will need to certify the content of not only the
new change but the entirety of the current remit. PCO has not previously considered or certified the content of the
existing remit, as the first remit was not subject to an OIC process.

1
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On timing — If we S ag, is it ok to send soft copies across by 4pm? If not, let us know when you need it by,
and if you need

Elle

From: Natalie Labuschagne <Natalie.Labuschagne @parliament.govt.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, 10 February 2021 10:45 am

To: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>

Cc: Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornton [TSY]
<Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Elle Hughes [TSY]
<Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: Process requirements for s 68B

Thanks Leona - this is useful. | will let you know once | have spoken with the Ministerial advisors.
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Natalie Labuschagne | Economic Advisor

Office of Hon Grant Robertson

Minister of Finance

Level 7.6 Executive Wing, Parliament Buildings, PO Box 18041, Wellington 6160, New Zealand

Tis9@)(k) | M:s92)(a)ii)
E: natalie.labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz

The information contained in this email is privileged and confidential and intended for the addressee only. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are asked to respect that confidentiality and not disclose, copy or make use of its contents. If received in error you are

asked to destroy this email and contact the sender immediately. Your assistance is appreciated.
@ 3
|
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From: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz> g\;\f
-/

Date: Tuesday, 09 Feb 2021, 17:55
To: Natalie Labuschagne <Natalie.Labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz>~ 7
Cc: Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>, Sa T@or“ﬁtﬂw [TSY] <Sarﬁ.fﬁ6xnt @treasury.govt.nz>,
Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>, Elle Hugh \Tle.Hughes@f’r’é&wﬁéovt.np

T

Subject: Process requirements for s 68B %\\\\/ ;‘
_/

At the catch-up, you mentioned you were going i ential announcements and how these

might align with the process requireme® £
)

Under section 68B, @
(-

e The Minister must consﬁlt,thg\RBNZ befoxg a s 68B direction — this is being done as part of the TR and
;at

Hi Natalie

~

Cab paper process. oS N

be'se odt ina wri 7 ent signed by the Minister — this could be done early next
ister’s respon e RBNZ's letter.

e The direction m
week as part o
e Assoon as

Q X ~
| have seen announcements of oth vernment policy statements after they are issued but before they are
gazetted — e.g. aGovernm ‘ FKQIL?)Statement to the Commerce Commission was issued and announced on 22
March but published in Lo 24 March.

Cheers Q
Leona .
r’/‘/ - \

%sbs TE TAI OHANGA
; THE TREASURY
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Housing policy and the Reserve Bank 

Proposal

1 This paper proposes that Cabinet: 

1.1 Authorise the Minister of Finance to issue drafting instructions to the Parliamentary Counsel Office for an Order in Council to replace the remit for the Monetary Policy Committee.

1.2 Agree the replacement remit would see the Reserve Bank take into account the government policy objectives relating to housing affordability. 

1.3 Note my intention to issue a direction to the Reserve Bank to have regard to a government policy on housing in relation to its financial policy functions, under section 68B of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 (‘the Act’).

1.4 Note my intention to also invite the Reserve Bank to provide me with further advice about the inclusion of debt serviceability restrictions such as debt-to-income limits in the Memorandum of Understanding on macroprudential policy and the impact of interest-only mortgages on financial stability and Government housing objectives. 

2 This paper sits alongside the paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’ that I am bringing along with the Minister of Housing and the Minister of Revenue. Together, these two papers form part of the Government’s broader package of work to improve housing affordability.

Executive Summary

3 Since the onset of COVID-19, the Reserve Bank’s monetary actions in reducing the Official Cash Rate (OCR) and conducting Large Scale Asset Purchases have played a key role in cushioning the economic blow of COVID-19, and positioning the economy for recovery. However, the Reserve Bank’s actions under both its monetary and financial functions can temporarily influence house prices, particularly in a context of constrained housing supply. The Reserve Bank also has a statutory purpose of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system, and it has implemented tools such as Loan-to-Value (LVR) restrictions to reduce the risk associated with ‘boom-bust’ cycles. The design of these measures can have differential impacts on groups of buyers. The Reserve Bank has taken financial measures, including the removal of LVR restrictions, in response to COVID-19. 

4 While supply-side reforms are fundamental to the long-term provision of affordable housing, demand-side measures can help to moderate growth while the supply side catches up. Given this, on 24 November 2020 I wrote to the Governor of the Reserve Bank to seek his views on whether the monetary policy remit should be amended to include stability in house prices. In the Governor’s response to me published on 11 December, he recommended that the Government’s specific housing objective be issued as a factor for the Reserve Bank to have regard to when setting financial policy. This direction would be issued under section 68B of the Act and ultimately articulated in the Reserve Bank’s Financial Policy Remit, pending further legislative reform of the Act.

5 Following the Governor’s response, officials at the Reserve Bank and the Treasury have worked together to identify further options for elevating the prominence of house prices in the Reserve Bank’s decision-making. This paper sets out recommendations to elevate how both the Reserve Bank and its MPC considers the housing market outcomes of their decisions. On financial policy, this paper notes that I intend to issue a direction under section 68B of the Act outlining the Government’s housing objectives. On monetary policy, this paper seeks your endorsement to progress a new remit that would see the Reserve Bank take into account the Government’s housing objectives. The replacement remit would be issued via Order-in-Council and would therefore be subject to a legislative drafting process. I intend to report back to you with recommended wording for the remit next week. 

6 [bookmark: _GoBack]Subject to Cabinet and Executive Council agreement, I intend to announce the proposals before the end of February, alongside the announcement of the measures contained in the companion paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth.’  

The lack of affordable housing is one of the country’s longest-standing and largest issues

7 As discussed in the companion Cabinet paper, ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’, New Zealand house prices are among the highest in the world relative to incomes. Nationally, median house prices are ten times higher than median disposable income, a value that has doubled since 2000.  From 1991 to 2019 (before COVID-19) our house prices had the highest real growth in the OECD at 266 percent. Homeownership rates are significantly lower now than they were at their peak in the 1990s and, as at the 2018 Census, were at their lowest since the 1950s. 

8 While increasing housing supply is the key to providing affordable housing in the long term, demand-side factors are also putting upward pressure on prices. Falling interest rates – and particularly very low interest rates in response to COVID-19 – have increased house prices, creating capital gains for existing property owners but worsening the position of first-home buyers. The removal of LVR restrictions in response to COVID-19 made it easier for highly-leveraged investors to re-enter the market, thus potentially exacerbating price pressures. High population growth has increased demand for housing over recent decades. Finally, investors are active in the market partly due to favourable tax treatment of housing investment and the widely held view that housing is a one-way bet. 

[bookmark: _Hlk62824736]This paper is part of a broader programme of work to improve housing affordability

9 The companion paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’ proposes that the Government agree to the following overall objectives for the housing market: 

9.1 Ensure every New Zealander has a safe, warm, and dry home to call their own – whether they are renters or owners. 

9.2 In the short to medium-term, support more affordable house prices by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock which would allow additional opportunities for first-home buyers. 

9.3 Create a housing and urban land market that credibly responds to population growth and changing housing preferences, is competitive and affordable for renters and homeowners, and is well-planned and well-regulated. 

10 In line with these objectives, this paper proposes measures to direct the Reserve Bank and its MPC to consider relevant aspects of government policy relating to housing affordability when making decisions in respect of financial and monetary policy. 

11 Alongside this, the companion paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’ proposes tax measures that would increase the tax paid by residential property investors. Responsible Ministers also intend to propose options for improving housing supply to Cabinet over the next few months. 

The Reserve Bank’s role and support for the Government’s economic objective 

12 The Reserve Bank has two main policy functions: monetary policy and financial stability policy. Each is governed by the Act but with separate decision-making arrangements. We changed the monetary policy framework through ‘Phase One’ of our reforms to the Act. The second phase, which will reform the Bank’s financial stability framework, is still in progress.

Monetary policy

13 Under the Act, the MPC is required to formulate monetary policy directed to the economic objectives of:

13.1 achieving and maintaining stability in the general level of prices over the medium term; and

13.2 supporting maximum sustainable employment.

14 These are specified further in the operational objectives set out in the monetary policy remit. The remit may also set out further matters that the MPC must consider when pursuing its operational objectives. These matters must not be inconsistent with an economic objective. This means that any move to give greater weight to house-price considerations in the remit would only lead the MPC to promote housing affordability if doing so was consistent with its primary objectives. As background, the current remit is appended at the end of this paper (Annex 1). 

Financial policy

15 Under its role relating to the registration and prudential supervision of banks (the Reserve Bank’s financial stability function), the Reserve Bank is required to exercise its powers for the purposes of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system. The Reserve Bank does this by imposing a range of regulatory requirements on banks. Its regulatory policies are broadly in line with international practice and include disclosure rules as well as capital adequacy and liquidity requirements. Macroprudential policies such as LVR restrictions are part of this suite of policies. Apart from imposing requirements on banks, the Reserve Bank also monitors compliance and supervises banks, taking enforcement action and managing failures when required.   

16 The Act provides for the Minister of Finance to issue a direction to the Reserve Bank to have regard to a government policy. The direction would require the Reserve Bank to have regard to the government policy when taking decisions on the design of financial stability policies. However, the primary objectives of the Reserve Bank’s financial policy (financial soundness and efficiency) would remain unchanged.   

17 As noted above, the Phase Two of the Government’s reforms to the Reserve Bank’s financial stability functions is currently in progress. This phase is also considering some key governance questions. The Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill, which modernises the Reserve Bank’s governance and decision-making framework, is currently being considered by Parliament’s Finance and Expenditure Committee. I expect to introduce a further Bill creating a new regulatory regime for banks and other deposit takers and introducing a deposit insurance scheme by the end of 2021. 

Housing market impacts of Reserve Bank policies 

18 The Reserve Bank’s actions under both its monetary and financial functions can influence house prices, particularly in a context of constrained housing supply. For example, reductions in the OCR under its monetary policy function may increase demand for housing by reducing the cost of borrowing. Conversely, the use of LVR restrictions for financial stability purposes may reduce demand for housing by increasing the required deposit. 

19 The Reserve Bank has publicly stated that the MPC already considers housing costs and house prices to an extent. The MPC considers the housing market insofar as it is a driver of inflation and employment. For example, housing costs – such as rent, maintenance and the cost of construction of a new house – enter into the measure of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) that the MPC targets for its price stability objective. However, the CPI does not include house prices directly, and it gives little weight to the cost of land. This means the CPI gives an incomplete picture of housing inflation for policy purposes. Similarly, in undertaking its financial stability role, the Reserve Bank considers house prices in the context of financial stability. 

20 However, as New Zealand’s stronger-than-expected economic performance has flowed through to renewed housing demand, the time is right to reconsider whether the importance of house prices in Reserve Bank decision-making should be elevated. To this end, on 24 November 2020 I wrote to the Governor of the Reserve Bank to seek his views on whether the monetary policy remit should require the MPC to seek to avoid unnecessary instability in house prices. The Governor’s response, received on 9 December, suggested that the Reserve Bank’s financial stability functions might be a more appropriate vehicle for such a consideration. Following this, I asked officials from the Treasury and the Reserve Bank to advise on options to elevate the prominence the Reserve Bank and its MPC give to housing outcomes when making financial policy decisions and monetary policy decisions, respectively. 

21 The changes I am proposing reflect that advice, and do not involve a fundamental departure from either the current institutional framework or the Government’s medium-term direction of reform to the Act through Phase Two. Attempting to use monetary policy to change the long-run level of house prices would require a persistently higher level of interest rates than otherwise warranted, which could be highly damaging to the economy, and result in higher unemployment. Similarly, replacing or supplementing the Reserve Bank’s financial stability objective with housing affordability objectives could lead to the Reserve Bank taking action to lower house prices that comes at the expense of financial stability. I therefore propose to retain the Bank’s primary objectives for both monetary and financial policy. 

Proposal to seek replacement remit for the Monetary Policy Committee

22 As noted above, the Treasury and Reserve Bank have worked together to identify how a replacement remit for the MPC could give greater emphasis to housing affordability considerations in the MPC’s decision-making framework, while clearly retaining the primacy of the MPC’s economic objectives. 

23 The replacement remit would be issued via Order-in-Council and would therefore be subject to a legislative drafting process. Officials have advised that the replacement remit should:

23.1 Set the expectation that the MPC comprehensively understands the effects its decisions have on the Government’s housing objective, while it is pursuing its economic objectives.

23.2 Provide transparency and assurance about how the MPC understands these effects.

24 [bookmark: _Hlk63947513]The MPC would retain autonomy over whether and how its monetary policy decisions take account of potential housing consequences. At the margins, the MPC’s assessment of likely housing consequences may impact its choice of the monetary policy mix (that is, the mix of traditional and alternative tools it deploys).  

25 Following its decisions, the MPC would need to explain regularly how it has sought to assess its impact on housing outcomes. This would support transparency about how the MPC considers its impact on housing outcomes. This reporting obligation would arise because the MPC’s Charter requires the MPC to explain how it met the requirements of clause 2b) of the remit in its quarterly Monetary Policy Statements.  

26 Officials also recommend updating the contextual information attached to the remit to note the important role of the housing market in supporting the Government’s economic objective; an effective functioning housing market is a critical component of a sustainable and inclusive economy and promotes the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system. This update would complement the section 2B requirement to assess the impacts of monetary policy on the Government’s housing objective, and support the section 68B direction.

27 I propose that the replacement remit would expire on 14 February 2024 (that is, the same date that the current remit is due to expire).

I intend to issue a section 68B direction on government policy 

28 I also intend to issue a direction under section 68B of the Reserve Bank Act to require the Reserve Bank to have regard to a government policy on housing. The Reserve Bank would be required to have regard to this policy when pursuing its financial soundness and efficiency mandate. 

29 Section 68B empowers the Minister of Finance to direct the Reserve Bank to have regard to a government policy that relates to the Bank’s functions under Part 5, Parts 5B and 5C (bank registration, prudential supervision, statutory management, and regulation of payment and settlement systems) of the Act. 

30 Section 68 of the Act states the powers conferred on the Governor-General, the Minister, and the Bank by this Part of the Act, which includes the 68B direction power, shall be exercised for the purposes of:

30.1 promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system; or

30.2 avoiding significant damage to the financial system that could result from the failure of a registered bank.

31 Once a direction has been issued, the Reserve Bank is required to ‘have regard to’ the government policy, which is generally understood to mean it must give genuine attention and thought to the direction, weigh it against other relevant factors, and give it the weight the Reserve Bank considers is appropriate in the circumstances. It does not change the nature of the Reserve Bank’s functions or require the Reserve Bank to give effect to the government policy itself.

I have considered several options for expressing Government policy in the section 68B direction

32 I have sought advice from the Treasury and Reserve Bank on how the Reserve Bank could be required to have regard to house prices, and I have considered the following options for expressing the Government policy on housing. These options are based on wording from the government policy objectives on housing, which are being proposed in the companion paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’.

32.1 Option 1: “To support more affordable house prices” (preferred by the Reserve Bank)

32.2 Option 2: “To support more affordable house prices, including by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock which would allow more opportunities for first-home buyers” (preferred by the Treasury)

32.3 Option 3: Including all the Government’s policy objectives on housing in the direction itself, which include ensuring every New Zealander has a safe, warm, dry and affordable home and creating a high-performing housing supply system. 

33 [bookmark: _Hlk63955025]The Treasury considers that Option 2 best achieves the overall objective of communicating the Government’s relevant housing priorities. It is preferable to Option 1 because it provides information on which parts of the market the Government intends to focus its policies on, and also requires the Reserve Bank to have regard to how it could achieve its financial stability mandate without coming at the expense of first-home buyers. Option 2 is also preferable to Option 3, which includes a wide range of housing matters less relevant to the Reserve Bank’s financial policy functions (such as warm, dry housing) and therefore has some significant legal risks. It is not clear that these matters would relate to the functions of the Bank under Part 5 of the Act, and nor would it be clear that the direction was for the purpose of a sound and efficient financial system. Therefore, such a direction may be inconsistent with the provisions of the Act (refer para 28 and 29 above).

34 [bookmark: _Hlk63956098]The Reserve Bank has a strong preference for Option 1 because it considers this provides the most achievable objective for the Reserve Bank, as sustainable house prices are consistent with its financial stability mandate. Like Options 2 and 3, it would require the Bank to have regard to whether its financial policies could bring house prices closer to ‘fair value’, including if overvaluation were caused by investor speculation. The Reserve Bank’s view is that unlike Options 2 and 3, it would not create unrealistic expectations about the ability of the Reserve Bank to target specific subsectors of the housing market. The Reserve Bank thinks that Option 1 is also a more enduring requirement, as it would be relevant in future circumstances where there was a desire to bolster housing demand from both owner-occupiers and investors. 

My preferred approach is for Government policy “to support more affordable house prices, including by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock in order to allow more opportunities for first-home buyers”

35 My preferred approach to issuing a section 68B direction is Option 2 above. I believe this would express Government policy in a way that clearly communicates the Government’s relevant housing objectives and highlights which parts of the housing market the Government intends to focus its policies on. A key part of the Government’s housing policy is to moderate house price growth, including by tilting the balance away from investors and more towards first-home buyers. Once a government policy direction has been issued, it is up to the Reserve Bank to respond to the policy in a way that the Reserve Bank considers best aligns with its financial stability mandate.  

36 While the Government policy on housing could be stated in more general or specific ways, I consider that the wording above best captures the Government’s concerns about the housing market and the role of the Reserve Bank in relation to the complex and multifaceted drivers of the housing market, while also meeting the legislative requirements set out in section 68 and 68B. While I acknowledge there are some concerns that the Government policy as stated in the direction could be perceived as setting unreasonable expectations about the ability of the Reserve Bank to target certain segments of the housing market for broader policy reasons, I consider these can be managed by clear communication.

I am exercising this power for the purpose of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system 

37 I am exercising this power to issue a section 68B government policy direction for the purpose of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system, in accordance with section 68 of the Act. 

38 I consider that requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to the government policy of ‘supporting more affordable house prices’ is aligned with the long-term economic fundamentals of housing and is consistent with the Bank’s financial soundness mandate. ‘Affordable’ and ‘sustainable’ house prices have similar meanings, in that house prices should be within some range of ‘fair value’, that is by reference to affordability for owner-occupiers in the macroeconomic context, or the cost of building a new house. 

39 There are strong links between affordability and financial soundness. If house prices go up rapidly and become more unaffordable relative to average household incomes, they increase the risk that households can no longer afford the ongoing costs of servicing mortgage debt. They also increase the risk of a sharp correction in the housing market and consequent financial sector disruption.

The Government policy in this direction is related to the Reserve Bank’s financial policy functions

40 The Reserve Bank’s relevant functions are the prudential supervision and implementation of rules that promote the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system. 

41 The Government’s housing policy is also to increase the proportion of owner-occupiers in the housing market, which can only be achieved by increasing the rate of first-home buyers. 

42 This policy is consistent with the financial stability purpose above because of the differential financial risks posed by different types of borrowers. Investors may be associated with greater financial stability risks because may be more likely to sell their properties quickly in response to declining house prices, which increases the risk of ‘fire sales’ in a downturn. 

43 The Government policy as expressed above relates to the Bank’s functions. When the Reserve Bank carries out its Part 5 functions, it treats investors and owner-occupier borrowers differently for some of its relevant policies. For example, on loan-to-value restrictions, the Reserve Bank already distinguishes between investors and owner-occupiers by imposing stricter requirements on investors than owner-occupiers.

44 The Bank could consider whether it could undertake its functions without coming at the expense of first home buyers, and its financial policies could bring house prices closer to their ‘fair value’, including if overvaluation were caused by investor speculation.

45 A draft Government Policy direction is attached to this paper (Annex 2). 

This direction will be replaced by a financial policy remit

46 The Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill provides for a financial policy remit, which will need to be issued by the Minister of Finance and reviewed at least every five years. It will have a similar legal effect to the section 68B direction (in that it is a ‘have regard to’ requirement) but will be a standing document rather than one that can be issued from time to time. It will also be supported by additional accountability and reporting requirements and will apply across all of the Reserve Bank’s financial stability functions. The Remit is designed to provide a balance between protecting the Reserve Bank’s operational independence, and providing an appropriate level of democratic influence over the significant policy making functions that Parliament has delegated to the Reserve Bank in relation to financial stability.

47 I expect that the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill will be enacted by the end of this year and that it will commence on 1 July 2022, with the first financial policy remit coming into force at this time. I expect to review this section 68B direction in the first half of 2022, as part of finalising the new financial policy remit. 

Other financial policy tools that may impact on the housing market 

The Reserve Bank has requested the Government consider adding debt serviceability restrictions to its toolkit

48 Another suggestion in the Governor’s letter of 11 December was that the Government consider adding restrictions on debt serviceability (including debt-to-income (DTI) limits) to the permitted tools in 2021.  

49 I am seeking more information and specificity about how the Bank would implement them, particularly in light of any section 68B direction issued. I am particularly interested in whether DTIs could be targeted at investors and not at first home buyers. Therefore, I intend to invite the Bank to provide further advice to me before making any decision to add DTIs to the Reserve Bank’s toolkit. 

I am also requesting advice from the Reserve Bank on interest-only mortgages

50 As part of the Treasury’s advice to me on housing affordability, it has also noted that a high proportion of residential property lending to investors is interest-only (i.e. no repayments of the principal over the mortgage period). Interest-only mortgages comprise over 40% of new investor lending, compared to just over 20% for owner-occupiers. Interest-only mortgages – combined with interest payment being tax deductible – appear to be an enabler of speculative investment in housing. 

51 Given this, I also intend to invite the Reserve Bank to provide advice to me on the extent to which interest-only mortgages, (particularly to investors) pose risks to the Reserve Bank’s objectives of financial soundness and efficiency, and whether restrictions on interest-only mortgages may support the Government housing policy objectives. 

Implementation 

52 I intend for the replacement remit for the Monetary Policy Committee to be in place in time for the MPC’s regular monetary policy announcement on 14 April 2021 (this means that the MPC will make its next decision under the existing remit, at its 24 February Monetary Policy Statement).   

53 I will issue the section 68B direction by providing a signed written statement to the Reserve Bank. As soon as practicable after the direction has been transmitted, I will present this to Parliament and publish this in the Gazette. 

54 I will separately write to the Reserve Bank seeking further advice on DTIs and interest-only mortgages.	

Financial Implications

55 There are no financial implications associated with this paper. 

Legislative Implications

56 The remit for the Monetary Policy Committee cannot be amended before its expiry however it can be replaced by Order in Council, on the advice of the Minister of Finance. I intend to provide an Order in Council to Cabinet for submission to the Executive Council.

Regulatory Impact Statement

57 For the issuance of a section 68B direction, the regulatory impact analysis requirements do not apply, and a regulatory impact statement has not been prepared. 

58 For the replacement remit, the Regulatory Impact Analysis Team at the Treasury has determined that the regulatory proposal in this paper is exempt from the requirement to provide a Regulatory Impact Statement on the basis that it has no or minor impacts on businesses, individuals or not for profit entities. 

 Population Implications 

59 The following population groups are likely to be particularly affected by the proposals in this paper: 

59.1 To the extent that the policy proposals within this paper place upward pressure on rents, this appears more likely to disproportionately impact Māori and Pacific people, who are less likely to own their home (or hold it in a trust) than other ethnic groups. At the time of the 2013 Census, 56.9% of Māori and 66.9% of Pacific people were living in rental homes, compared to the total population figure of 36.3% (this data is not yet available from the 2018 Census). Government is taking other measures to improve housing for Māori and Pacific, including through Progressive Home Ownership, MAIHI partnerships and our Public Housing build programme. In addition, as around 43% of children are living in rental accommodation, upward pressure on rents could have negative impacts on child wellbeing and child poverty.

59.2 To the extent that the proposals benefit new entrants to the housing market, this appears more likely to benefit middle- to higher- income earners. Evidence from the 2018 General Social Survey suggests that, among people moving from rental properties into owner-occupied housing, those with higher personal incomes ($70,001 or more per year) were significantly more likely to have moved into their own home. Māori and Pacific people were significantly less likely to have moved into their own home than Pākehā.

59.3 Given that declining home ownership rates have been sharper amongst younger people, upward pressure on rental prices risks particularly burdening this group. Balanced against this is the potential for increased affordability for first home buyers, including amongst young people.

60 As noted above, the magnitude of the effect of the two tax measures on property and rent prices is uncertain. Accordingly, the size of the impact on population groups described above is also uncertain.  

Human Rights

61 There are no human rights implications raised by the proposals in this paper. 

Consultation

62 The Reserve Bank of New Zealand has been consulted on this paper, the draft direction and the proposal to seek a replacement remit. The Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet has been informed.

Communications

63 Subject to Cabinet and Executive Council agreement, I intend to announce the proposals before the end of February, alongside the announcement of the measures contained in the companion paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth.’ As housing affordability is of high public concern, any new measures will be of considerable media and stakeholder interest. Proactive Release

64 I propose to proactively release this Cabinet paper following public announcement of these proposals. 

Recommendations

The Minister of Finance recommends that Cabinet:

1 note this paper is part of a series of Cabinet papers to improve housing affordability in New Zealand,

2 note that the Reserve Bank’s actions in the past year have played a critical role in supporting New Zealand’s economic recovery, but have contributed to house price increases,

3 note this paper sits alongside the paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’, and that together these two papers form a part of the Government’s broader package of work to improve housing affordability,

4 note that the Government’s policy objectives for the housing market will be agreed to in the companion paper above and are relevant to the proposals in this paper. These objectives are to:

4.1 Ensure every New Zealander has a safe, warm, dry and affordable home to call their own – whether they are renters or owners.

4.2 In the short to medium-term, support more affordable house prices by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock, which would opportunities for first-home buyers.

4.3 Create a housing and urban land market that credibly responds to population growth and changing housing preferences, is competitive and affordable for renters and homeowners, and is well-planned and well-regulated.

Monetary policy remit

5 authorise the Minister of Finance to issue drafting instructions to the Parliamentary Counsel Office for an Order in Council to replace the remit for the MPC,

6 agree the replacement remit will incorporate government policy objectives relating to housing affordability, with the intent of: 

6.1 setting the expectation that the MPC comprehensively understands the effects its decisions have on the Government’s housing objective, while it is pursuing its economic objectives,

6.2 providing transparency and assurance about how the MPC understands these effects, 

7 authorise the Minister of Finance to progress any other policy issues that arise during the Order in Council process,

8 note that I intend to bring an Order in Council to Cabinet next week for submission to the Executive Council,

9 agree that I will bring the Order in Council direct to Cabinet for submission to the Executive Council and I will not bring an item on this matter to LEG committee, 

Section 68B direction

10 note that I intend to issue a section 68B direction to require the Reserve Bank to have regard to a government policy on housing,

11 note that I have considered the three following options for expressing Government policy in the section 68B direction:

11.1 [bookmark: _Hlk63945511]Option 1: “To support more affordable house prices” (Reserve Bank preferred)

11.2 Option 2: “To support more affordable house prices, including by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock which would allow more opportunities for first-home buyers” (Treasury and Minister of Finance preferred)

11.3 Option 3: Including all the Government’s policy objectives on housing in the direction itself, which include ensuring every New Zealander has a safe, warm, dry and affordable home and creating a responsive housing and urban land market,

12 note that my preference for expressing Government policy in the section 68B direction is Option 2,

13 note that the Reserve Bank has been consulted prior to the issuing of this direction,

14 note that I intend to issue the attached Section 68B direction on government policy to the Reserve Bank,

15 note that this direction will be presented before Parliament and published in the Gazette as soon as practicable after it is issued, 

16 note that I intend to review this section 68B direction in the first half of 2022, as part of finalising the new financial policy remit,





Other financial policy tools that may impact on the housing market

17 note that I intend to invite the Reserve Bank to provide further advice on the impact of debt-to-income restrictions and interest-only mortgages on financial stability and the Government housing policy objective, 

Next steps

18 note that, subject to Cabinet and Executive Council agreement next week, I intend to announce these proposals before the end of February, and

19 note that I propose to proactively release this Cabinet paper following public announcement of these proposals. 







Authorised for lodgement



Hon Grant Robertson 

Minister of Finance




Annex 1: Current remit for the Monetary Policy Committee





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




Annex 2: Section 68B direction on government policy



Pursuant to section 68B of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 (the Act), I direct the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (the Reserve Bank) to have regard to the following government policy that relates to its functions under Part 5 of the Act.

Government policy

It is Government policy to support more sustainable house prices, including by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock in order to allow more opportunities for first-home buyers.

Consultation 



The Reserve Bank has been consulted on this direction. 



Communication 



Pursuant to section 162B(1)(d) of the Act, the RBNZ is required to report on how it has had regard to this direction in its next Statement of Intent. 



Review 



I expect to review this section 68B direction in the first half of 2022, as part of finalising the new financial policy remit under the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill, if enacted.



Issued at Wellington this [X] day of February 2021 





Hon Grant Robertson, Minister of Finance






Explanatory note (not part of this direction): 



Section 68 of the Act requires that the powers conferred on the Reserve Bank under Part 5 be exercised for the purpose of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system. To promote the maintenance of sound and efficient financial system, the Reserve Bank imposes a range of conditions of registration on financial institutions in relation to a bank’s ability to carry on its business in a prudent manner. 



The adoption and implementation of these conditions have implications for the housing market and also for the Government’s broader policy objectives. 



The Government policy which is the subject of the direction forms part of the Government’s overall economic objective is to improve the wellbeing and living standards of New Zealanders through a sustainable, productive and inclusive economy. 



An effective functioning housing market is a critical component of a sustainable and inclusive economy and promotes the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system. Access to affordable housing is a significant and growing concern for New Zealanders. Despite the impact of COVID-19, median house prices have increased significantly in the past year. 



The current state of the housing market creates significant societal inequities, and cuts across a number of this Government’s goals. 





To that end, the Government’s overarching objectives are: 



1. Ensure every New Zealander has a safe, warm, dry and affordable home to call their own – whether they are renters or owners. 



2. In the short to medium term, support more sustainable house prices by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock, while creating additional opportunities for first-home buyers. 



3. Create a housing and urban land market that credibly responds to population growth and changing housing preferences, is competitive and affordable for renters and homeowners, and is well-planned and well-regulated. 
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	            SENSITIVE

Office of the Minister of Finance

Chair, Cabinet 



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

1.2 Agree the replacement remit would see the Reserve Bank take into account the incorporate government policy objectives relating to housing affordability. 

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

6 Following the Governor’s response, officials at the Reserve Bank and the Treasury have worked together to identify further options for elevating the prominence of house prices in the Reserve Bank’s decision-making. This paper sets out recommendations to elevate how both the Reserve Bank and its MPC considers the housing market outcomes of their decisions. On financial policy, this paper notes that I intend to issue a direction under section 68B of the Act outlining the Government’s housing objectives. On monetary policy, this paper seeks your endorsement to progress a new remit that would see the Reserve Bank take into account incorporates the Government’s housing objectives. The replacement remit would be issued via Order-in-Council and would therefore be subject to a legislative drafting process. I intend to report back to you with recommended wording for the remit next week. 

7 Subject to Cabinet and Executive Council agreement, I intend to announce the proposals in before the end of February, alongside the announcement of the measures contained in the companion paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth.’ this paper on 24 February. 

The lack of affordable housing is one of the country’s longest-standing and largest issues

8 As discussed in the companion Cabinet paper, ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’, New Zealand house prices are among the highest in the world relative to incomes. Nationally, median house prices are ten times higher than median disposable income, a value that has doubled since 2000.  From 1991 to 2019 (before COVID-19) our house prices had the highest real growth in the OECD at 266 percent. Homeownership rates are significantly lower now than they were at their peak in the 1990s and, as at the 2018 Census, were at their lowest since the 1950s. 

9 While increasing housing supply is the key to providing affordable housing in the long term, demand-side factors are also putting upward pressure on prices. Falling interest rates – and particularly very low interest rates in response to COVID-19 – have increased house prices, creating capital gains for existing property owners but worsening the position of first-home buyers. The removal of LVR restrictions in response to COVID-19 made it easier for highly-leveraged investors to re-enter the market, thus potentially exacerbating price pressures. High population growth has increased demand for housing over recent decades. Finally, investors are active in the market partly due to favourable tax treatment of housing investment and the widely held view that housing is a one-way bet. 

[bookmark: _Hlk62824736]This paper is part of a broader programme of work to improve housing affordability

10 The companion paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’ proposes that the Government agree to the following overall objectives for the housing market: 

10.1 Ensure every New Zealander has a safe, warm, and dry home to call their own – whether they are renters or owners. 

10.2 In the short to medium-term, support more sustainable affordable house prices by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock, while creating which would allow additional opportunities for first-home buyers. 

10.3 Create a housing and urban land market that credibly responds to population growth and changing housing preferences, is competitive and affordable for renters and homeowners, and is well-planned and well-regulated. 

11 In line with these objectives, this paper proposes measures to direct the Reserve Bank and its MPC to consider relevant aspects of government policy relating to housing affordability when making decisions in respect of financial and monetary policy. 

12 Alongside this, the companion paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’ proposes tax measures that would increase the tax paid by residential property investors. Responsible Ministers also intend to propose options for improving housing supply to Cabinet over the next few months. 

The Reserve Bank’s role and support for the Government’s economic objective 

13 The Reserve Bank has two main policy functions: monetary policy and financial stability policy. Each is governed by the Act but with separate decision-making arrangements. We changed the monetary policy framework through ‘Phase One’ of our reforms to the Act. The second phase, which will reform the Bank’s financial stability framework, is still in progress.

Monetary policy

14 Under the Act, the MPC is required to formulate monetary policy directed to the economic objectives of:

14.1 achieving and maintaining stability in the general level of prices over the medium term; and

14.2 supporting maximum sustainable employment.

15 These are specified further in the operational objectives set out in the monetary policy remit. The remit may also set out further matters that the MPC must consider when pursuing its operational objectives. These matters must not be inconsistent with an economic objective. This means that any move to give greater weight to house-price considerations in the remit would only lead the MPC to promote housing affordability if doing so was consistent with its primary objectives. As background, the current remit is appended at the end of this paper (Annex 1). 

Financial policy

16 Under its role relating to the registration and prudential supervision of banks (the Reserve Bank’s financial stability function), the Reserve Bank is required to exercise its powers for the purposes of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system. The Reserve Bank does this by imposing a range of regulatory requirements on banks. Its regulatory policies are broadly in line with international practice and include disclosure rules as well as capital adequacy and liquidity requirements. Macroprudential policies such as LVR restrictions are part of this suite of policies. Apart from imposing requirements on banks, the Reserve Bank also monitors compliance and supervises banks, taking enforcement action and managing failures when required.   

17 The Act provides for the Minister of Finance to issue a direction to the Reserve Bank to have regard to a government policy. The direction would require the Reserve Bank to have regard to the government policy when taking decisions on the design of financial stability policies. However, the primary objectives of the Reserve Bank’s financial policy (financial soundness and efficiency) would remain unchanged.   

18 As noted above, the Phase Two of the Government’s reforms to the Reserve Bank’s financial stability functions is currently in progress. This phase is also considering some key governance questions. The Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill, which modernises the Reserve Bank’s governance and decision-making framework, is currently being considered by Parliament’s Finance and Expenditure Committee. I expect to introduce a further Bill creating a new regulatory regime for banks and other deposit takers and introducing a deposit insurance scheme by the end of 2021. 

Housing market impacts of Reserve Bank policies 

19 The Reserve Bank’s actions under both its monetary and financial functions can influence house prices, particularly in a context of constrained housing supply. For example, reductions in the OCR under its monetary policy function may increase demand for housing by reducing the cost of borrowing. Conversely, the use of LVR restrictions for financial stability purposes may reduce demand for housing by increasing the required deposit. 

20 The Reserve Bank has publicly stated that the and its MPC already considers housing costs and house prices to an extent. The MPC considers the housing market insofar as it is a driver of inflation and employment. For example, housing costs – such as rent, maintenance and the cost of construction of a new house – enter into the measure of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) that the MPC targets for its price stability objective. However, the CPI does not include house prices directly, and it gives little weight to the cost of land. This means the CPI gives an incomplete picture of housing inflation for policy purposes. Similarly, in undertaking its financial stability role, the Reserve Bank considers house prices in the context of financial stability. 

21 However, as New Zealand’s stronger-than-expected economic performance has flowed through to renewed housing demand, the time is right to reconsider whether the importance of house prices in Reserve Bank decision-making should be elevated. To this end, on 24 November 2020 I wrote to the Governor of the Reserve Bank to seek his views on whether the monetary policy remit should require the MPC to seek to avoid unnecessary instability in house prices. The Governor’s response, received on 9 December, suggested that the Reserve Bank’s financial stability functions might be a more appropriate vehicle for such a consideration. Following this, I asked officials from the Treasury and the Reserve Bank to advise on options to elevate the prominence the Reserve Bank and its MPC give to housing outcomes when making financial policy decisions and monetary policy decisions, respectively. 

22 The changes I am proposing reflect that advice, and do not involve a fundamental departure from either the current institutional framework or the Government’s medium-term direction of reform to the Act through Phase Two. Attempting to use monetary policy to change the long-run level of house prices would require a persistently higher level of interest rates than otherwise warranted, which could be highly damaging to the economy, and result in higher unemployment. Similarly, replacing or supplementing the Reserve Bank’s financial stability objective with housing affordability objectives could lead to the Reserve Bank taking action to lower house prices that comes at the expense of financial stability. I therefore propose to retain the Bank’s primary objectives for both monetary and financial policy. 

Proposal to seek replacement remit for the Monetary Policy Committee

23 As noted above, the Treasury and Reserve Bank have worked together to identify how a replacement remit for the MPC could give greater emphasis to housing affordability considerations in the MPC’s decision-making framework, while clearly retaining the primacy of the MPC’s economic objectives. 

24 The replacement remit would be issued via Order-in-Council and would therefore be subject to a legislative drafting process. Officials have advised that the replacement remit should:

24.1 Set the expectation that the MPC comprehensively understands the effects its decisions have on the Government’s housing objective, while it is pursuing its economic objectives.

24.2 Provide transparency and assurance about how the MPC understands these effects.

25 [bookmark: _Hlk63947513]The MPC would retain autonomy over whether and how its monetary policy decisions take account of potential housing consequences. At the margins, the MPC’s assessment of likely housing consequences may impact its choice of the monetary policy mix (that is, the mix of traditional and alternative tools it deploys).  

26 Following its decisions, the MPC would need to explain regularly how it has sought to assess its impact on housing outcomes. This would support transparency about how the MPC considers its impact on housing outcomes. This reporting obligation would arise because the MPC’s Charter requires the MPC to explain how it met the requirements of clause 2b) of the remit in its quarterly Monetary Policy Statements.  

27 Officials also recommend updating the contextual information attached to the remit to note the important role of the housing market in supporting the Government’s economic objective; an effective functioning housing market is a critical component of a sustainable and inclusive economy and promotes the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system. This update would complement the section 2B requirement to assess the impacts of monetary policy on the Government’s housing objective, and support the section 68B direction.

28 I propose that the replacement remit would expire on 14 February 2024 (that is, the same date that the current remit is due to expire).

I intend to issue a section 68B direction on government policy 

29 I also intend to issue a direction under section 68B of the Reserve Bank Act to require the Reserve Bank to have regard to a government policy on housing. The Reserve Bank would be required to have regard to this policy when pursuing its financial soundness and efficiency mandate. 

30 Section 68B empowers the Minister of Finance to direct the Reserve Bank to have regard to a government policy that relates to the Bank’s functions under Part 5, Parts 5B and 5C (bank registration, prudential supervision, statutory management, and regulation of payment and settlement systems) of the Act. 

31 Section 68 of the Act states the powers conferred on the Governor-General, the Minister, and the Bank by this Part of the Act, which includes the 68B direction power, shall be exercised for the purposes of:

31.1 promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system; or

31.2 avoiding significant damage to the financial system that could result from the failure of a registered bank.

32 Once a direction has been issued, the Reserve Bank is required to ‘have regard to’ the government policy, which is generally understood to mean it must give genuine attention and thought to the direction, weigh it against other relevant factors, and give it the weight the Reserve Bank considers is appropriate in the circumstances. It does not change the nature of the Reserve Bank’s functions or require the Reserve Bank to give effect to the government policy itself.

I have considered several options for expressing Government policy in the section 68B direction

33 I have sought advice from the Treasury and Reserve Bank on how the Reserve Bank could be required to have regard to house prices, and I have considered the following options for expressing the Government policy on housing. These options are based on wording from the government policy objectives on housing, which are being proposed in the companion paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’.

33.1 Option 1: “To support more sustainable affordable house prices” (preferred by the Reserve Bank)

33.2 Option 2: “To support more sustainable affordable house prices, including by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock in order to which would allow more opportunities for first-home buyers” (preferred by the Treasury)	Comment by Daniel Cruden [TSY]: Office asking for “affordable” to be used instead.

33.3 Option 3: Including all the Government’s policy objectives on housing in the direction itself, which include ensuring every New Zealander has a safe, warm, dry and affordable home and creating a high-performing housing supply system. 

34 [bookmark: _Hlk63955025]The Treasury considers that Option 2 best achieves the overall objective of communicating the Government’s relevant housing priorities. It is preferable to Option 1 because it provides information on which parts of the market the Government intends to focus its policies on, and also requires the Reserve Bank to have regard to how it could achieve its financial stability mandate without coming at the expense of first-home buyers. Option 2 is also preferable to Option 3, which includes a wide range of housing matters less relevant to the Reserve Bank’s financial policy functions (such as warm, dry housing) and therefore has some significant legal risks. It is not clear that these matters would relate to the functions of the Bank under Part 5 of the Act, and nor would it be clear that the direction was for the purpose of a sound and efficient financial system. Therefore, such a direction may be inconsistent with the provisions of the Act (refer para 28 and 29 above).

35 [bookmark: _Hlk63956098]The Reserve Bank has a strong preference for Option 1 because it considers this provides the most achievable objective for the Reserve Bank, as sustainable house prices are consistent with its financial stability mandate. Like Options 2 and 3, it would require the Bank to have regard to whether its financial policies could bring house prices closer to ‘fair value’, including if overvaluation were caused by investor speculation. The Reserve Bank’s view is that unlike Options 2 and 3, it would not create unrealistic expectations about the ability of the Reserve Bank to target specific subsectors of the housing market. The Reserve Bank thinks that Option 1 is also a more enduring requirement, as it would be relevant in future circumstances where there was a desire to bolster housing demand from both owner-occupiers and investors. 	Comment by Daniel Cruden [TSY]: Potentially subject to change from RBNZ. 

My preferred approach is for Government policy “to support more sustainable affordable house prices, including by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock in order to allow more opportunities for first-home buyers”

36 My preferred approach to issuing a section 68B direction is Option 2 above. I believe this would express Government policy in a way that clearly communicates the Government’s relevant housing objectives and highlights which parts of the housing market the Government intends to focus its policies on. A key part of the Government’s housing policy is to moderate house price growth, including by tilting the balance away from investors and more towards first-home buyers. Once a government policy direction has been issued, it is up to the Reserve Bank to respond to the policy in a way that the Reserve Bank considers best aligns with its financial stability mandate.  

37 While the Government policy on housing could be stated in more general or specific ways, I consider that the wording above best captures the Government’s concerns about the housing market and the role of the Reserve Bank in relation to the complex and multifaceted drivers of the housing market, while also meeting the legislative requirements set out in section 68 and 68B. While I acknowledge there are some concerns that the Government policy as stated in the direction could be perceived as setting unreasonable expectations about the ability of the Reserve Bank to target certain segments of the housing market for broader policy reasons, I consider these can be managed by clear communication.

I am exercising this power for the purpose of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system 

38 I am exercising this power to issue a section 68B government policy direction for the purpose of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system, in accordance with section 68 of the Act. 

39 I consider that requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to the government policy of ‘supporting more affordable house prices’ is aligned with the long-term economic fundamentals of housing and is consistent with the Bank’s financial soundness mandate. ‘Affordable’ and ‘sustainable’ house prices have similar meanings, in that house prices should be within some range of ‘fair value’, that is by reference to affordability for owner-occupiers in the macroeconomic context, or the cost of building a new house. 

40 [bookmark: _GoBack]There are strong links between affordability and financial soundness. If house prices go up rapidly and become more unaffordable relative to average household incomes, they increase the risk that households can no longer afford the ongoing costs of servicing mortgage debt. They also increase the risk of a sharp correction in the housing market and consequent financial sector disruption.

41 I am exercising this power to issue a section 68B direction for the purpose of promoting the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system, in accordance with section 68 of the Act. Requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to the policy of ‘supporting more sustainable house prices’ is aligned with the long-term economic fundamentals of housing and is consistent with the Reserve Bank’s financial stability mandate. If house prices go up rapidly, they increase the risk of a sharp correction in the housing market and consequent financial sector disruption.

42 This direction would require the Reserve Bank to have regard to whether its financial policies could bring house prices closer to more sustainable levels, including if overvaluation were caused by investor speculation. In practice, this might require an assessment of whether house prices are within some range of ‘fair value’, i.e. compared to affordability for owner-occupiers in the macroeconomic context, or the cost of building a new house. 

The Government policy in this direction is related to the Reserve Bank’s financial policy functions

43 The Reserve Bank’s relevant functions are the prudential supervision and implementation of rules that promote the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system. 

44 The Government’s housing policy is also to increase the proportion of owner-occupiers in the housing market, which can only be achieved by increasing the rate of first-home buyers. 

45 This policy is consistent with the financial stability purpose above because of the differential financial risks posed by different types of borrowers. Investors may be associated with greater financial stability risks because may be more likely to sell their properties quickly in response to declining house prices, which increases the risk of ‘fire sales’ in a downturn. 

46 The Government policy as expressed above relates to the Bank’s functions. When the Reserve Bank carries out its Part 5 functions, it treats investors and owner-occupier borrowers differently for some of its relevant policies. For example, on loan-to-value restrictions, the Reserve Bank already distinguishes between investors and owner-occupiers by imposing stricter requirements on investors than owner-occupiers.

47 The Bank could consider whether it could undertake its functions without coming at the expense of first home buyers, and its financial policies could bring house prices closer to their ‘fair value’, including if overvaluation were caused by investor speculation.

48 The Reserve Bank’s relevant functions are the prudential supervision and implementation of rules that promote the maintenance of a sound and efficient financial system. The Government’s housing policy is to increase the proportion of owner-occupiers in the housing market, which can only be achieved by increasing the rate of first-home buyers. 

49 This policy is consistent with the financial stability purpose above because of the differential financial risks posed by different types of borrowers. Investors may be associated with greater financial stability risks because they may be more likely to sell their properties quickly in response to declining house prices, which increases the risk of ‘fire sales’ in a downturn. 

50 I consider the Government policy has been expressed in a manner that is related to the Reserve Bank’s functions above. The Reserve Bank already implements its functions in a way that treats investors and owner-occupiers differently. For example, the Reserve Bank already distinguishes between investors and owner-occupiers in its LVR policy by imposing stricter requirements on investors than owner-occupiers.

51 A direction that requires the Reserve Bank to have regard to the Government’s policy on first-home buyers is therefore a directly relevant matter for the Reserve Bank’s functions under Part 5 of the Act. The Reserve Bank would be required to consider this policy to the extent that it furthers the purpose of maintaining a sound and efficient financial system. In practice, this could require the Reserve Bank to have regard to how it could achieve its financial soundness and efficiency purposes without coming at the expense of first-home buyers.

52 A draft Government Policy direction is attached to this paper (Annex 2). 

This direction will be replaced by a financial policy remit

53 The Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill provides for a financial policy remit, which will need to be issued by the Minister of Finance and reviewed at least every five years. It will have a similar legal effect to the section 68B direction (in that it is a ‘have regard to’ requirement) but will be a standing document rather than one that can be issued from time to time. It will also be supported by additional accountability and reporting requirements and will apply across all of the Reserve Bank’s financial stability functions. The Remit is designed to provide a balance between protecting the Reserve Bank’s operational independence, and providing an appropriate level of democratic influence over the significant policy making functions that Parliament has delegated to the Reserve Bank in relation to financial stability.

54 I expect that the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Bill will be enacted by the end of this year and that it will commence on 1 July 2022, with the first financial policy remit coming into force at this time. I expect to review this section 68B direction in the first half of 2022, as part of finalising the new financial policy remit. 

Other financial policy tools that may impact on the housing market 

The Reserve Bank has requested the Government consider adding debt serviceability restrictions to its toolkit

55 Another suggestion in the Governor’s letter of 11 December was that the Government consider adding restrictions on debt serviceability (including debt-to-income (DTI) limits) to the permitted tools in 2021.  

56 I agree with the Reserve Bank that the time is right to reconsider whether to include debt serviceability in its financial stability toolkit. However, am seeking more information and specificity about how the Bank would implement them is needed, particularly in light of any section 68B direction issued. I am particularly interested in whether DTIs could be targeted at investors and not at first home buyers. Therefore, I intend to invite the Bank to provide further advice to me before making any decision to add DTIs to the Reserve Bank’s toolkit. 

I am also requesting advice from the Reserve Bank on interest-only mortgages

57 As part of the Treasury’s advice to me on housing affordability, it has also noted that a high proportion of residential property lending to investors is interest-only (i.e. no repayments of the principal over the mortgage period). Interest-only mortgages comprise over 40% of new investor lending, compared to just over 20% for owner-occupiers. Interest-only mortgages – combined with interest payment being tax deductible – appear to be an enabler of speculative investment in housing. 

58 Given this, I also intend to invite the Reserve Bank to provide advice to me on the extent to which interest-only mortgages, (particularly to investors) pose risks to the Reserve Bank’s objectives of financial soundness and efficiency, and whether restrictions on interest-only mortgages may support the Government housing policy objectives. 

Implementation 

59 I intend for the replacement remit for the Monetary Policy Committee to be in place in time for the MPC’s regular monetary policy announcement on 14 April 2021 (this means that the MPC will make its next decision under the existing remit, at its 24 February Monetary Policy Statement).   

60 I will issue the section 68B direction by providing a signed written statement to the Reserve Bank. As soon as practicable after the direction has been transmitted, I will present this to Parliament and publish this in the Gazette. 

61 I will separately write to the Reserve Bank seeking further advice on DTIs and interest-only mortgages.	

Financial Implications

62 There are no financial implications associated with this paper. 

Legislative Implications

63 The remit for the Monetary Policy Committee cannot be amended before its expiry however it can be replaced by Order in Council, on the advice of the Minister of Finance. I intend to provide an Order in Council to Cabinet for submission to the Executive Council.

Regulatory Impact Statement

64 For the issuance of a section 68B direction, the regulatory impact analysis requirements do not apply, and a regulatory impact statement has not been prepared. 

65 For the replacement remit, tThe Regulatory Impact Analysis Team at the Treasury has determined that the regulatory proposal in this paper is exempt from the requirement to provide a Regulatory Impact Statement on the basis that it has no or minor impacts on businesses, individuals or not for profit entities. 

 Population Implications 

66 The following population groups are likely to be particularly affected by the proposals in this paper: 

66.1 To the extent that the policy proposals within this paper place upward pressure on rents, this appears more likely to disproportionately impact Māori and Pacific people, who are less likely to own their home (or hold it in a trust) than other ethnic groups. At the time of the 2013 Census, 56.9% of Māori and 66.9% of Pacific people were living in rental homes, compared to the total population figure of 36.3% (this data is not yet available from the 2018 Census). Government is taking other measures to improve housing for Māori and Pacific, including through Progressive Home Ownership, MAIHI partnerships and our Public Housing build programme. In addition, as around 43% of children are living in rental accommodation, upward pressure on rents could have negative impacts on child wellbeing and child poverty.

66.2 To the extent that the proposals benefit new entrants to the housing market, this appears more likely to benefit middle- to higher- income earners. Evidence from the 2018 General Social Survey suggests that, among people moving from rental properties into owner-occupied housing, those with higher personal incomes ($70,001 or more per year) were significantly more likely to have moved into their own home. Māori and Pacific people were significantly less likely to have moved into their own home than Pākehā.

66.3 Given that declining home ownership rates have been sharper amongst younger people, upward pressure on rental prices risks particularly burdening this group. Balanced against this is the potential for increased affordability for first home buyers, including amongst young people.

67 As noted above, the magnitude of the effect of the two tax measures on property and rent prices is uncertain. Accordingly, the size of the impact on population groups described above is also uncertain.  

68 To the extent that the proposals may encourage the Reserve Bank to consider investors and first-home buyers differently in achieving its financial stability mandate, there may be some marginal benefits to owner-occupier borrowers relative to investors in the housing market. Reducing investor demand for housing may decrease the future supply of rental properties, as fewer investors decide to opt in to the market. This could place pressure on rental properties and rental prices, disproportionately affecting groups that rent more relative to the whole population, for example, young people, Maori, Pacifica people, low-income earners and beneficiaries. 	Comment by Daniel Cruden [TSY]: Comment from office: align this wording with the similar wording in the demand side measures paper

69 The population implications of potentially increasing rents are described further in the companion Cabinet paper, ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth’. That paper also notes plans for agencies to monitor and report on the impacts of the Government’s demand-side interventions in the housing market. If necessary, officials will assess whether further interventions may be warranted.

Human Rights

70 There are no human rights implications raised by the proposals in this paper. 

Consultation

71 The Reserve Bank of New Zealand has been consulted on this paper, the draft direction and the proposal to seek a replacement remit. The Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet has been informed.

Communications

72 Subject to Cabinet and Executive Council agreement, I intend to announce the proposals before the end of February, alongside the announcement of the measures contained in the companion paper ‘Demand-side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth.’ As housing affordability is of high public concern, any new measures will be of considerable media and stakeholder interest. My intention is to announce the proposals on 24 February. 

Proactive Release

73 I propose to proactively release this Cabinet paper following public announcement of these proposals. 

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

4.2 In the short to medium-term, support more sustainable affordable house prices by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock, while creating additionalwhich would opportunities for first-home buyers.

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

11.1 [bookmark: _Hlk63945511]Option 1: “To support more sustainable affordable house prices” (Reserve Bank preferred)

11.2 Option 2: “To support more sustainable affordable house prices, including by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock in order towhich would allow more opportunities for first-home buyers” (Treasury and Minister of Finance preferred)

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

18 note that, subject to Cabinet and Executive Council agreement next week, I intend to announce these proposals on 24before the end of February, and

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
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The Reserve Bank has a strong preference for the direction to refer to ‘sustainable’ house prices.

Sustainability is well linked to its financial stability mandate, where deviations from fair value

suggest growing risks of future house price correction. The Bank considers that it is also an easier

concept for the Bank to assess and build a modelling framework around. The Bank has noted

that in contrast affordability is not a well-defined concept and is open to significant differences

in interpretation. For example, all homes are affordable to those who/have bought the%
Bank’s wew/pjis wo

t0 the Ba k’sx{bhgy,

not clear whose affordability the Bank would be having regard tos
lead to significantly less clarity as to how to incorporate the dire

While the Bank would prefer not to have the referen ép\affordablhty in the>
has suggested that if the Minister wishes to incorp thisin the dlr/ectr@\f could be done by

\\

“support more sustainable house prices, in ] ydampeni demand for existing
housing stock which would improve affo "E‘bjjgy r first-ho

%uxe

Conclusion :w

Affordability and sustamabllltét;\\é}{h challeng| @m{e s to define and require judgements.

However, the Treasury’s vié itis |mpo/rta the government policy objective relates

Q\, that the objective be specified directly in

s9(2)(h)
policy objective

e direction captures the Government’s broader
ill need to have regard to the objective but they
ill need to communicate how they have had regard

Happy to d|scus§ nﬁ/ed anything urgently, am available on my personal mobile:

s9(2)(9)(ii)

Daniel Cruden (he/him) | Senior Analyst | Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | Te Tai Ohanga —
The Treasury

Tel: s9(2)(k) | Email/IM: daniel.cruden@treasury.govt.nz

Visit us online at https://treasury.govt.nz/ and follow us on Twitter, LinkedIn and Instagram


mailto:daniel.cruden@treasury.govt.nz
https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftreasury.govt.nz%2F&data=02%7C01%7CDenise.Sheehan%40hud.govt.nz%7C3a28f5dd38084ec7d5e608d853b3b105%7C9e9b30203d3848a69064373bc7b156dc%7C1%7C0%7C637351378540409643&sdata=N1dSyQ%2B%2FdOtWCybWl5uXq5rXpC%2By%2BM2NguK%2Foi1zCeM%3D&reserved=0
https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.twitter.com%2Fnztreasury&data=02%7C01%7CDenise.Sheehan%40hud.govt.nz%7C3a28f5dd38084ec7d5e608d853b3b105%7C9e9b30203d3848a69064373bc7b156dc%7C1%7C0%7C637351378540409643&sdata=OKvBlQDbzpBlkzn6%2FLvwMYbpfi69phjPOPhT%2F92aGIs%3D&reserved=0
https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2F576138%2F&data=02%7C01%7CDenise.Sheehan%40hud.govt.nz%7C3a28f5dd38084ec7d5e608d853b3b105%7C9e9b30203d3848a69064373bc7b156dc%7C1%7C0%7C637351378540419636&sdata=HGeafrFDx158jLuRlht%2F4WltWJjOvuW4UkNKpgJg1y8%3D&reserved=0
https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fnztreasury%2F&data=02%7C01%7CDenise.Sheehan%40hud.govt.nz%7C3a28f5dd38084ec7d5e608d853b3b105%7C9e9b30203d3848a69064373bc7b156dc%7C1%7C0%7C637351378540419636&sdata=Z2xYscpeU0i%2FIilOpgU2Q0lrb1lBYOVdhHBkDqxflmo%3D&reserved=0
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From: Mario DiMaio [TSY]

Sent: Friday, 12 February 2021 2:51 pm

To: Chris Bloor; Ben Thirkell-White

Cc: Daniel Cruden [TSY]; Leona Feng [TSY]; ARBNZ: Toby Fiennes

Subject: RE: Draft email: Tsy and RBNZ feedback on s68B wording i%
Hi Chris (\
i é 7/

We will send the paper when it has been lodge — should be shortly \5\/

Mario

From: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz> ‘

Sent: Friday, 12 February 2021 2:01 PM \ ' }

To: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>; en Thwkell% n.Thirkell-White@rbnz.govt.nz>
ovt.nz>; Leona Feng Q:SYJ eona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>;

ARBNZ: Toby Fiennes <Toby.Fiennes@rbnz.govt. \5
%n s68B wordi

Subject: RE: Draft email: Tsy and RBNZ feedb
ke one other wording change to clarify our

Hi Mario, happy with that wording cha W e\also just w téd f@
concerns around ambiguity of the affordabili dlrectlor}/ )
\\ _J /
the dlrection to refer to ‘sustainable’ house prices.
\ ty mandate, where deviations from fair value suggest
ction. The Reserve Bank considers that it is also an easier
ing framework around. The Reserve Bank has noted that in

ell-defined concept and is open to significant differences in
%:\1{?3? reductions in interest rates can improve short-term

worsen long-run house price sustainability if this results in an

% serve Bank’s view, this would lead to significantly less clarity as to
ction

e price
into its policy decision making, which could ultimately weaken the
w{f he Reserve Bank’s view is also that Option 1, unlike Options 2 and 3,

uce the risk of unrealistic expectations about the ability of the Reserve Bank to
of the housing market. The Bank considers that Option 1 is a more

2 While th%ga k would prefer not to have the reference to affordability in the direction itself, it has
suggested-that it could be incorporated in the direction by including it at the end of the sentence, for
example: “support more sustainable house prices, including by dampening investor demand for
existing housing stock which would improve affordability for first-home buyers”

Cheers,
Chris

From: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 12 February 2021 1:52 PM

To: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Ben Thirkell-White <Ben.Thirkell-White@rbnz.govt.nz>

Cc: Daniel Cruden [TSY] <Daniel.Cruden@treasury.govt.nz>; Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Draft email: Tsy and RBNZ feedback on s68B wording

Hi Chris
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Thanks you for your help and patience. Not exactly. The full text of the RB section is copied below. The change we
are suggesting is in yellow.

Mario

Sustainability is well linked to its financial stability mandate, where‘déeviations from fair value suggest
growing risks of future house price correction. The Reserve Bal iders that it is easier
concept for it to assess and build a modelling framework aro e Reserve Bank has noted that in
contrast ‘affordability’ is not a well-defined concept and is o ificant di ef&r] es in
interpretation. For example, all homes are affordable to t ave boug N;Iaérjj; it is not clear
whose affordability the Bank would be having regard to. In'th serve Bank’s \ﬂ\?\/ this would lead
to significantly less clarity as to how to incorporate the direction into its E,o,; decision making, which

1 The Reserve Bank has a strong preference for the direction to refer to ‘sustainable’ hoze prices.
I

n. The Reserve Bank’s view is also that

Option 1, unlike Options 2 and 3, would re e the ris ﬁﬁ Lg]e tic expectations about
tors of the.h % ing market. The Bank

the ability of the Reserve Bank to target specific *

considers that Option 1 is a more enduring r. i , r levant in future
circumstances where there was a desire t r ing demand from both owner occupiers and
investors. -

2 While the Bank would prefer not to l@e -t bility in the direction itself, it has
suggested that it could be incorporated.in the directi ding it at the end of the sentence, for

example: “support more sustai a%{nouse price@\ by dampening investor demand for
existing housing stock which weuld improve affordability for first-home buyers”
(N
D )
N

x\\(/;\\
From: Chris Bloor <Chris.BIoéF@{B%fzféévt.nD
Sent: Friday, 12 February 2021 1:47 PM
To: Mario DiMaio [TSY]@;;&D;Maio@tre@r\(,\ovt.np; Ben Thirkell-White <Ben.Thirkell-White@rbnz.govt.nz>
Cc: Daniel Cruden [TSY] < %(JCruden@treasMovt.nz>; Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>
$ on s68B wording

e, with no\o\n\e €lse’in the office right now.
=/

Just to clarify, are you S eplacing this paragraph with the words below?

This has fallen

1 The Reserve has a strong preference for Option 1 because it considers this provides the most
achievak(i@jéctive for the Reserve Bank, as sustainable house prices are consistent with its
financial s bHﬁy mandate. Like Options 2 and 3, it would require the Bank to have regard to whether
its financial policies could bring house prices closer to ‘fair value’, including if overvaluation were
caused by investor speculation. The Reserve Bank’s view is that unlike Options 2 and 3, it would not
create unrealistic expectations about the ability of the Reserve Bank to target specific subsectors of
the housing market. The Reserve Bank thinks that Option 1 is also a more enduring requirement, as
it would be relevant in future circumstances where there was a desire to bolster housing demand
from both owner-occupiers and investors.

Will revert shortly.

Cheers,
Chris



20210066 TOIA Binder Page 139 of 169
Doc 35

From: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 12 February 2021 1:30 PM

To: Ben Thirkell-White <Ben.Thirkell-White@rbnz.govt.nz>; Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>

Cc: Daniel Cruden [TSY] <Daniel.Cruden@treasury.govt.nz>; Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Draft email: Tsy and RBNZ feedback on s68B wording

Hi Ben

| just chatted to Toby on this and he asked me to send this through. The sugges gn the RBEZ(meWSQto move

from a binary statement to a risk based statement. The suggestion we . Ithink T as keen to have
your eyes on this as well. We have about 20 minutes at this end before the paper goes.

Regards Y %
Mario Q -

1 Option 1, unlike Options 2 and 3, would reduc x%f un %;ﬁ%ctations about the ability of

r
the Reserve Bank to target specific subsect e housin ket.'The Bank considers that
Option 1 is a more enduring requireme i Id be relevantin future circumstances where there
was a desire to bolster housing dema both owner occupiers and investors.

From: Ben Thirkell-White <Ben.ThirkeJL—@@rbnz.govt.n Q b

Sent: Thursday, 11 February 2021 4
To: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@trea .govt.nz>; Wor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Cavan O'Connor-
Close <Cavan.O'Connor-C|ose@‘@H//zg\ov%D; Micha ornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; ARBNZ: Toby
Fiennes <Toby.Fiennes@rbnz.govt.Az>’

Cc: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Nei|.|§idd\@\§ea@rv.govt.n

[TSY] <Dasha.Leonova @ﬁr@éﬁu&kovt.nzx i

[TSY] <Daniel.Cruden@t%as%yfgovt.np

Subject: RE: Drw and RBNZW on s68B wording
Hi Leona,
o1 %; ;

ghes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova
aio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>; Daniel Cruden

—

| think that acc ely reflect Kmefés rve Bank view, thanks.

Just to re-confirm, if t continues to prefer the affordability wording, we’d appreciate having the same

wording about Rese references in what ultimately goes to Cabinet.
Thanks a lot /\\
s )

From: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 11 February 2021 4:47 PM

To: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Cavan O'Connor-Close <Cavan.O'Connor-Close@rbnz.govt.nz>; Michael
Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Ben Thirkell-White <Ben.Thirkell-White@rbnz.govt.nz>

Cc: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova
[TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>; Daniel Cruden
[TSY] <Daniel.Cruden@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: Draft email: Tsy and RBNZ feedback on s68B wording

Hi all
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Please see our draft email to Natalie below for information — we will be sending this to Natalie at 5pm. If any
inaccuracies please let me know asap.

DRAFT EMAIL

This email responds to the Minister’s question whether the word ‘affordable’ could be used rather than ‘sustainable’
in the section 68B government policy direction to the Reserve Bank.

s9(2)(h)

Reserve Bank views

~ O\
The Reserve Bank has a strong preferenc %i}v‘t\‘ e direction t
well linked to its financial stability manhdate, where deviétibm}f fair value suggest growing risks of future house
price correction. The Bank consicdé};t at' it’is also an‘e §ig\rfc“iy1‘cept for the Bank to assess and build a modelling
framework around. The Bank\hasfnejc‘e d that in co affordability is not a well-defined concept and is open to
significant differences in int(_{[ggé‘tai}oﬁ In theipview, this'would lead to significantly less clarity as to how to
incorporate the directio o\t@Bank's por%sio making, which could ultimately weaken the effectiveness of

the direction.

While the Bank
the Minister wish

Uilg-prere

r not to?g\\%?(erence to affordability in the direction itself, it has suggested that if

to/incorporate QI%I/nt/ direction, it could be done by including it at the end of the sentence,

eiou\VSej/r\ices, including by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock which

would improve affordabiti first-home buyers”
Conclusion %
R

Affordability ar)tf/s s ‘ ility are both challenging concepts to define and require judgements. However, the
Treasury’s view\ithéyit is important that the government policy objective relate to financial stability but we do not
think it is necessary that the objective be specified directly in term of financial stability concepts. sg(@)(h)

s9(2)(h) Therefore our preference is that the direction captures the
Government’s broader policy objective accurately. The Reserve Bank will need to have regard to the objective but
they are not accountable for delivering it — they will need to communicate how they have had regard to it which
would help to manage expectation to what they can achieve. Alternatively, if the Minster considers the RBNZ
suggestion accurately reflects government policy then this could be presented as the revised Option 2.

From: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 11 February 2021 2:54 pm

To: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Cavan O'Connor-
Close <Cavan.Q'Connor-Close@rbnz.govt.nz>; Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>

Cc: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova

4
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[TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Seeking RBNZ feedback on s68B wording
Thanks Chris
We will include the text that makes that clears9(2)(g)()
Regards,
Mario @
From: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 11 February 2021 2:49 PM
To: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>; Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.€g\ng@tr asury.govt.nz>;
Cavan O'Connor-Close <Cavan.0O'Connor-Close@rbnz.govt.nz> hael;Thornley < ick{aei}hornIev@rbnz.govt.nz>
Cc: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Elle Hug IIe.Hughmssu}v.govt.np; Dasha Leonova

[TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz> w
Subject: RE: Seeking RBNZ feedback on s68B wording @ %
Thanks Mario, % >

s9(2)(9)(i)

We’'ll await feedback from the I\/h@ s office. @
\\
Cheers, \\@
Chris
io.DiMaio@tr%v

From: Mario DiMaio JTSY}< .govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 1 w, 021 2:44

To: Chris Bloor <Chris:Blegr@rbnz.gévt:nz ona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Cavan O'Connor-

Close <Cavan Close@r z&?g&z Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>
eil.Kidd@H&k ovt.nz>; Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova

Cc: Neil Kid [%
[TSY] <Dasha.L ova@treas{un@{gov\c\.ﬁp

Subject: RE: Seeking RBN on s68B wording

Hi Chris

Thank you for tm rnaround. The intention at this end is to go back informally to the Minister this afternoon
responding to t@e tion on S68B. This note will reflect the RBNZ advice below on its preference and the
suggested alternative' wording. Once we have his feedback (we are also waiting more) we will incorporate it into the
Cab paper before lodging tomorrow.

Regards,
Mario

From: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 11 February 2021 2:21 PM

To: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>; Cavan O'Connor-Close <Cavan.O'Connor-
Close@rbnz.govt.nz>; Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>

Cc: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Elle
Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Seeking RBNZ feedback on s68B wording
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Hi Leona,
I've consulted on the affordability language, s9(2)(a)(i)

We have a strong preference for the s68b direction to be to support sustainable house prices. Sustainability is well
linked to our financial stability mandate, where deviations from fair value suggest growing risks of future house
price correction. It is also an easier concept for us to assess and build a modelling framework aroundxIn contrast
affordability is not a well-defined concept and is open to significant difference interpretation. ould lead to
significantly less clarity as to how to incorporate the direction into our policy de making, which ¢
ultimately weaken the effectiveness of the direction. @j

ordable into the-objéctive, it would be

One suggestion that may be helpful — if the Minister wishes to incor@
acceptable to include it at the end of the sentence. For example:

What is the approach from here? Are you going to g
does this get incorporated into cabinet paper?

Cheers,
Chris

From: Chris Bloor

Sent: Thursday, 11 February 2021

To: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Fe ry.govt.n% an 0'Connor-Close <Cavan.0O'Connor-
Close@rbnz.govt.nz>; Micha %@ <Michae@m ey@rbnz.govt.nz>
Cc: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Ma§é%aio@treasdﬁ%ﬁm\z§; Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Elle
Hughes [TSY] <E|Ie.HugI;ré5/@tr¥xa§urv.govt.n s eonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: Seeking RBNZ@ack on s68B wording

We can getsom miments to % fternoon. Our initial reaction is that affordable is much more difficult for us

- Affordable is'very mu% e of the beholder, and is a fairly nebulous concept. And whose affordability

Hi Leona,

ut?
narids in which house prices are sustainable, but may not meet some people’s
expectations of affordability.
i closer to our financial stability mandate, where our concern relates to excessive volatility in
dability will really be driven by other demand and supply side based policies.

Will revert with a more considered answer later this afternoon.

Cheers,
Chris

From: Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday, 11 February 2021 11:27 AM

To: Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>; Cavan O'Connor-Close <Cavan.O'Connor-Close@rbnz.govt.nz>; Michael
Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>

Cc: Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Elle
Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: Seeking RBNZ feedback on s68B wording
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Hi all

Just touching base on the initial feedback on the draft Cabinet paper from the Minister below. The Minister is
seeking feedback on changing the wording of the proposed policy direction to:

“support more affordable house prices, including by dampening investor de r existing ho tock [in order
to] / [which would] allow more opportunities for first-home buyers” 7
‘ )

|
s9(2)(h) § § :
in the meantime we wanted to get the Reserve Bank’s feedback on ding, whethery Fs ilhave a strong

preference for the word ‘sustainable’, and any concerns. A para ap{;w this that we Id include in the Cab paper

‘\\\‘

\

{

would be useful.s9@2)(h) QO

\

ged tomorrow, so any
eframes again.

We are still working towards a Cabinet paper for Mon
feedback by this afternoon would be much apprecia

Kind regards

uebs TE TAIOHANGA . oL
& THE TREASUR Q R ~

Leona Feng | Senior Analyst, Fil{ih%/@\ rkets | i.-Ohanga — The Treasury
Tel: +64 4 890 7230 | Email//W: Leona, Feng@tredsury.govt.nz

From: Natalie Lab 2 Natalie.La@schagne@parliament.govt.nz>

Sent: Thursday( 1

February 2021 1%{%%/
To: Neil Kidd[TSY i .Kidd@tw.np
Cc: Renee é {fSYT«enee.;phiﬂ sury.govt.nz>; Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Daniel
Cruden [TSY] < ieI.Cruden@@ea‘suw.govt.np; Adam Antao [TSY] <adam.antao@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha
Leonova [TSY] <Dasha.Le&ﬁ&a\@ﬂﬁésurv.govt.np; Sam Thornton [TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>; Leona
Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng/@/tre>su\w.govt.nz>; Mario DiMaio [TSY] <Mario.DiMaio@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: TSY Bag sury report T2021/241; Housing policy and the Reserve Bank: Draft Cabinet Paper & Draft
Cabinet Paper; Housingpolicy and the Reserve Bank

S
i \ )
Morning, \\:/
The Minister will provide some feedback on the cabinet paper later today — this is not expected to result in major
changes. In the interim, the MoF has provided the following feedback:

On Government’s Option 2: whether the word “affordable” rather than “sustainable” could be used.
s9(2)(h)

Next steps: | have alerted CabOffice that the paper will be lodged late (by 5pm tomorrow, but hopefully earlier).

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

T:s9@)k) | M:sg@y @i
E: natalie.labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz

The information contained in this email is privileged and confidential and intended for the .addresse . intended
recipient, you are asked to respect that confidentiality and not disclose, copy or make use n . i i ryou are

From: Yulia Gonina [TSY] [mailto:Yulia.Gonina@treasury.goyt / \
Sent: Wednesday, 10 February 2021 5:20 PM W \Qj
To: Natalie Labuschagne <Nata|ie.Labuschagne@parli%e% nz>;59)

$9(2)(g)(ii) ; Ministerial Services In o\@%{Ministeri [,Servic treasury.govt.nz>
Cc: Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.phiIip@treasury.gov\f.hg,\ENf ughes [ <I§T&}Iughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Daniel
Cruden [TSY] <Daniel.Cruden@treasury.govt.nz>; 1 Antao [TSY}<a ) tao@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil Kidd
[TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>

)
Subject: TSY Bag: Treasury report T2021/241; Ho s,Lr/g policy he Reserve Bank: Draft Cabinet Paper & Draft
Cabinet Paper; Housing policy and the es@\Bank O 2
) -
Q)

(2N N

Good afternoon 20 )

</
N

sending electronic c% 0 documents vis SEEMAIL as we have missed electronic

e Treasur 21/241; :

ou
dcopy of Treasury Rep

g'policy and the Reserve Bank: Draft Cabinet Paper
t

0

eport

> Word cop Cabinet Paper With two annexes
» PDFco raft Cabinet Paper With two annexes.

e Draft Cabinet Paper; Ng%s%\ policy and the Reserve Bank
a
D

Please let me kpo A u would like Annexes for Draft Cabinet Paper to be sent as separate PDF files.
(

Please don’t hegtate/t/o contact me if you have any questions.

Kind regards,

Yulia Gonina | Team Assistant |

Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury

Email/IM: yulia.gonina@treasury.govt.nz

Visit us online at https://treasury.govt.nz/ and follow us on Twitter, Linkedln and Instagram

4§ TE TAIl OHANGA
%¥ THE TREASURY
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
Reserve Bank of New Zealand. If the recipient has any concerns a
the content of this message they should seek alternative confirmation
from the Reserve Bank of New Zealand." T
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From: Daniel Cruden [TSY]
To: ZParliament: Natalie Labuschagne; Z~Parliment: Paul Young
Cc: Renee Philip [TSY]; Neil Kidd [TSY]; Elle Hughes [TSY]; Leona Feng [TSY]; Mario DiMaio [TSY]; Sam

Thornton [TSY]; Dasha Leonova [TSY]; Felicity Barker [TSY]; Jessica Rowe [TSY]; Michael Sherwood [TSY];
Bastiaan van der Scheer [TSY]; John Beaglehole [TSY]

Subject: Talking points for Cabinet papers on Housing
Date: Friday, 12 February 2021 3:24:00 pm
Attachments: image001.png

4416489 Speaking points for Cabinet, Monday 15 February.DOCX

A

\

Here are talking points to support the MoF for the t o Hou papers the

Hi again Natalie and Paul,

Cabinet on Monday. Sorry for the delaysending% for your ¢o patience.
Cheers, %
Daniel %

D

Daniel Cruden (he/him) |
The Treasury
Tel: s9(2)(K) \

Visit us online at h llow us on Twitter, LinkedIn and Instagram
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Speaking points for Cabinet, Monday 15 February on housing measures

Background and objectives

· You are taking two papers to Cabinet’s Monday 15 February meeting that aim to reduce demand for housing through: (i) changes to the tax treatment of housing and (ii) increased attention to housing affordability in the Reserve Bank’s monetary and financial stability policy decisions.   

Demand-Side Measures to Moderate House Price Growth

· The first measure we propose is to extend the bright-line test from five years to fifteen or twenty years for properties acquired after the announcement. 

· That will mean that investor owners of property who sell that property within twenty years would have to pay income tax on the gains that they make. 

· This proposal will not apply to investors who purchase a new build, to ensure we do not disrupt the supply of new properties.

· The paper also proposes: (i) clarifying that short-stay accommodation that is not the owner’s main home is not excluded from the bright-line rule; (ii) amending the main home exclusion for the extended period. 

· The second measure we propose is that we agree, in-principle, to deny mortgage interest deductions. That will mean that investor landlords will be able to deduct none of their interest costs from their income before they calculate income tax.

· This paper proposes two broad options for how to transition to this rule. The rule can either apply prospectively, so that interest is only denied in relation to loans drawn down after the application date, or it could be phased in so that it partially applies to existing property investors from the outset, but where the amount denied increases over time.  

· Applying the measures to existing mortgages could lead to some landlords selling their properties and tenancies being terminated.  However, if the measure is only prospective then we will create two regimes for tax in housing investments. Phasing in the measure may balance these concerns.

· There are still a number of substantive matters to determine, such as whether there should also be an exemption for new builds for this measure.

· By reducing investor demand, these measures should reduce investor demand and create additional opportunities for first-time buyers. 

· There are risks, such as the potential for upwards pressure on rents. This is why it is important that these measures are considered as one element of a broader housing package.

· We will need to consult on implementation of these measures and consequent design issues ahead of Cabinet making a final decision. 

Housing Policy and the Reserve Bank

· This paper proposes that Cabinet: 

· Authorise drafting instructions to replace the remit for the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC). The new remit would incorporate government policy objectives relating to housing affordability.

· Note my intention to issue a direction to the Reserve Bank to have regard to a government policy on housing in relation to its financial policy functions, under section 68B of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989 (‘the Act’). 

· Note my intention to invite the Bank to provide further advice about debt serviceability restrictions (i.e. debt-to-income limits) and the impact of interest-only mortgages on financial stability and Government housing objectives. 

· These changes follow my letter to the Governor on 24 November 2020 seeking his views on requiring the MPC to “seek to avoid unnecessary instability” in house prices through the remit. 

· Taken together, officials expect that these changes will have a modest impact on housing affordability. My proposals elevate the prominence the Bank and MPC give to housing affordability.  

· I am not changing anything regarding the Bank’s primary objectives of maintaining a sound and efficient financial system, and price stability and maximum sustainable employment in conducting monetary policy. These changes are about elevating the prominence that the Bank and the MPC will give to housing affordability when pursuing those primary goals. 

Monetary policy remit

· Treasury and Reserve Bank officials jointly recommended that a new remit be established that: 

· sets the expectation that the MPC comprehensively understands the effects its decisions have on the Government’s housing objective, while it is pursuing its economic objectives of price stability and maximum sustainable employment, and

· provides transparency and assurance about how the MPC understands these effects.

· Officials expect this would achieve a similar outcome to the wording I originally suggested to the Governor in November. The MPC would retain autonomy over whether and how its monetary policy decisions take account of potential housing consequences. At the margin, the MPC’s assessment of likely housing consequences may impact the mix of traditional and alternative tools it deploys.  

· I will report back to Cabinet next week (on Monday 22 February) to seek endorsement of the final Order in Council.

· I propose that the replacement remit would expire on the same date that the current remit is due to expire (14 February 2024), so that the five-yearly full review of the remit can be undertaken by the Bank as planned.

Section 68B direction

· I intend to issue a direction to the Bank under section 68B of the RBNZ Act that it must have regard to the Government’s housing policy objectives in relation to its financial policy functions. 



· I propose the relevant Government housing policy objective is “to support more affordable house prices, including by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock which would allow more opportunities for first-home buyers”. 



· I consider that Option 2 best captures the Government’s concerns about the housing market and the role of the Reserve Bank in relation to the complex drivers of the housing market, while also meeting the legislative requirements set out in the Act. 

· The paper also analyses an option that that the relevant Government policy is “to support more sustainable” house prices. This was preferred by the Reserve Bank because it considers that sustainability is more closely linked to its financial stability mandate and reduces the risk or unrealistic expectations about the impact on housing affordability.  



· Affordability and sustainability are both challenging concepts to define and require judgement. In my view it is important that the direction captures the Government’s broader policy objective accurately. Once issued, it is then up to the Reserve Bank to have regard to the policy in a way consistent with its financial stability mandate.  



· The change is likely to influence the way in which financial policy is implemented, which could assist first home buyers. For example, it might lead to the Bank considering how it could undertake its financial policy functions without coming at the expense of first-home buyers, and how its policies might bring house prices closer to their fair value if overvaluation were caused by investor speculation.




Debt serviceability restrictions and interest-only mortgages

· [bookmark: _GoBack]I am also inviting the Bank to provide further advice on whether debt-to-income limits (DTIs) should be added to the Bank’s macroprudential toolkit in response to the request in the Governor’s letter of 9 December. 

· I also intend to request advice from the Bank on whether there are any stability risks associated with interest only mortgages, and whether any restrictions may also take into account any government policy direction issued under section 68B.
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IN-CONFIDENCE

Speaking points for Cabinet, Monday 15 February on housing measures

Background and objectives

e You are taking two papers to Cabinet's Monday 15 February meetin

Bank’s monetary and financial stability policy d lecisions

Treasury:4416489v1 IN-CONFIDENCE 1
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Housing Policy and the Reserve Bank

e This paper proposes that Cabinet:
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e Officials expect this would achieve a similar outcome to the wording |
originally suggested to the Governor in November. The MPC would retain
autonomy over whether and how its monetary policy decisions take account
of potential housing consequences. At the margin, the MPC’s assessment of
likely housing consequences may impact the mix of traditional and
alternative tools it deploys.
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I will report back to Cabinet next week (on Monday 22 February) to seek
endorsement of the final Order in Council.
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Debt serviceability restrictions and interest-only mortgages

e | am also inviting the Bank to provide further advice on whether debt-to-
income limits (DTIs) should be added to the Bank’s macroprudential toolkit

in response to the request in the Governor's letter of 9, December.
e | also intend to request advice from the Bank on w re are any

stability risks associated with interest only mortg whether any
restrictions may also take into account any go olicy direction_~
issued under section 68B. \5\7
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From: Elle Hughes [TSY]

Sent: Monday, 15 February 2021 11:13 am
To: Michael Thornley; Chris Bloor

Cc: Neil Kidd [TSY]; Daniel Cruden [TSY]

Subject: RE: Replacement charter?
7 i>

Roger that, thanks Mike — we’ll include the MPC’s views are our advice i vering report @ext cab paper

(which we’re expecting to send across tomorrow afternoon). j §
Elle -
R -
Q )
From: Michael Thornley <MichaeI.ThornIey@rbnz.govt.nz% /®

Sent: Monday, 15 February 2021 9:45 am

To: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz> C@B\l r <Chris. %\@Fm.govt.np
Subject: Replacement charter? %

Hi Elle — your email below was quite prescien@? fully it’s just.le ockdown for us!

)
| was reading the Act the other day (as you-do) and-noticed t 3F(2) “The Minister and the MPC must
consider whether it is necessary or desk a@}\: issue a repl cébné\ﬁt7 arter when a new remit is to be issued by the
Minister.” [FYI- Schedule 2 s6 allow Minister to replac exemit or issue a new remit. | understand that this is

a
a replacement of the remit (not%ny? ). But our | gice is that the MPC should still consider whether the

charter should be replaced.] R
)
c/ . . .
A oquickly sult them this and will email their views across today.

The MPC are meeting this

Cheers

o,

From: Elle H %F <Elle.Hugh¢ ury.govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday,

bruary 2, 20/24}.\5%@@
To: Michael Thornley <Michael(Thornl€y@rbnz.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Consultatio Ws - joint report on RB housing objectives

Superb, and yes! Re Ik will be there. See you level 3 —advanced apologies for squishy room booking.

From: Michael {@E Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, E\F\ Ldary 2021 2:50 pm

To: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: Consultation timeframes - joint report on RB housing objectives

Hi Elle — just to confirm that Chris, Cavan and | will head over to TSY at 3:30. Useful if you can bring along the key
people at your end (if they are free).

See you soon ©

From: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>
Sent: Monday, February 1, 2021 11:35 AM
To: Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Chris Parker [TSY] <Chris.Parker@treasury.govt.nz>; John
Beaglehole [TSY] <John.Beaglehole @treasury.govt.nz>; Michael Thornley <Michael.Thornley@rbnz.govt.nz>; Chris
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

This email provides a heads up on our intended timelines for consulting y %?pcoming/joipt r ton
y

requiring the Bank to have regard to house prices, due with the Minister, . As you ‘ngqvjthe report will
provide follow-up advice on options to issue a s68b direction, and opti nd the r \it\t\:sur{port the

Government’s housing objectives.

On timelines, we’re planning for —

ii. 12pm Tuesday — receive working-level co
iii. COP Tuesday — circulate a revised draft

Chris).

iv. 12pm Wednesday — receive SLT-lev

% COP Wednesday — circulate for Tfeasury r
Bank visibility. _/

Vi. Thursday — to Minister, fin K?l‘gn circulate f .'Q\L\
\% ) i \\]
Please let us know if that doesn’t | ble, or if ‘6@@\ ny others we should also be include in circulation

rounds. Yo
)
Best, g\g/
Elle
peb s TE T \%7
L] L T ~
Elle Hughes | | Policy | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury

/ 7
roeconomic %
| Emaif>Elle:Hughes@treasury.govt.nz

Tel: s92)(k)

CONFIDENTIALITY N E
. w\g

(

\ \‘ )

The information in thi ,fu;r‘n/ail is confidential to the Treasury, intended only for the addressee(s), and may also be legally privileged. If you
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

To: Bryan Chapple [TSY]; Caralee McLiesh [TSY]

Cc: Ben Gaukrodger [TSY]; Dasha Leonova [TSY]; James Beard [TSY]; Renee Philip [TSY]; Matthew Galt [TSY];
Sam Thornton [TSY]; Leona Feng [TSY.

Subject: RE: Treasury Report: requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices

Date: Friday, 15 January 2021 8:51:47 am

Hi Bryan,

Sorry but | think there has been an imanage issue — the attached
round take you to the right version but the link in the body
version. | think the up to date version deals with your first ‘Il go through an% k/up the
other two)... this is the relevant bit of the executive su mry Evéryone elsé.—maybe read the
attached version that | sent out yesterday rather th t@e |rﬂ§> (at least thi one in the body of the

email anyway). e

o @ &%\\//

We consider that there is more using objectives by
issuing a section 68B directio financial policy remit.

he attachid;\nﬂ sent

mail takes yod ti

Compared with monetary policy, there |sﬂess conﬂ financial policy objectives and
your broader objectives aro héh 1d house prices. The objectives are more
likely to complement eac ilst it is still unclear how much of an impact
a secondary, “have reggf@?t Uiremen J?()/e on Bank decision making, there is the
potential that a house ]@Uc qwremen encourage the Bank to go further in using some
of their financial p than th m considering housing as solely a financial
stability issue.

To progres this we recomm at you issue a direction under section 68B of the

nk Act. Th you to direct the Bank to have regard to a government
en ormulat| pollcy An alternative would be to consult the Bank on a

cia po||cy re would only come into force after the passage of the Reserve

-
From: B\p\(@w Chapple [TSY] <Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, 15 January 2021 8:26 AM
To: Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>; Caralee McLiesh [TSY]
<Caralee.MclLiesh@treasury.govt.nz>
Cc: Ben Gaukrodger [TSY] <Ben.Gaukrodger@treasury.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY]
<Dasha.Leonova@treasury.govt.nz>; James Beard [TSY] <James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee
Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Matthew Galt [TSY]
<Matthew.Galt@treasury.govt.nz>; Sam Thornton [TSY] <Sam.Thornton@treasury.govt.nz>;
Leona Feng [TSY] <Leona.Feng@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Treasury Report: requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices

Thanks Neil,


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
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This is looking good.

A few relatively minor comments:
- lthink we should be a bit more positive about a directive. Eg. We could say that if you
wish to take action now, we recommend issuing a directive under 68B, and noting that
this could then be replaced by the financial policy remit when the new legislation ceames

into force. That could go into the recs as well as the body. oment, it ap&
an afterthought. 7

- The points about how these get interpreted relative Objectives a rrect.
| just wonder whether it’s worth also noting that thi isted in

Caralee and | are in training all mornin
please don’t send the note across unle

Cheers
Bryan

.govt.nz>; Bryan Chapple [TSY]

.govt.nz>; Dasha Leonova [TSY]
Yeonova@treasur . ames Beard [TSY] <James.Beard@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee
D D@

%@YM‘. fgovt.nz>; Matthew Galt [TSY]
JatthewGalt @treasiiry.govt A5

N
S

Here is a further version of the TR on requiring the Bank to have regard to house prices: Treasury
Report: Requiring the Reserve Bank to have regard to house prices.doc

I've spoken to Natalie and she has said that Monday is an option if we need longer to further
consult the Governor, but she would prefer it if we can get it over tomorrow.

I've incorporated the comments received via Ben G —namely to put the option of adding house
prices to the financial policy remit up front, to adopt the language you identified from the RB
letter on the impact of adding house prices to the monetary policy remit, and to set out our
preferences on the specific options being canvassed on the monetary policy remit. | have
rejigged the executive summary to bring the financial policy remit option first but I've kept the


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
https://portia.hamlet.treasury.govt.nz/work/link/d/iManage!4402242.3
https://portia.hamlet.treasury.govt.nz/work/link/d/iManage!4402242.3
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original structure in the body — this is because discussing how there is a potential conflict
between house prices and monetary policy sets up the discussion about how financial policy
provides a better option. Finally, I've made the option to issue a direction under section 68B
more prominent, as well as to begin the process of drafting a financial policy remit, as | don’t
think there is a strong argument not to do a section 68B if we think this is a good idea — it
achieves a similar thing to the financial policy remit, so why wait for the Act to pass? This was
also identified as a possibility in the RB’s response letter.

Comments welcome, @
Neil &

From: Neil Kidd [TSY] O

Sent: Wednesday, 13 January 2021 9:29 PM Q

To: Caralee McLiesh [TSY] <Caralee.Mcliesh

<Bryan.Chapple@treasury.govt.nz>

Hi Caralee, Brya

For your comme lease see attmm that we are proposing to send to MoF on Friday wrt

adding nt to havo house prices into the monetary policy and financial
S < ; }
| understand that discussed with the Governor and that you are meeting with the

Governor tomor e might need to set out our views on some additional specific options
in this TR foll . We'd be grateful for a readout from that if there are things that we
need to ad

Than
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

To: Elle Hughes [TSY

Cc: Daniel Cruden [TSY]; Renee Philip [TSY.

Subject: RE: TSY Bag: Treasury Report T2021/295; Replacement remit for the Monetary Policy Committee & Draft Cabinet
Paper; Reserve Bank of New Zealand (Replacement of Remit for Monetary Policy Committee) Order 2021

Date: Wednesday, 17 February 2021 4:04:00 pm

Attachments: im 1.
image002.png

Yes please. Talking points by Friday lunch would be great — thanks. S
o _ \ \h_ﬁ
| have checked in with comms team re announcements and will le hen | he \a\}nkt‘ ﬂg‘.
N

Natalie Labuschagne | Economic Advisor
Office of Hon Grant Robertson
Minister of Finance

B .

—

»Wellington 6}69;%\/\
the addressee only. If you are not

The information contained in this email is privileg nd_confi i
the intended recipient, you are asked to resp% identiali copy or make use of its contents.

Level 7.6 Executive Wing, Parliament Buildings, P,
T s9(2)(k) | M: sQ(Z)(g)(ii)

E: natalie.labuschagne@parliament.govt.n %\

If received in error you are asked to destroy thi nd contact the iately. Your assistance is
appreciated.

C
1
)
/ i
\

Q)

rliament.govt.nz>
.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY]

From: Elle Hughes [TSY] {@YQ.\ ‘Hughes
Sent: Wednesday, 17 e&a? 021 4:00 P

To: Natalie Labuscha r‘r§><N alie.Labusghag
SYh<Daniel.Crud east

ag:Treasury Réport T2021/295; Replacement remit for the Monetary Policy
t Cabinet Paper; Reserve Bank of New Zealand (Replacement of Remit for Monetary
A

ing points for Cabinet on Monday? If so, let us know when you’ll need them
ed if there’s anything else you need from us to support announcements etc.

From: NatalgLabuschagne <Natalie.Labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, 17 February 2021 3:47 pm

To: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Yulia Gonina [TSY]
<Yulia.Gonina@treasury.govt.nz>; |s9(2)(g)(ii)

Ministerial Services Inbox [TSY] <Ministerial.Services@treasury.govt.nz>

Cc: Daniel Cruden [TSY] <Daniel.Cruden@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY]
<renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>; Neil Kidd [TSY] <Neil.Kidd@treasury.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: TSY Bag: Treasury Report T2021/295; Replacement remit for the Monetary Policy
Committee & Draft Cabinet Paper; Reserve Bank of New Zealand (Replacement of Remit for Monetary
Policy Committee) Order 2021

Signed report attached. The Minister has agreed to all of the recommendations.
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Can you please let me know when the paper has been uploaded to Cabnet and | will finalise the lodging.

Thanks everyone.

Natalie Labuschagne | Economic Advisor -

Office of Hon Grant Robertson “/('] A
Minister of Finance . \ )
Level 7.6 Executive Wing, Parliament Buildings, PO Box 18041, ing 60, New Zeal dg\‘\“
Tso@ | Mis92)(g)(ii) -
E: natalie.labuschagne@parliament.govt.nz ~
L
The information contained in this email is privileged and confide ﬁwt%nded for(l}he" ;‘éé only. If you are not
the intended recipient, you are asked to respect that confidentialit o]

If received in error you are asked to destroy this email an

and-not disclose, . yb} ake use of its contents.
sender immediatel our assistance is
appreciated. —

<Mlinisterial.Services@treasury.govt.nz>

P

Subject: RE: TSY Bag: ai@f/;eport T20
Committee & Draft Ca Paper; Resefve B:

7

S~
, here areso ?s mary bullet points:
/k%
report see@i ister’s feedback on/approval of a draft replacement remit for the MPC,

0 the Governor-General.

rent remit, the draft replacement remit has the following changes:
i porating the Government housing affordability objective agreed at Cabinet on 15
. ebruary, to achieve the policy intent of the new remit, and
r\/i((.“\ imited technical changes to the existing sections of the remit,s9(2)(h)
. h‘\&?}gr ssed, the replacement remit would also require consequential changes to the charter
(e.g,;updating cross-references). We'll report back on this.
e Subject to the Minister’s feedback on the remit, this report seeks his approval of the attached
Cabinet paper for 22 February. The Cabinet paper seeks agreement to:
i. Refer an Order in Council to replace the remit, and

ii. Waive the 28-day rule for regulation, so the replacement remit can come into effect on
25 February.

Happy to discuss.

Elle

From: Yulia Gonina [TSY] <Yulia.Gonina@treasury.govt.nz>
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Sent: Wednesday, 17 February 2021 12:10 pm

To: "Parliament: Natalie Labuschagne <Natalie.Llabuschagne @parliament. ovt,nz>;_
_ Ministerial Services Inbox [TSY]
<Ministerial.Services@treasury.govt.nz>

Cc: Elle Hughes [TSY] <Elle.Hughes@treasury.govt.nz>; Daniel Cruden [TSY]

<Daniel.Cruden@treasury.govt.nz>; Renee Philip [TSY] <renee.philip@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: TSY Bag: Treasury Report T2021/295; Replacement remit for the Monetary Policy Com ee &
Draft Cabinet Paper; Reserve Bank of New Zealand (Replacement of Re etary Poli

Committee) Order 2021

Good afternoon

Kindly note that we are sending electronic copies of
Please note that all documents are highly Sensitiv

nents an o< via SEEMAIL.

Treasury Report T2021/295_Replacement remi he' MonetaryRalic mittee:

e Word Copy of the report

e PDF copy of the report @
Draft Cabinet Paper Reserve Ba ew Zealand ( &
Committee) Order 2021

e Word copy of Draft @er @

e PDF copy of Draft% er

of Remit for Monetary Policy

e 2 x PDF Annexge

Please let me k ifyouSrequire PD% raft Cab Paper to be merged with 2xAnnexes.

Kind rega V

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

The information in this email is confidential to the Treasury, intended only for the addressee(s), and may also be legally
privileged. If you are not an intended addressee:

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

Hi Renee,

Based on this version of the remit, the MPC has considered whether it is necessary ordde

Charter to be issued.

e The MPC has noted that section 2(b)(i) requires ming

new 2(2)(d) requirement.
e As aresult, the Committee do not consid
this point of time.

How would you like to handle the process over t
Minister? And are you happy for this to/b

Cheers,
Chris

Page 160 of 169
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Chris Bloor <Chris.Bloor@rbnz.govt.nz>

Thursday, 18 February 2021 1:10 pm

Renee Philip [TSY]; Freya Dean [TSY]; Nick McBride

Stephen Revill [TSY]; Elle Hughes [TSY]; Neil Kidd [TSY]; Michael Thornley; Greg Low
[TSY]

RE: Heads up - Cabinet paper to be circulat@D &

irablefor a replacement
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From: Daniel Cruden [TSY]

To: ZParliament: Natalie Labuschagne

Cc: Renee Philip [TSY]; Neil Kidd [TSY]; Elle Hughes [TSY]

Bcc: "01 New Zealand Macro_economy _MC_1_ 02 RBNZ Institutional Frameworks MC 1 1 1 2 "
Subject: Replacement MPC remit: talking points for Cab

Date: Friday, 19 February 2021 12:40:57 pm

Attachments: image001.png

Updated MPC remit__speaking points for Cabinet, Monday 22 February(4419167.1).docx

Hi Natalie, @

Here are talking points to support the Minister’s item @t e Cabinet age ing agreement
to a replacement remit for the MPC, as requested, w if you uestions or

need anything else.

Cheers,
Daniel

The Treasury
Tel: s9(2)(k)
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	SENSITIVE

[bookmark: _GoBack]Speaking points for Cabinet, Monday 22 February on Revised MPC Remit

· You are taking a paper to Cabinet on Monday 22 February entitled ‘Reserve Bank of New Zealand (Replacement of Remit for Monetary Policy Committee) Order 2021’. This note provides speaking points to support you in that discussion. 

Purpose and background

· This paper seeks authorisation for submission to the Executive Council of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (Replacement of Remit for Monetary Policy Committee) Order 2021. 

· Last week, on Monday 15 February, Cabinet:

· authorised drafting instructions to the Parliamentary Counsel Office for an Order in Council to replace the remit for the Reserve Bank’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC), and

· agreed the replacement remit will incorporate government policy objectives relating to sustainable house prices, with the intent of: 

i. setting the expectation that the MPC comprehensively understands the effects its decisions have on the Government’s housing objective, while it is pursuing its economic objectives; and

ii. providing transparency and assurance about how the MPC understands these effects.

· At the same time that it authorised drafting instructions, Cabinet also noted my intention to issue a direction to the Reserve Bank under section 68B of the Act, to have regard to a government policy on housing in relation to its financial policy functions. This direction is being issued separately and does not require Executive Council approval.

Replacement Remit

· This paper seeks authorisation of the resulting remit. 

· The draft remit includes the following wording to achieve Cabinet’s policy intent:

“In pursuing the operational objectives, the MPC shall: ... assess the effect of its monetary policy decisions on the Government’s policy set out in subclause (3).



(3) The Government’s policy is to support more sustainable house prices, including by dampening investor demand for existing housing stock, which would improve affordability for first-home buyers.”



· It also reflects the following technical changes, which were necessitated by the fact that the original MPC remit was not subject to the Order-in-Council process (and therefore not drafted by PCO). The technical changes are:

· Clarifying contextual and operative sections of the remit, and

· Minor formatting and stylistic changes. 



· (Legally privileged) The provisions contained in section 10 of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act (which provides for the content of the remit) are broad and empowering. Nonetheless, I am advised that there are some factors indicating there may be grounds for the Regulations Review Committee to draw the instrument to the attention of the House under Standing Order 319. Particular grounds could be that the instrument:

· “appears to make some unusual or unexpected use of the powers conferred by the enactment under which it is made”; and 

· “for any other reason concerning its form or purport, calls for elucidation.”



· These risks are mitigated (but not eliminated) by the technical changes described above. Officials advise that the instrument is capable of being robustly defended. 

Communications and Next Steps

· I intend to announce the changes next week, alongside the section 68B direction. The MPC’s next Monetary Policy Statement is due to be released on Wednesday 24 February. 

· The new remit will take effect from 1 March 2021 and will apply to the following MPC decision. As the remit has no direct impact on the public, I seek a waiver of the 28-day rule. This will ensure the remit is in force if the MPC needs to make a decision earlier than anticipated. 







Treasury:4419167v1	SENSITIVE	2


20210066 TOIA Binder Page 162 of 169
Doc 41

SENSITIVE

Speaking points for Cabinet, Monday 22 February on Revised MPC Remit

e You are taking a paper to Cabinet on Monday 22 February entitled ‘Reserve
Bank of New Zealand (Replacement of Remit for Monetary Policy
Committee) Order 2021’. This note provides speaklng{ mpts to suppo@{@>

in that discussion. @\\

Purpose and background Vs \< /

e This paper seeks authorisation for submissio e Executive éoh eﬂ of
the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (Replacement of Remit @Mon@ftary
Policy Committee) Order 2021. <s {\\>

o Last week, on Monday 15 February, Qeibbg“b A‘//\\\\

- authorised drafting mstruc Parll éounsel Office
for an Order in Council t e the rem@&\ eserve Bank’s

Monetary Policy Com tte;, (M C), and

- agreed the replaceme \r‘ewnt will mei
objectives relatlng to@ﬂamable k@ Se

i. settin a&pectatlon hatthe PC comprehensively
und q%% he effects |t§§de0|5|ons have on the
GO\?&I’ ts hous&x g\objectlve while it is pursuing its
ecgno bJecW ~and”

||< . pro{/ld(ng trans‘éi and assurance about how the MPC
u derstand ese- effects.
e N
e Atth sémé/yme that it auM sed drafting instructions, Cabinet also noted

m to issue’a direction to the Reserve Bank under section 68B of
eAct, to ‘have reg avrb\tv government policy on housing in relation to its
/ fin t”a1 pollcy ncti n57 This direction is being issued separately and does
<ﬁot )eqwre ExeCtk /e Council approval.

Repraceme emn

e This pa(pér\ﬁys authorisation of the resulting remit.
o S9(2)(h

S

“@(e government policy
'ces with the intent of:

Treasury:4419167v1 SENSITIVE 1
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SENSITIVE

| intend to announce.1
direction. The M tatement is due to be released
on Wednesda :

it has no direct impact on the public, |
his will ensure the remit is in force if the

Treasury:4419167v1 SENSITIVE 2
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From: Renee Philip [TSY]
Sent: Friday, 19 February 2021 9:22 pm
To: Daniel Cruden [TSY]; AParliament: Natalie Labuschagne
Cc: Elle Hughes [TSY]; Neil Kidd [TSY]; Leona Feng [TSY]
Subject: Re: Revised LEG paper re remit/advice on announcement timing i%
Hi Natalie \\ J)
Further to the email below, we have checked out the Gazette timin remit, as we Wgn e % make sure the

remit wouldn’t be made public this way before the Minister’s an ouncem t.

9am.on tF{e Thursdéy

Assuming it goes through Cabinet/Exec Council on
Thurs 25th.

Council until the following week (a
/ 7

o

Let me know if you have q\J t|ons %
Cheers
Renee

Get Outlook for io%

From: Daniel Cruqb ] <Daniel.Cruden@treasury.govt.nz>
Sent: Thursday, February 18, 2021 5:27 PM

To: AParliament: Natalie Labuschagne

Cc: Renee Philip [TSY]; Elle Hughes [TSY]; Neil Kidd [TSY]; Leona Feng [TSY]
Subject: Revised LEG paper re remit/advice on announcement timing

Hi Natalie

Sorry for the delay sending this, hope it helps. This email sets out changes to the LEG paper that we just uploaded
(relative to the version the MoF saw yesterday). We haven’t tracked them in the document. This email also follows
up to our discussion at lunchtime about the announcement and commencement timeframes.



20210066 TOIA Binder Page 165 of 169
Doc 42

I’'m assuming you’ll lodge the revised Cab paper yourself because it’s already in the system — but sing out if you'd
like me to arrange that.

Changes in Cab paper since Wed

| have attached the most recent version of the Cabinet paper, which needs to be re-lodged given the change in
commencement timeframes. In addition to minor changes that fix things like grammar, paragraph references etc,

we’ve also made a small number of other changes. These are: /2 &
/>

pege
&S

e We've made changes about the announcem /C@Eﬂmencemgn% the paper following the discussion

ou and | had earlier — more below. \
2NN
For completeness I've also attached the OiC wh‘sh has been t}p\ied will lodge this themselves).
/O
( 0\ o

Comms @\/

Commencement of the Order

As we discussed earlier, we §xe pdated the comngk%ﬂ nt date of the OiC so that it commences from 1 March.
We've reflected that mg?@re\m/qd éabmet er change we’ve made is the words about the
announcement date paJ;yé}/now says tha‘e Fintends to announce next week). The updated OiC will come
through from PCO s@p@rat%yﬂ'he ann%Knceme nttime means:

e MoF wﬂa\énémﬁe the new/( it m/xt week (precise date TBC — see below for more information about
tlmm if the.office deudéskg ton the 24%™).

. \&Qwill/f)e publlshed\r\tgé/Gazette as soon as possible after it is announced (and no later than the
commencement d eL\

e The Order repla}zh; rerﬁlt will take effect from Monday 1 March.

We discussed challe/ge@ t deferring any announcement regarding the remit until after it commences, which
effectively mean tha the Government should announce the new remit no later than 1 March. Although it doesn’t
leave you a whol he%pvf wriggle room for an announcement, there is a good reason for keeping the gap short
between the Order’s*/ssuance announcement, and commencement. As the LEG paper notes (par 8), it ensures the
new remit is effective well before the next scheduled monetary policy decision on 14 April (noting that the MPS
announcement on the 24" will be done under the existing remit). A short gap between unveiling of the new remit
and its commencement is also desirable because there is a risk (albeit an extremely remote one) that the MPC thinks
it needs to make an out-of-cycle decision (as it did last March). If that happened after the new remit was announced
but before it took effect, there’d be a risk of confusion about which remit was in place.

Advice about announcing on 24 Feb

You asked for advice about the relative merits of making the announcement before or after the RB’s MPS
announcement, if the MoF were to go with a 24 Feb announcement date for the new remit.

s9(2)(9)(7)
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tical.challenge to have MoF’s
announcement on the 24™ and after the MPS. The MPS deci \ at'2pm, with the Governor’s
press conference to follow at 3pm — effectively meaning the me ie til about 4pm or so that day.

t to make work depending on
the nature of the planned announcement. f%

Happy to discuss.

NP
Y @@Q§
TE TAI OHA §

Daniel Cruden (he/him) Analyst | I\&mnomic & Fiscal Policy | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury
Tel: : daniekcruden@treasury.govt.nz
Visit us online a Nt asurv.govmﬁ\a\n/d/follow us on Twitter, LinkedIn and Instagram
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From: Daniel Cruden [TSY]
Sent: Tuesday, 23 February 2021 12:41 pm
To: AParliament: Natalie Labuschagne
Cc: Renee Philip [TSY]; Dasha Leonova [TSY]; Leona Feng [TSY]; Elle Hughes [TSY]; Neil
Kidd [TSY]; Freya Dean [TSY]
Subject: Timing of announcement/next steps with g
l i% S
Hi Natalie ~
This email responds to your requests about timing of gazett h sday and pfov' update as to what
you/the Minister need to do in advance of the announceme |st\\s a couple of points related to

In short: no. Now that the GG has signed the @h i
t

Act) to publish the new remit as soon as prac e.PCO has al i preted this to be no later than 9am on the

Given this, it may be w gan anno% to either Wednesday morning before the MPS (as advised last
week), or as close t% ursday f possible‘to minimise (and ideally eliminate) any delay between gazettal

and MoF’s PR goi g
-

What do N @'e)q\ r MoF n B@ln/ advance of an announcement?
N Yo
On the MPC remit: nothinﬂ%i\é\liédgazettal process will happen automatically (this is because the Order, unlike the

indemnities or the 68B dit ,isa piece of secondary legislation meaning PCO controls that process.)

oF,simply needs to sign those letters and have them sent at a time of his choosing (we are
assuming that ypu’ ant that to be after 9am Thursday). The gazettal process for the s68B letter will be
coordinated by(Tre and PCO, with the aim of getting the direction gazetted as soon as practicable after MoF’s
announcement\ie grately you’ll have seen Leona’s email asking for confirmation that the updated letter can be
shared with RBNZ).

Cheers
Daniel

@ TE TAl OHANGA
; THE TREASURY

Daniel Cruden (he/him) | Senior Analyst | Macroeconomic & Fiscal Policy | Te Tai Ohanga — The Treasury
Tel: s9(2)(K) | Email/IM: daniel.cruden@treasury.govt.nz
Visit us online at https://treasury.govt.nz/ and follow us on Twitter, Linkedln and Instagram

1
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SY] <Andrew.Rutledge@treasury.govt.nz>
; Cam Vannisselroy [TSY]

Hi Caralee %
[Credit to Mario an <%rafting the email]

We met with t eﬁ discuss the Governor’s comments on the TR. We remain on track to finalise today -
pending your fee ¢. To feed into your discussion we have highlighted the Governor’s views and our suggested
way forward. We are working hard to reflect the Governors’ view and agree on joint approaches with the Bank
staff.

Remit

(i) We now understand that the Governor’s preference to cross-reference the s 68B direction in the remit
is not only to support consistency with Financial Policy now, but also to support consistency between
the remit and any future potential direction issued under 68B. We don’t support this policy intent, as
we’d want to advise on whether the MPC should consider other Government policies. Beside that, as
discussed,_ and will soon be moot when s 68B is repealed.

(ii) We've added a new rec, that the replacement remit expire in line with the current remit’s expiration
date, on 14 Feb 2024. Renee’s mentioned this to Bryan, and the Bank’s initial response is comfortable.
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Section 68B Government policy direction

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Dasha

Mario Di Maio | Te Tme Tbe Treasur
Tel:sa@2)(k) m

)
! TE TAl OHANGA

The Governor wants only a single option that reflects their preference (option 1).s9(2)(g)()

s9(2)(g)(i) We think that there is value in having more
specific options that more closely reflect the relevant Government policy, including a preference for policies
that dampen investor demand and support FHB/owner occupiers. This could potentially lead the bank to
take this more specific policy considerations into account when using their financial policy tools for financial

stability objectives.
e of views see more
create unreahsflt ex ations for

This is a Government policy that the Bank must have regard to. Dif

around communication and whether or not more specific directio
creating opp<i \ttles/for first home
: the Bank staff and

them to deliver something that they don’t think they can
designed to have

The Bank prefers language in option 2 that drops reference to
buyers. We are exploring options that would respond and 3

active the language of creating opportunities is). // ) N
The Bank considers there is no need for option 3, w udes a reft re\}e to the specific policies (such
as LVR and capital) They think this communic %aﬁ with in a press release rather
than the explanatory notes, we already shif ion‘itse sed on their feedback. We can
see the value for the Minister to mention specific polici isinterested in, but again it’s more of a
communication issue on both sides % N ‘ R

%/‘

' THE TREASL(@Y

@treasur@& \ni

o=
)
\S)
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